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Financial Highlights

(In thousands, exeept per share data) 2006 2005 2004
Statement of Operations Data:
Sales. L $761.795  §$709.731  $5646,265
BB T A e 27,619 (42,106} 33310
Loss from continuing operations .. ... ... ... . oL (6,382} (72,793} {(5.075)
Ner loss per share applicable to common shares:
Basic and diluted nec loss per share from continuing operations. ... $  {(0.71) § (8.11) § (0.58)
Weighted average number of shares and share equivalens
outstanding—basic and diluted. ... ... .. ... ... .. L. 9,017 8,981 8,737
Statement of QOperations Data—Adjusted:
EBITDAD $ 28,931 & 35,182 § 32946
Income (loss) from continuing operations™® . ... ... . oL oL (5,584) 105 (340)

Net income (loss) per share applicable to common shares:
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share from

continuing operations™ | Lo L Lo o o oL $ (062y § 001§ (0.04)
Balance Sheet Data—End of Period:
Working capital ... oL $259.473 §252.356  $234,210
Total assers. . . oo e 537.354 521,482 360,908
Short-termdebt. . ... 45,876 — —
Long-termdebr. ... ... 200,000 200,000 200,000
Stockholders equity. ... ... ... . 122,229 116,285 169,181

(1) See Nuote 10 to Selected Conselidated Financial Data for a discossion on EBITDA. Excluded from adjusted EBITDA in 2006 iv a
pre-tax charge of $1.3 million related to central office severance and other closing related costs. Excluded from adjusted EBITDA
i 2005 is a pre-tax non-cash charge of $77.3 million related to the impainment of geodwill. Excluded from adjusted EBITDA in
2004 is a $0.4 nullion pre-tax credit representing a revision of the Company’s estimate for closure expenses associated with the sale
of Sonab, the Company's former European subsidiary,

(2} Excluded in 2000 is a charge of $0.8 million, net of tax, related to central office severance and other closing related costs. Excluded
in 2005 is a non-cash charge of $72.9 million, net of tax, related to the impairment of goodwill, Excluded in 2004 & (i) $0.8 million.
aet of tax, of credits associated with Sonab; and {ii) charges of $5.5 million, net of 1ax. relating to the refinancing of the Old Senior
IYebentures and the Old Senior Notes. See Notes 5 and 6 to Selected Consolidated Financial Diata.

See Selected Consolidated Financial Data and Management's Riscussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resules of Operations
for additional disclosure,

OUR MISSION:

We at Finlay are dedicated to satisfying our customers with the best assortment, quality and
service while maximizing shareholder value. Our leadership position will be esthanced by
adhering to high performance standards and capitalizing on opportunities for growth.

ABOUT FINLAY:

We are a leading retailer of fine jewelry and the largest
operator of licensed fine jewelry departments in major
department stores throughout the United States and we
operate luxury stand-alone jewelry stores primarily
located in the southeastern United States.

FINLAY ENTERPRISES, INC.
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To Our Shareholders,

In the past year, our Company faced significant change. We have
been experiencing a transformation from a 100% licensed jewelry
operator in department stores to a diversified jeweler which operates
both standalone specialty jewelry stores as well as our licensed depart-
ment store format. As a result of the Federated Department Stores
and May Company merger, we absorbed the impact of store closures
in 2006 and addressed the conversion of the previous May Company
stores to Macy’s. Although department stores continue to be an

important component of our core business, we have also taken steps ro diversify our revenue
streams, which have been bolstered by the solid performances at Carlyle as well as Congress
Jewelers, a freestanding specialty jeweler in southwest Florida which we acquired in late 2006. In
addition, we have significantly grown our Bloomingdale’s business. lmportantly, Carlyle, Congress
and Bloomingdale’s each serve the luxury sector which has been the best trending segment of the
retail business during the last five years,

While we have not been pleased with our recent financial results, we view 2006 and 2007 as
a transition period and our organization is responding to the significant changes in our business.
Qur infrastructure has continued to support our business with excellent execution of our merchan-
dising and operational strategies. Our distribution center has efficiently flowed merchandise to our
stores, while processing returns from the closing stores and quickly returning or redistributing
this merchandise. In addition, our Information Technology group has continued to implement
improvements to systems and supported our operating needs.

We also continued to make progress in leveraging our operating expenses during the year.
Selling, general and administrative expenses in 2006 improved by 50 basis points to 43.5%
compared to 44.0% in the prior year. This is the result of our entire organization’s commitment,
focus and responsible action in identifving and implementing over $§9 million in annualized
savings in corporate expense that will be fully realized by 2008. We were also able to allocate
marketing dollars more effectively, improving advertising expense as a percent to sales, while
controlling our year-over-year selling cost. T am confident that our organization’s response to any
future expense challenges will be the same as it has been in the past, as we have achieved positive
SG&A leverage in nine of the past ten years.

We are pleased that our Finance Department, working with General Electric Capital
Corporation, was able to complete the extension of our asset-based revelving eredit facility to
January 2011, eliminating the majority of the financial covenants, to become more of an asset-
based loan. Additionally, the new finance agreement has an option to increase the facility up to
$75 million for greater financial flexibility.

Qur people have continued to be our most important asset. We have an outstanding team
who has worked together and produced consistent results over the last decade. In 2006, we were
successful in strengthening our management group in the field with our consolidation. We have
also maintained a qualified group of sales associates, which is essential to the continued success of
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our Company. We have continued to focus on the customer and strive to raise our standards of
servicing their needs in every department. Our Platinum Club sales associates, who generate over
$400,000 in sales annually, have increased in number each year, and 2006 was no exception. These
sales associates produce a disproportionate amount of our sales as they build very strong relation-
ships with our customers.

In addition to our field management and sales associates, we appreciate the efforts of our
Board of Directors, made up of a highly experienced and well-respected group of individuals, Our
Board has consistently supported the Company, while challenging us to develop and execute a plan
to grow sales and earnings, which will result in increasing the value of our Company.

In this time of significant change, I think it is important to highlight some of the strengths of
our Company, which provide a solid foundation on which to build as we go forward:

4 We have achieved positive comparable store sales performance in thirteen of the last fourteen years.

%+ We have proven merchandising and marketing strategies.

&

We have an experienced management team.

&

We have strong partnerships with our vendors.

Y

We have had early success diversifying our business model, while performing well in the licensed
dcpzlrtmen[ Store sector.

4 We acquired Carlyle & Co. Jewelers in 2003, a freestanding luxury jeweler located primarily
in the southeastern United States, metropolitan Philadelphia and Florida.

4 We acquired Congress Jewelers in November 2000, a luxury jeweler located in southwest
Florida.

4 In 2007, including Bloomingdale’s, we will achieve volume of approximately $250 mullion
in the luxury sector—the fastest growing segment of the fine jewelry business.

A key reason we have been able to consistently increase comparable store sales over the past
decade is our focus on merchandising and marketing. Our objective is to always be first, fast and
forward in our merchandising approach. This philosophy coupled with our key-item merchandis-
ing strategy and our classification distortions enable us to sustain our momentum, regardless of the
changing environment. Most recently, this philosophy has enhanced Carlyle’s growth and we
expect it will contribute to increased sales levels at Congress.

QOur ongoing relationships are the foundation on which we will build and leverage our
core fine jewelry business. We are committed to rebuilding our business and maintaining our
leadership position within the fine jewelry industry. We have a team-oriented environment where
our associates utilize their resourcefulness to meet our growth objectives. An inquisitive culture in
which our people explore innovative ways of doing things will support our future success.

FINLAY ENTERPRISES, INC,
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“We believe that we can create long-term value for our shareholders through a
business model that is more diversified, yet still focused on our core competency
of fine jewelry retailing.”

As we head into 2007, we are mindful of the challenges facing our Company. In the coming
year, we will remain focused on rebuilding after the loss of a significant part of our department
store business. We believe that we can create long-term value for our sharcholders through a
business model that 1s more diversified, vet still focused on our core competency of fine jewelry
retailing, The “new” Finlay will not be as dependent on factors outside of our control such as the
consolidation of the departiment store induscry.

We will continue to manage our cash through carefui review of inventory invesuments,
capital expenditures and operating expenses. In addition, as a result of our smaller host store base,
we will focus on achieving additional efficiencies across our organization. We will increase
comparable store sales, add new departments, introduce fashion trends and raise service standards.
Our proven disciplines in managing inventory amd expenses, combined with our merchandising
strategies, will position our business to renew its growth and return to profitability.

We will continue to aggressively invest in Bloomingdale'’s, Carlyle and Congress consistent
with the increasing portion of our business dedicated to the higher end or luxury sector. We will
continue to concentrate on finding new opportunitics that will contribute to our growth and have
a positive impact on sharcholder value. In evaluating opportunities, we will consider financial
viability, synergies and manageability. We will be responsible, thorough and thoughtful in review-
g each and every opportunity. We have a strong organization and infrastructure that we can
leverage to seize the opportunities that will enable us to build a more diversified and successful
company in the future,

We want to thank our associates who have contributed to our performance over the past
ten years. We appreciate the ongoing support of our vendor community, who has worked closely
with us during this challenging period as well as cur Directors for their wisdom, knowledge and
direction. Finally, we want to thank you, our sharcholders, for your continued support and con-
fidence during these changing times. Our management team remains committed to achieving
outstanding results and maximizing sharcholder value.

Ok € Roa.

Arthur E. Reiner
Chairman, President and Chicef Executive Officer
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PART 1
Item 1. Business

The Company

Finlay Enterprises, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”, the “Registrant”, “we”, “us” and
“our”), conducts business through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Finlay Fine Jewelry Corporation, a
Delaware corporation, and its wholly-owned subsidiaries (“Finlay Jewelry”). References to “Finlay”
mean, collectively, the Company and Finlay Jewelry. All references herein to “departments” refer to fine
jewelry departments operated pursuant to license agreements with host stores.

We are one of the leading retailers of fine jewelry in the United States. We primarily operate licensed
fine jewelry departments in major department stores for retailers such as Federated Department Stores,
Inc. (“Federated™), The Bon-Ton Stores, Inc. (the “Bon-Ton”) and Dillard’s, Inc. (“Dillard’s”). We sell a
broad selection of moderately priced fine jewelry, including necklaces, earrings, bracelets, rings and
watches, and market these items principally as fashion accessories with an average sales price of
approximately $248 per item. Average sales per department were $917,000 in 2006 and the average size
of a department is approximately 800 square feet.

In November 2006, Finlay Jewelry completed the acquisition of L. Congress, Inc. (“Congress”), a
privately-owned regional chain of five jewelry stores located in southwest Florida, with annual sales of
approximately $23.6 million in 2006 and a focus on the luxury market.

In May 2005, Finlay Jewelry completed the acquisition of Carlyle & Co. Jewelers (“Carlyle”). Carlyle
currently operates 33 specialty jewelry stores located primarily in the southeastern United States under the-
Carlyle & Co., J.E. Caldwell & Co. and Park Promenade trade names, which sell luxury priced jewelry,
with an average sales price of approximately $1,400 per item. The Carlyle stores are principally located in
shopping malls and lifestyle centers and focus on the designer and high-end jewelry markets. Average
sales per store were $3.1 million in 2006 and the average size of a store is approximately 2,100 square
feet. Carlyle generated sales of approximately $101.6 million in 2006.

As of February 3, 2007, we operated a total of 758 locations, including 720 Finlay departments in
eleven host store groups in 40 states and the District of Columbia, as well as 33 Carlyle specialty jewelry
stores in nine states and five Congress specialty jewelry stores located in southwest Florida. Our largest
host store relationship is with Federated, for which we have operated departments since 1983. During
2006, store groups owned by Federated accounted for 57% of our sales (excluding the Federated
departments that closed in 2006, discussed below, and Lord & Taylor, which was sold to NRDC Equity
Partners LLC in late 2006).

In August 2005, Federated announced that it had completed its acquisition of The May Department
Stores Company (“May™). In September 2005, Federated announced its integration plans including a
divisional realignment and divestiture of certain stores. As of February 3, 2007, we operated a total of 349
departments in five of Federated’s eight divisions, which excludes 194 departments that were either
divested or phased into the Macy’s East or Macy’s West divisions during the first half of 2006. In 2006,
we generated sales of approximately $105.9 million from these 194 departments.

In November 2005, Finlay Jewelry signed new agreements with Federated for the Macy’s Midwest
and Macy’s North divisions and amended the existing Macy’s Northwest and Macy’s South agreements,
effective at the beginning of 2006. The agreements expire on January 31, 2009, and cover approximately
317 departments in total. In addition to extending the agreements for three years, all non-compete
provisions from the previous May contracts that required Finlay Jewelry to obtain May’s permission
before opening a new department or store within a certain radius of a May store, were eliminated. We
believe that the elimination of this non-compete provision provides Finlay Jewelry with significantly
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greater opportunity to expand its business and continue to diversify beyond the traditional department
store sector. The agreement has no impact on the Bloomingdale’s division whose license agreement,
covering 32 departments, currently runs through January 30, 2010. In October 2006, Federated sold its
Lord & Taylor division to NRDC Equity Partners LLC. Finlay Jewelry’s current agreement with Lord &
Taylor is two years in length expiring January 31, 2009 and covers 49 departments,

In May 2006, the Company announced that Belk, Inc. (“Belk”) would not renew Finlay Jewelry’s
license agreement due to Belk’s acquisition of a privately-held company that licensed fine jewelry
departments in certain of the Belk stores. The termination of the license agreement, effective at the end of
2006, resulted in the closure of 75 departments. In 2006, we generated sales of approximately $51.9
million from the Belk departments. Further, as a resuit of Belk’s acquisition of Parisian from Saks
Incorporated (“Saks™) in October 2006, the Parisian departments will close in July 2007. In 2006, we
generated sales of approximately $22.9 million from our 33 Parisian departments.

in December 2006, Finlay Jewelry’s revolving credit agreement with General Electric Capital
Corporation (“G.E. Capital”) and certain other lenders was amended and restated (the “Revolving Credit
Agreement”). The Revolving Credit Agreement, which matures in January 2011, provides Finlay Jewelry
with a senior secured revolving line of credit up to $225.0 million {the “Revolving Credit Facility”).

Effective as of November 29, 2006, Finlay Jewelry entered into an agreement to terminate and retire
the obligation under its amended and restated gold consignment agreement (the “Gold Consignment
Agreement”), which was an off-balance sheet arrangement. Under the Gold Consignment Agreement,
Finlay Jewelry was able to receive consignment merchandise by providing gold, or otherwise making
payment, to certain vendors. The Gold Consignment Agreement permitted Finlay Jewelry to consign up
to the lesser of (i) 165,000 fine troy ounces or {ii) $50.0 million worth of gold, subject to a formula
prescribed by the agreement. In accordance with the termination agreement, Finlay Jewelry paid.
approximately $49.9 million to purchase the outstanding gold. The purchased gold is reflected as
inventory on our Consolidated Balance Sheets from the date of purchase. Payment of the $49.9 million
was financed through additional borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement.

Our fiscal year ends on the Saturday closest to January 31. References to 2007, 2006, 2005, 2004,
2003 and 2002 relate to the fiscal years ending or ended on February 2, 2008, February 3, 2007, January
28, 2006, January 29, 2005, January 31, 2004 and February 1, 2003, respectively. Each of the fiscal years
includes 52 weeks except 2006, which includes 53 weeks.

Finlay Jewelry was initially incorporated on August 2, 1985 as SL Holdings Corporation (“SL
Holdings”). The Company, a Delaware corporation incorporated on November 22, 1988, was organized
by certain officers and directors of SL Holdings to acquire certain operations of SL Holdings. In
connection with a reorganization transaction in 1988, which resulted in the merger of a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company into SL. Holdings, SL Holdings changed its name to Finlay Fine Jewelry
Corporation and became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Additionally, in connection with
the acquisitions of Carlyle and Congress, each became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Finlay Jewelry. We
are a holding company and have no operations of our own, Cur primary asset is the common stock of
Finlay Jewelry, which conducts all of our operations. Our principal executive offices are located at 529
Fifth Avenue, New York, New York 10017 and our telephone number at this address is (212) 808-2800.




General
Overview

Department Store Based Fine Jewelry Departments. Host stores benefit from outsourcing the
operation of their fine jewelry departments. By engaging us, host stores gain specialized managerial,
merchandising, selling, marketing, inventory control and security expertise. Additionally, by avoiding the
high working capital investment typically required of the jewelry business, host stores improve their
return on investment and can potentially increase their profitability.

As a licensee, we benefit from the host stores’ reputation, customer traffic, advertising, credit services
and established customer base. We also avoid the substantial capita! investment in fixed assets typical of
stand-alone retail formats. These factors have generally enabled our new departments to achieve
profitability within their first twelve months of operation. We further benefit because net sales proceeds
are generally remitted to us by each host store on a monthly basis with essentially all customer credit risk
borne by the host store.

As a result of our strong relationships with our vendors, our management believes that our working
capital requirements are lower than those of many other jewelry retailers. At the end of 2006,
approximately 30% of our merchandise was held on consignment. The use of consignment merchandise
also reduces our inventory exposure to changing fashion trends because unsold consigned merchandise
can be retummed to the vendor.

Stand-Alone Jewelry Stores. Our stand-alone jewelry stores, comprised of Carlyle and Congress,
operate luxury jewelry stores and offer compelling shopping environments for the high-end luxury

consumer. Our stand-alone jewelry stores carry exclusive and recognized branded and designer

merchandise selections and merchandise assortments focus on watches, gold, designer jewelry, diamonds
and precious gemstones, complemented by an assortment of giftware.

Our stand-alone jewelry stores strive to provide their customers with a premier shopping experience
by utilizing knowledgeable, professional and well-trained sales associates, marketing programs designed
to promote customer awareness of their merchandise assortments and extending credit to their customers
through their credit card programs.

Industry. Consumers spent approximately $63.0 billion on jewelry (including both fine and costume
jewelry) in the United States in 2006, an increase of approximately $22.0 billion over 1996, according to
the United States Department of Commerce. In the department store and specialty jewelry store sectors in
which we operate, consumers spent an estimated $12.3 billion on fine jewelry in 2005. We believe that
demographic factors such as the maturing U.S. population and an increase in the number of working
women, have resulted in greater disposable income, thus contributing to the growth of the fine jewelry
retailing industry. Our management also believes that jewelry consumers today increasingly perceive fine
jewelry as a fashion accessory, resulting in purchases which augment our gift and special occasion sales.

Growth Strategy. We intend to continue to pursue the following key initiatives to increase sales and
earnings:

¢ Increase Comparable Store Sales in our Departments. In our department store based fine jewelry
departments, our merchandising and marketing strategy includes emphasizing key merchandise
items, increasing focus on holiday and event-driven promotions, participating in host store
marketing programs and positioning our departments as “destination locations” for fine jewelry. We
believe that comparable store sales (sales from locations open for the same months during the
comparable period) will continue to benefit from these strategies. Over the past decade, we have
experienced comparable store sales increases (in nine out of ten years) and have consistently
. outperformed our host store groups with respect to these increases.
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Add New Stand-Alone Jewelry Stores and Increase Comparable Store Sales. Opening new
stores and increasing comparable store sales is part of our long-term growth plan. We plan to open
one new Carlyle store in 2007 and two additional stores in 2008. We are currently evaluating new
store opportunities for Congress.

Open New Channels of Distribution. An important initiative and focus of management is
developing opportunities for our growth. We consider it a high priority to identify new businesses,
such as additional regional jewelry chains that offer growth, financial viability and manageability
and will have a positive impact on shareholder value.

Add Departments Within Existing Host Store Groups. Our well established relationships with
many of our host store groups have enabled us to add departments in their new store locations. We
also seek to add departments within existing host stores that do not currently operate jewelry
departments. For example, over the past three years, we added 30 departments in Dillard’s and we
plan to add three departments within this host store group in 2007. In addition, we plan to open
departments in two Bloomingdale’s stores and three Macy’s stores in 2007.

Establish New Host Store Relationships. We have an opportunity to grow by establishing new
relationships with department stores that presently operate their own fine jewelry departments or
have an interest in opening jewelry departments. We seek to establish these new relationships by
demonstrating to department store management the potential for improved financial performance.
Through acquisitions, we added Marshall Field’s (now Macy’s North), Dillard’s and
Bloomingdale’s to our host store relationships.

Improve Operating Leverage. We seek to continue to leverage expenses both by increasing sales
at a faster rate than expenses and by reducing our current level of certain operating expenses. For:
example, we have demonstrated that by increasing the selling space (with host store approval) of
certain high volume departments, incremental sales can be achieved without having to incur
proportionate increases in selling and administrative expenses. In addition, our management
believes we will benefit from further investments in technology and refinements of operating
procedures designed to allow our sales associates more time for customer sales and service. Our
merchandising and inventory control systems and our point-of-sale systems for our locations
provide the foundation for improved productivity and expense control initiatives. Further, our
central distribution facilities enhance our ability to optimize the flow of merchandise to selling
locations and to reduce payroll and freight costs.

Enhance Customer Service Standards and Strengthen Selling Teams. We are continuously
developing and evaluating our selling teams. One of our priorities is to effectively manage
personnel at our store locations, as they are the talent driving our business at the critical point of
sale. We place strong emphasis on training and customer service. We have expanded our interactive,
web-based training programs in recent years to provide our associates with a uniform training
experience. In order to further our goals of optimizing service levels and driving sales growth, we
will continue to incentivize our sales associates by providing performance-based compensation and
recognition.

Merchandising Strategy. In our department store based fine jewelry departments, we seek to

maximize sales and profitability through a unique merchandising strategy known as the “Finlay Triangle”,
which integrates store management (including host store management and our store group management),
vendors and our central office. By coordinating efforts and sharing access to information, each Finlay
Triangle participant plays a role which emphasizes its area of expertise in the merchandising process,
thereby increasing productivity. Within guidelines set by the central office, our store group management
contributes to the selection of the specific merchandise most appropriate to the demographics and customer
tastes within their particular geographical area. Our advertising initiatives and promotional planning are
closely coordinated with both host store management and our store group management to ensure the
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effective use of our marketing programs. Vendors participate in the decision-making process with respect
to merchandise assortment, including the testing of new products, marketing, advertising and stock levels.
By utilizing the Finlay Triangle, opportunities are created for the vendor to assist in identifying fashion
trends thereby improving inventory turnover and profitability, both for the vendor and us. As a result, our
management believes it capitalizes on economies of scale by centralizing certain activities, such as vendor
selection, advertising and planning, while allowing store management the flexibility to implement
merchandising programs tailored to the host store environments and clientele.

The Finlay Triangle

FINLAY
MERCHANDISING
TEAM

STORE

«—
VENDORS — MANAGEMENT

We have structured our relationships with vendors to encourage sharing of responsibility for
marketing and merchandise management. We furnish to vendors, through on-line access to our
information systems, the same sales, stock and gross margin information that is available to our store
group management and central office for each of the vendor’s styles in our merchandise assortment.
Using this information, vendors are able to participate in decisions to replenish inventory which has been
sold and to return or exchange slower-moving merchandise. New items are tested in specially selected
“predictor” departments where sales experience can indicate an item’s future performance in our other
departments. Our management believes that the access and input which vendors have in the
merchandising process results in a better assortment, more timely replenishment, higher tumover and
higher sales of inventory, differentiating us from our competitors.

Since many of the host store groups in which we operate differ in fashion image and customer
demographics, our flexible approach to merchandising is designed to complement each host store’s own
merchandising philosophy. We emphasize a “fashion accessory” approach to fine jeweiry and watches,
and seek to provide items that coordinate with the host store’s fashion focus as well as to maintain stocks
of traditional and gift merchandise.

The merchandising strategy for our stand-alone jewelry stores is built around their customer profiles
and parterships with suppliers. Through analysis of customer demographics, fashion trends, industry
trends and vendor and store management recommendations, they seek to maximize sales and profitability
by merchandising to the customer tastes within the geographic areas in which they operate.




Store Relationships

Department Store Based Fine Jewelry Relationships. The following table identifies the host store
groups in which we operated department store based fine jewelry departments at February 3, 2007, the
year in which our relationship with each host store group commenced and the number of departments
operated by us in each host store group.

Inception of Number of

Host Store Group Relationship Departments
Federated
Macy’s South...... 1983 140
Macy’s Midwest ...... 1992+ 34
Macy’s Northwest..., 1993 37
Macy's North .....ccveiniinnnniinnin 1997+ 36

Subtotal Macy's......cceocrenenn, 317
Bloomingdale’s.. 2000 32

Total Fedctatcd Depanmcms 349
Bon-Ton
The Bon-Ton/Elder-Beerman... 1986 80
Carson Pirie Scott/Bergner” sIBoston Stole ounkcrslHerbcrger s 1977 82

Total Bon-Ton Departments ., 162
Other Departments
GOMSCHALKS ..oty st cee ettt s s s sa e 1969 39
Lord & Taylor 1978* 49
Dillard’s.............. 1997 88
Parisian** ..... 1997 13

Total Other Depanments 209

Total Departments.... 720

* Represents the year in which our relationship began with the host store group previously owned by May.
** We will operate the Parisian departments through Juty 2007,

Terms of Department Store Based Fine Jewelry License Agreements. Qur license agreements
typically have an initial term of one to five years. All of our license agreements contain provisions for
automatic renewal absent prior notice of termination by either party. License agreement renewals range
from one to five year periods. In exchange for the right to operate a department within the host store, we
pay each host store group a license fee, calculated as a percentage of sales.

Our license agreements typically require host stores to remit sales proceeds for each month (without
regard to whether such sales were cash, store credit or national credit card) to us approximately three
weeks after the end of such month. Additionally, substantially all of our license agreements provide for
accelerated payments during the months of November and December, which require the host store groups
to remit to us 75% of the estimated months’ sales prior to or shortly following the end of each such
month. Each host store group withholds from the remittance of sales proceeds a license fee and other
expenditures, such as advertising costs, which the host store group may have incurred on our behalf,

We are usually responsible for providing and maintaining any fixtures and other equipment necessary
to operate our departments, while the host store is typically required to provide clean space for installation
of any necessary fixtures. The host store is generally responsible for paying utility costs {except certain
telephone charges), maintenance and certain other expenses associated with the operation of the
departments. Qur license agreements typically provide that we are responsible for the hiring (subject to
the suitability of such employees to the host store) and discharge of our sales and department supervisory
personnel, and substantially all license agreements require us to provide our employees with salaries and
certain benefits comparable to those received by the host store’s employees. Many of our license
agreements provide that we may operate the departments in any new stores opened by the host store
group. In certain instances, we are operating departments without written agreements, although the
arrangements in respect of such departments are generally in accordance with the terms described herein.




Credit. In the department store based fine jewelry departments, substantially all consumer credit risk
is borne by the host store rather than by us. Purchasers of our merchandise at a host store are entitled to
the use of the host store’s credit facilities on the same basis as all of the host store’s customers. Payment
of credit card or check transactions is generally guaranteed to us by the host store, provided that the
proper credit approvals have been obtained in accordance with the host store’s policy. Accordingly,
payment to us in respect of our sales proceeds is generally not dependent on when, or if, payment is
received by the host store.

Our stand-alone jewelry stores maintain private label credit card programs that are managed by a
third-party. We have no liability to the card issuer for bad debt expense, provided that purchases are made
in accordance with the issuing banks’ procedures. Our stand-alone jewelry stores’ credit programs are
intended to complement their overall merchandising and marketing strategy by encouraging larger and
more frequent sales and credit card holders receive special offers and advance notice of in-store sales
events. During 2006, such private label credit card purchases accounted for approximately 21.0% of their
sales.

Locations Opened/Closed. During 2006, location openings offset by closings resulted in a net
decrease of 251 locations. The openings, which totaled 33 locations, included 26 Finlay departments
within existing host store groups, two Carlyle stores and five stores as a result of the acquisition of
Congress in November 2006. The closings totaled 284 locations, including 283 Finlay departments and
one Carlyle store. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations-2006 Compared with 2005,

The following table sets forth data regarding the number of locations which we have operated from
the beginning of 2002.

Fiscal Year Ended
Feb. 3, Jan. 28, Jan. 29, Jan. 31, Feb. 1,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Locations:
Open at beginning of Year...........omvininniresrarion 1,009 962 972 1,011 1,006
Opened during Year.......coueereerceneensssssssseesssnenns 33 62 28 32 21
Closed AUIANE YEaT ..ot sensorere s (284) (15) (38) (7D (16)
Open at end OF YEaT ..o ressneranne 758 1,009 962 972 1,011
Net increase (decrease).. ... (251) 47 (10) (39) 5

This data has not been restated to exclude discontinued operations. Refer to the Selected Consolidated
Financial Data which provides the number of locations at each year end, as restated for discontinued
operations. For the years presented in the table above, closings were primarily attributable to: ownership
changes in host store groups; internal consolidation within host store groups; the closing or sale by host
store groups of individual stores; host store group decisions to consolidate with one licensee or to operate
departments themselves; and our decision to close unprofitable locations. To our management’s
knowledge, none of the department closings during the periods presented in the table above resulted from
dissatisfaction of a host store group with our performance.

Products and Pricing

Each of our locations offers a broad selection of necklaces, earrings, bracelets, rings and watches.
Other than watches, substantially all of the fine jewelry items sold by us are made from precious metals
and many also contain diamonds or colored gemstones. We also provide jewelry and watch repair
services. We do not carry costume or gold-filled jewelry. Specific brand identification is generally not
important within the fine jewelry business, except for watches and designer jewelry. The department store
based fine jewelry departments emphasize brand name vendors, including Citizen, Bulova, Movado and
Seiko with respect to watches. The Bloomingdale’s store group emphasizes designer jewelry including
David Yurman, John Hardy, Phillipe Charriol, Roberto Coin and Judith Ripka. The stand-alone jewelry
stores emphasize the Rolex watch brand in addition to designer jewelry.
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The following table sets forth the sales and percentage of sales by category of merchandise for 2006,
2005 and 2004 (dollars in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended

February 3, 2007 January 28, 2006 January 29, 2005
Department Store Department Store Department Store
Based Fine Jewelry Stand-alone Based Fine Jewelry Stand-zlone Based Finc Jewelry
Departments Jewelry Stores (1) Departments Jewelry Stores{2) Departments
% of % of % of % of % of
Sales Sales Sales Sales Sales Sales Sales Sales Sales Sales
Diamonds....... $173,304 26.5% $ 29847 27.6% $173,802 27.1% $19,462 28.1% $ 170,614 26.4%
Gemstones...... 132,978 203 10,710 99 132,073 20.6 5,159 7.5 137,654 213
Gold............... 123,880 19.0 1,637 1.5 127,145 199 1,130 1.6 138,301 214
Watches.......... 92,000 14.1 43,185 399 89,475 14.0 26,290 378 92,416 14.3
Designer........ 49,420 16 15,798 14.6 39,568 6.2 13,278 19.1 37,483 58
Other (3)......... 81,973 12.5 6,973 6.5 78,178 12.2 4,171 59 69,797 10.8
Total Sales...... $ 653,645 100.0% $ 108,150 100.0% £ 640,241 100.0% $ 69,490 100.0% $ 646,265 100.0%

(1) Sales for 2006 include Congress since the date of acquisition.
(2) Sales for 2005 include Carlyle since the date of acquisition.

(3} Includes special promotional items, remounts, estate jewelry, pearls, beads, cubic zirconia, sterling silver and men’s jewelry, as well as

repair services and accommadation sales to our employees.

The department store based fine jewelry departments sell merchandise at prices generally ranging
from $100 to $1,000. In 2006, the average price of items sold by these departments was approximately
$248 per item. An average department has over 5,000 items in stock. Many of our license agreements
with host store groups restrict us from selling certain types of merchandise or, in some cases, selling
particular merchandise below certain price points. In 2006, the average price of items sold by our stand-
alone jewelry stores was approximately $1,400 and these stores have, on average, approximately 3,000 to
4,000 items in stock.

Consistent with fine jewelry retailing in general, a substantial portion of our department store based
fine jewelry sales are made at prices discounted from listed retail prices. Our advertising and promotional
planning are closely coordinated with our host store’s marketing efforts. A substantial portion of our sales
occur during publicized sales events. The amount of time during which merchandise may be offered at
discount prices is limited by applicable laws and regulations. See “Legal Proceedings”.

Purchasing and Inventory

General. A key element of our strategy has been to lower the working capital investment required for
operating our existing locations and opening new locations. At the end of 2006, our net investment in
inventory (i.¢., the total cost of inventory owned and paid for) was approximately 60% of the total cost of
our on-hand merchandise. At the end of 2006, approximately 30% of our merchandise was held on
consignment and certain additional inventory had been purchased with extended payment terms. We are
generally granted exchange privileges which permit us to return or exchange unsold merchandise for new
products at any time. In addition, we structure our relationships with vendors to encourage their
participation in and responsibility for merchandise management. By making the vendor a participant in
our merchandising strategy, we have created opportunities for the vendor to assist in identifying fashion
trends, thereby improving inventory turnover and profitability. As a result, our direct capital investment in
inventory is at a level which we believe is low for the retail jewelry industry. In addition, this strategy
reduces our inventory exposure to changing fashion trends because unsold consignment merchandise can
be returned to the vendor.

In 2006, approximately 43.5% of sales related to the department store based fine jewelry departments
were generated by merchandise obtained from their ten largest vendors (out of a total of approximately
500 vendors) and, approximately 9.0% of sales related to the department store based fine jewelry
departments were generated by merchandise obtained from their largest vendor. Additionally,
merchandise obtained from the stand alone jewelry stores’ two largest vendors generated approximately
44% of their sales in 2006.
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Operations
General

Department Store Based Fine Jewelry Departments. Most of our departments have between 50 and
150 linear feet of display cases (with an average of approximately 80 linear feet) generally located in high
traffic areas on the main floor of our host stores. Each department is supervised by a manager whose
primary duties include customer sales and service, scheduling and training of personnel, maintaining
security controls and merchandise presentation. Each department is open for business during the same
hours as its host store.

To parallel host store operations, we have established separate group service organizations
responsible for managing departments operated for each host store. Staffing for each group organization
varies with the number of departments in each group. Typically, we service each host store group with a
group manager, an assistant group manager or director of stores, one merchandise manager, one
operations manager, one human resources manager, three or more regional supervisors who oversee the
individual department managers and a number of clerical employees. Each group manager reports to one
of two regional vice presidents. In our continued efforts to improve comparable department sales through
improved operating efficiency, we have taken steps to minimize administrative tasks at the department
level, to improve customer service and, as a result, sales.

We had average sales per linear foot of approximately $11,500 over the past three years. We
determine average sales per linear foot by dividing our sales by the aggregate estimated measurements of
the outer perimeters of the display cases of our departments. We had average sales per department of
approximately $917,000, $909,000 and $941,000 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Stand-Alone Jewelry Stores. Each stand-alone jewelry store is supervised by a manager whose
primary responsibilities include customer sales and service, scheduling and training of personnel,
maintaining security controls and merchandise presentation. For the Carlyle stores, each store manager
reports to one of four regional vice presidents, who are responsible for the supervision of up to nine
stores. Carlyle had average sales per store of $3.1 million in 2006. For the Congress stores, each store
manager reports to the one regional vice president.

Management Information and Inventory Control Systems. The department store based fine jewelry
business, along with its vendors, use our management information systems to monitor sales, gross margin
and inventory performance by location, merchandise category, style number and vendor. Using this
information, the Finlay licensed business is able to monitor merchandise trends and variances in
performance and improve the efficiency of our inventory management. Qur merchandising and inventory
control systems and point-of-sale systems for our locations have provided improved analysis and
reporting capabilities. Additionally, each of the Finlay licensed business, Carlyle and Congress measure
the productivity of their sales forces by maintaining current statistics for each employee such as sales per
hour, transactions per hour and transaction size.

Personnel and Training. We consider our employees an important component of our operations and
devote substantial resources to training and improving the quality of sales and management personnel.

As of the end of 2006, we regularly employed approximately 4,500 people of which approximately
95% were regional and local sales and supervisory personnel with the balance employed in administrative
or executive capacities. Of our 4,500 employees, approximately 2,000 were part-time employees, working
less than 32 hours per week. Our labor requirements fluctuate because of the seasonal nature of our
business. Our management believes that relations with our employees are good. Less than 1% of our
employees are unionized.
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Advertising. With respect to our department store based fine jewelry business, we promote our
products primarily through four-color direct mail catalogs using targeted mailing lists developed by our
host stores, and newspaper advertising. We maintain an in-house advertising staff responsible for
preparing the majority of our advertisements and for coordinating the finished advertisements with our
host stores. We also participate in the majority of our host stores’ promotional activities including direct
mail postcards and coupons. The majority of our license agreements with host store groups require us to
expend certain specified minimum percentages of the respective department’s annual sales on advertising
and promotional activities. With respect to our stand-alone jewelry stores, their products are promoted
through direct mail, outdoor and regional print advertising and sponsorships.

Inventory Loss Prevention and Insurance. We undertake substantial efforts to safeguard our
merchandise from loss or theft, including the installation of safes and lockboxes at each location and the
taking of a daily diamond inventory count. Additionally, with respect to our stand-alone jewelry stores,
each store has a sophisticated security system in place. During 2006, inventory shrinkage amounted to
approximately 0.5% of sales. We maintain insurance covering the risk of loss of merchandise in transit or
on our premises (whether owned or on consignment) in amounts that management believes are reasonable
and adequate for the types and amounts of merchandise we offer for sale.

Gold Hedging. During the majority of 2006, and from time to time in past years, we have entered
into forward contracts based upon the anticipated sales of consigned gold merchandise. These contracts
aided our efforts in hedging against the risk of gold price fluctuations, as the cost of gold for our
consigned gold merchandise was not fixed until the merchandise was sold, exposing us to the risk of
fluctuations in the price of gold between the time we established the advertised or other retail price of a
particular item and the date on which the sale of the item was reported to the vendor or the gold
consignor. At February 3, 2007, we had no open positions in gold forward contracts. At January 28, 2006,
we had two open positions in gold forward contracts totaling 10,000 fine troy ounces, to purchase gold for
$5.1 million. Beginning in January 2007, we will purchase gold merchandise directly from our vendors
under an owned inventory program.

Competition

We face competition for retail jewelry sales from national and regional jewelry chains, other
department stores in which we do not operate fine jewelry departments, local independently owned
jewelry stores, specialty stores, mass merchandisers, catalog showrooms, discounters, direct mail
suppliers, televised home shopping and internet merchants. Our management believes that competition in
the retail jewelry industry is based primarily on quality, fashion appeal and perceived value of the product
offered and on the reputation, integrity and service of the retailer.

Seasonality

Our business is subject to substantial seasonal variations. Historically, we have realized a significant
portion of our sales, cash flow and net income in the fourth quarter of the year principally due to sales
from the holiday season. We expect that this general pattern will continue. Our results of operations may
also fluctuate significantly as a result of a variety of other factors, including the timing of new location
openings and location closings.
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Available Information

Our internet address is www.finlayenterprises.com. We make available free of charge on this website
our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K, and
amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(b) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”), as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file
such material with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission™).

In addition, we provide, at no cost, paper or electronic copies of our reports and other filings made
with the Commission. Requests should be directed to the Corporate Secretary at:

Finlay Enterprises, Inc.
529 Fifth Avenue
New York, NY 10017

Our corporate governance guidelines and the charters for our Audit Committee, Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee and Compensation Committee may also be found on our website at
www.finlayenterprises.com under “Governance”. In addition, our website contains our Codes of Business
Conduct and Ethics, which apply to our directors, officers and employees.

The information on the website listed above, is not and should not be considered part of this annual
report on Form 10-K and is not incorporated by reference in this document. This website is only intended
to be an inactive textual reference.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Forward-Looking Information and Risk Factors that May Affect Future Results

Set forth below are certain important risks and uncertainties that could adversely affect our results of
operations or financial condition and cause our actual results to differ materially from those expressed in
the forward-looking statements made by us. See “Forward Looking Statements” in Item 7 for additional
risk factors.

The loss of our relationship with Federated, or significant store closures by our host store groups,
would materially adversely affect our business.

We primarily operate licensed fine jewelry departments in major department stores and, as such, our
business is substantially dependent on our relationships with our host store groups, especially Federated.
In 2006, our department store based fine jewelry sales were 85.8% of our total sales and approximately
57% of our total sales were generated by departments operated in store groups owned by Federated
(excluding the Federated departments that closed in 2006 and Lord & Taylor). As of February 3, 2007, we
operated a total of 349 departments in five of Federated’s eight divisions, which excludes 194
departments that were either divested or phased into the Macy’s East or Macy’s West divisions during the
first half of 2006. Additionally, in May 2006, the Company announced that Belk would not renew Finlay
Jewelry’s license agreement due to Belk’s acquisition of a privately-held company that currently licenses
fine jewelry departments in certain of the Belk stores. The termination of the license agreement, effective
at the end of 2006, resulted in the closure of 75 departments. Further, in October 2006, Belk acquired
Parisian from Saks. We will continue to operate the Parisian departments through August 4, 2007. A
decision by Federated, or certain of our other host store groups, to terminate existing relationships,
transfer the operation of some or all of their departments to a competitor, assume the operation of those
departments themselves, or close a significant number of stores, would have a material adverse effect on
our business and financial condition.
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We may not be able to successfully eprnd our business or increase the number of departments we
operate.

A significant portion of our historical growth in sales and income from operations has resulted from
our ability to obtain licenses to operate departments in new host store groups and the addition of new
departments in existing host store groups. We cannot predict the number of departments we will operate
in the future.

The seasonality of the retail jewelry business makes our profitability substantially dependent on
our fourth quarter resulls.

Our business is highly seasonal, with a significant portion of our sales and income from operations
generated during the fourth quarter of each year, which includes the year-end holiday season. The fourth
quarter of 2006 accounted for 42.0% of our annual sales. We have typically experienced net losses in the
first three quarters of our fiscal year. During these periods, working capital requirements have been
funded by borrowings under our Revolving Credit Facility. This pattern is expected to continue. A
substantial decrease in sales during the fourth quarter, whether resulting from adverse weather conditions,
natural disasters, supply chain problems or any other cause, would have a material adverse effect on our
profitability and our financial condition.

Our locations are heavily dependent on customer traffic and the continued popularity of our host
stores and malls.

The success of our locations depends, in part, on the ability of host stores to generate customer traffic
in their stores, and the continuing popularity of malls and department stores as shopping destinations.
Customer traffic, sales volume and earnings may be adversely affected by economic slowdowns in a
particular geographic area, the closing of anchor tenants, or competition from retailers such as discount
and mass merchandise stores and other department and specialty jewelry stores where we do not have
locations.

We may not be able to successfully identify, finance, integrate or make acquisitions outside of the
licensed jewelry department business.

We may from time to time examine opportunities to acquire or invest in companies or businesses that
complement our existing core business, such as the acquisition of Carlyle in May 2005 and Congress in
November 2006. There can be no assurance that the Carlyle or Congress acquisitions or any other future
acquisitions by us will be successful or improve our operating results. In addition, our ability to complete
acquisitions will depend on the availability of both suitable target businesses and acceptable financing.
Any acquisitions may result in a potentially dilutive issuance of additional equity securities, the
incurrence of additional debt or increased working capital requirements. Such acquisitions could involve
numerous additional risks, including difficulties in the assimilation of the operations, products, services
and personnel of any acquired company, diversion of our management's attention from other business
concerns, and expansion into new businesses with which we may have no prior experience.

Our substantial debt and the terms of our debt instruments could adversely affect our business.

We currently have a significant amount of debt. As of February 3, 2007, we had $200.0 million of
debt outstanding under our & 3/8% Senior Notes due June 1, 2012, having an aggregate principal amount
of $200.0 million (the “Senior Notes”). Additionally, at February 3, 2007, borrowings under the
Revolving Credit Agreement were $45.9 million and we had letters of credit outstanding totaling $6.1
million under our $225.0 million Revolving Credit Facility. During 2006, our average revolver balance
was $69.2 million and we peaked in usage at $175.5 million, at which point the available borrowings
were an additional $37.4 million. Subject to the terms of the covenants relating to our indebtedness, we
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may incur additional indebtedness, including secured debt, in the future. Our high leverage could make us
more vulnerable to general changes in the economy.

Our profitability depends, in part, upon our ability to continue to obtain substantial amounts of
merchandise on consignment.

The willingness of vendors to enter into consignment arrangements may vary substantially from time
to time based on a number of factors, including the merchandise involved, the financial resources of
vendors, interest rates, availability of financing, fluctuations in gem and gold prices, inflation, our
financial condition and a number of other economic or competitive conditions in the jewelry business or
generally.

A decline in discretionary consumer spending may adversely affect our industry, our operations
and our profitability.

Luxury products, such as fine jewelry, are discretionary purchases for consumers. Any reduction in
consumer discretionary spending or disposable income may affect our industry more significantly than
other industries. Many economic factors outside of our control could affect consumer discretionary
spending, including the financial markets, consumer credit availability, prevailing interest rates, energy
costs, employment levels, salary levels and tax rates. Any reduction in discretionary consumer spending
could materially adversely affect our business and financial condition, especially if such changes were to
occur in the fourth quarter of our fiscal year.

Volatility in the availability and cost of precious metals and precious and semi-precious stones
could adversely affect our business.

The jewelry industry in general is affected by fluctuations in the prices of precious metals and precious
and semi-precious stones. The availability and prices of gold, diamonds and other precious metals and
precious and semi-precious stones may be influenced by cartels, political instability in exporting countries
and inflation. Shortages of these materials or sharp changes in their prices couid have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations or financial condition. A significant change in prices of key
commodities, including gold, could adversely affect our business by reducing operating margins and
impacting consumer demand if retail prices are increased significantly.

The retail jewelry business is highly competitive.

We face competition for retail jewelry sales from national and regional jewelry chains, other
department stores in which we do not operate the fine jewelry departments, local independently owned
jewelry stores, specialty stores, mass merchandisers, catalog showrooms, discounters, direct mail
suppliers, internet merchants and televised home shopping. Some of our competitors are substantially
larger and have greater financial resources than us. Competition may result in price pressure, reduced
gross margins and loss of market share, any of which could substantially harm our business and results of
operations.

We may not be able to collect proceeds from our host stores.

Our license agreements typically require the host stores to remit the net sales proceeds for each month
to us approximately three weeks after the end of such month. However, we cannot assure you that we
will timely collect the net sales proceeds due to us from our host stores. If one or more host stores fail to
remit the net sales proceeds for a substantial period of time or during the fourth quarter of our fiscal year
due to financial instability, insolvency or otherwise, this could have a material adverse impact on our
liquidity.
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We are dependent on several key vendors and other suppliers.

In 2006, approximately 43.5% of sales related to the department store based fine jewelry departments
were generated by merchandise obtained from their ten largest vendors, and approximately 9.0% of sales
related to the these departments were generated by merchandise obtained from their largest vendor.
Merchandise obtained from our stand-alone jewelry stores’ two largest vendors generated approximately
44% of their sales. There can be no assurance that we can identify, on a timely basis, alternate sources of
merchandise supply in the case of an abrupt loss of any of our significant suppliers. Additionally, we
receive allowances from our vendors through a variety of programs and arrangements, including
cooperative advertising. A significant reduction in the collection of such allowances may negatively
impact our future gross margins and/or increase future selling, general and administrative expenses
(“SG&A”), and may reduce future net income.

Our success depends on our ability to identify and rapidly respond to fashion trends.

The jewelry industry is subject to rapidly changing fashion trends and shifting consumer demands.
Accordingly, our success depends on the priority that our target customers place on fashion and our
ability to anticipate, identify and capitalize upon emerging fashion trends. If we misjudge fashion trends
and are unable to adjust our product offerings in a timely manner, our net sales may decline or fail to meet
expectations and any excessive inventory may need to be sold at lower prices.

We could be materially adversely affected if our distribution operations are disrupted.

In the event that our distribution facilities were to shut down or otherwise become inoperable or
inaccessible for any reason, we could incur higher costs and longer lead times associated with the
distribution of merchandise to our stores during the time it takes to reopen or replace the affected facility.

We are heavily dependent on our management information systems and our ability to maintain and
upgrade these systems from time to time.

The efficient operation of our business is heavily dependent on our management information systems.
in particular, we rely on our inventory and merchandising control systems, which allow us to make better
decisions in the allocation and distribution of our merchandise. Qur business and operations could be
materially and adversely affected if our systems were inoperable or inaccessible or if we were not able,
for any reason, to successfully restore our systems and fully execute our disaster recovery plan.

From time to time, we improve and upgrade our management information systems. If we are unable to
maintain and upgrade our systems or to integrate new and updated systems in an efficient and timely
manner, our business and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected.

We depend on key personnel.

Our success depends to a significant extent upon our ability to retain key personnel, particularly Arthur
E. Reiner, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. The loss of Mr. Reiner’s services or those of our
current members of senior management, or our failure to attract talented new employees, could have a
material adverse effect on our business.

The terms of our debt instruments and other obligations impose financial and operating restrictions.

The Revolving Credit Agreement and the indenture relating to the Senior Notes contain restrictive
covenants that will limit our ability to engage in activities that may be in our long-term best interests.
These covenants include limitations on, or relating to, capital expenditures, liens, indebtedness,
investments, mergers, acquisitions, affiliated transactions, management compensation and the payment of
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dividends and other restricted payments. As of February 3, 2007, we are in compliance with all of our
covenants.

The future impact of legal and regulatory issues is unknown.

Our business is subject to government laws and regulations including, but not limited to, employment
laws and regulations, state advertising regulations, quality standards imposed by federal law, and other
laws and regulations. A violation or change of these laws could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, the future impact of litigation arising
in the ordinary course of business may have an adverse effect on the financial results or reputation of the
company.

QOur stand-alone jewelry store business could be adversely affected if it is unable to successfully
negotiate favorable lease terms.

All of the Carlyle and Congress stores are leased. As of February 3, 2007, Carlyle had a total of 33
stores and Congress had five stores. Carlyle’s store leases are generally for a term of ten years and
Congress’ store leases have terms ranging from five to ten years, several of which have renewal options.
Rent for those stores is a fixed minimum base plus, for certain of the stores, a percentage of store sales in
excess of a specified threshold. Carlyle and Congress have generally been successful in negotiating leases
for new stores and lease renewals. However, our stand-alone jewelry store business, financial condition
and operating results could be adversely affected if they are unable to continue to negotiate favorable new
and renewal lease terms.

We could have failures in our system of internal control over financial reporting.

We maintain a documented system of internal control over financial reporting which is reviewed and
monitored by management, who meet regularly with the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors. We
believe we have a well-designed system to maintain adequate internal control; however, there can be no
assurances that control deficiencies will not arise in the future. Although we have devoted significant
resources to document, test, monitor and improve our internal control, we cannot be certain that these
measures will ensure that our controls will be adequate in the future or that adequate controls will be
effective in preventing fraud. Any failures in the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting could have a material adverse effect on the accuracy of our financial statements and our ability
to detect fraud and could cause us to fail to meet reporting obligations.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not Applicable.
Item 2. Properties

The only real estate owned by us are Finlay’s central distribution facility, totaling 106,200 square feet
located in Orange, Connecticut and Carlyle’s executive and administrative office, totaling approximately
19,700 square feet located in Greensboro, North Carolina. In addition, we lease approximately 18,400
square feet at 521 Fifth Avenue, New York, New York, and 49,100 square feet at 529 Fifth Avenue, New
York, New York for our executive, accounting, advertising, merchandising, information systems and
other administrative functions. The leases for such space expire September 30, 2008. Generally, as part of
our department store based fine jewelry license agreements, our host stores provide office space for our
host store group management personnel free of charge. Congress’ 4,360 square foot executive and
administrative office is located in Bonita Springs, Florida, the lease for which expires on March 31, 2011.

At February 3, 2007, Carlyle had a total of 33 leased stores and Congress had five leased stores,
which leases expire on various dates through 2016. Carlyle’s store leases are generally for a term of ten




years and Congress’ store leases have terms ranging from five to ten years, several of which have renewal
options. Rent for these stores is a fixed minimum base plus, for certain of the stores, a percentage of store
sales in excess of a specified threshold.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we are involved in litigation relating to claims arising out of our operations in the
normal course of business. As of April 13, 2007, we are not a party to any legal proceedings that,
individually or in the aggregate, are reasonably expected to have a material adverse effect on our
consolidated financial statements. However, the results of these matters cannot be predicted with
certainty, and an unfavorable resolution of one or more of these matters could have a material adverse
effect on our consolidated financial statements.

Commonly in the retail jewelry industry, a substantial amount of merchandise is sold at a discount to
the “regular” or “original” price. Our experience is consistent with this practice. A number of states in
which we operate have regulations which require retailers who offer merchandise at discounted prices to
offer the merchandise at the “regular” or “original” prices for stated periods of time, Our management
believes we are in substantial compliance with all applicable legal requirements with respect to such
practices.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2006.
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PART I

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common stock, par value $.01 per share (“Common Stock™), is traded on the NASDAQ Global
Market under the symbol “FNLY™. The high and low sales prices for the Common Stock during 2006 and
2005 were as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended
Februoary 3, 2007 January 28, 2006
High Low High Low
First QUAMEE...........oooviiiiicnit oo eesnsreaes $ 1102 $7.64 $ 1794 $10.86
Second QUATET ..............coooiieeiicee et ee s 11.30 6.70 13.35 10.59
THIEd QUATTET .........ccveeeeveeeecrete e eees et s e st eesseeeresens 8.39 6.15 13.95 7.50
Fourth QUAMET ............ooooviiereec et e eee s 9.64 6.78 12.30 7.37

We have never paid cash dividends on our Common Stock and we have no present intention to pay
any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Certain restrictive covenants in the indenture relating to the
Senior Notes and the Revolving Credit Agreement impose limitations on the payment of dividends by us
(including Finlay Jewelry’s ability to pay dividends to us). Additionally, the Senior Notes and the
Revolving Credit Agreement currently restrict the amount of annual distributions from Finlay Jewelry to
us.

During 2006 and 2005, there were no cash dividends distributed by Finlay Jewelry to the Company.
During 2004, cash dividends of $39.7 million were distributed by Finlay Jewelry to the Company.
Additionally, during 2004, Finlay Jewelry repaid an intercompany tax liability due to the Company
totaling $43.4 million. The distributions during 2004 were generally utilized to repurchase the 9% Senior
Debentures, due May 1, 2008, having an aggregate principal amount of $75.0 million (the “Old Senior
Debentures”), to pay interest on the Old Senior Debentures and to purchase Common Stock under our
stock repurchase program, which expired in September 2005.

As of April 13, 2007, there were 9,181,025 shares of Common Stock outstanding and approximately
30 record holders of the Common Stock, including holders who are nominees for an undetermined
number of beneficial owners, estimated to be in excess of 500. The last reported sale price for the
Common Stock on the NASDAQ Global Market on April 13, 2007 was $5.98.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
There were no repurchases of equity securities by us during the fourth quarter of 2006.
Our stock repurchase program expired on September 30, 2005 and has not been renewed. We

repurchased a total of 2,207,904 shares for $27.4 million under the stock repurchase program from
inception through September 30, 2005.

Additionally, during 2006, we repurchased a total of 19,462 shares for approximately $188,000
pursuant to our long-term incentive plan, to satisfy tax withholdings obligations related to the issuance of
Common Stock to certain executives.
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Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data

The selected consolidated financial information below should be read in conjunction with
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto. As a result of the consolidation of certain of our
host store groups and the loss of certain host store license agreements, the results of operations of the
stores closed during 2006 and 2003 have been segregated from those of continuing operations, net of tax,
and classified as discontinued operations for all periods presented. The statement of cash flows data and
balance sheet data as of and for each of the years ended February 3, 2007, January 28, 2006, January 29,
2005, January 31, 2004 and February 1, 2003 have been derived from our audited Consolidated Financial
Statements. The results of operations for 2006 include Congress’ results of operations since the date of
acquisition. The results of operations for 2005 include Carlyle’s results of operations since the date of

acquisition.

Statement of Operations Data:
BALES v erveirirrrcresreriniesase it asss s e e e n s s s e e asrenerie
Cost of sales............
Gross margin (3}
Selling, general and administrative expenses.......
Credit associated with the closure of Sonab (4)
Depreciation and amortization ...,
Impairment of goodWill {5)......ccicrvireivinsivsmrerinserssiriasiorsnnes
Income (loss) from operations
Interest EXPense, NEL........covnrvrrsresrmire e ee e sien s
Other eXpense (6) ..o ssnesens e
Loss from continuing operations before

income taxes and cumulative effect of

ACCOUNHNE CHANEE - ettt
Benefit for income taxes ..o
Loss from continuing operations before

cumulative effect of accounting change.........c.cceriererieres
Discontinued operations, net of tax (2) ...
Cumulative effect of accounting change,

N OF 18X (7] ettt e
Net INCOME (10S5) 1revurremrerenrerecrireeeeetereesereesarme e e eeeeeaes

Net income (loss) per share applicable to
common shares:
Basic and Diluted net income (loss) per share:
Loss from continuing operations before
cumulative effect of accounting change ...
Discontinued operations ...
Cumulative effect of accounting change.........ocvneernnanin
NEL INCOME (1085) evemnreerimeiirirrcsts s sesssrerasisssastos

Weighted average number of shares and share
equivalents outstanding (000s):
Basic and Diluted ..o

Fiscal Year Ended (1)
Feb. 3, Jan. 28, Jan. 29, Jan. 31, Feb. 1,
2007 2006 2008 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
$ 761,795 $ 709,731 $ 646,265 $632,349 $ 618,698
402,915 361,855 322,432 313,868 302,118
358,880 347,876 323,833 318,481 316,580
331,261 312,694 290,887 286,052 284,991
- - (364) - (1,432)
15,137 14,712 14,512 14,309 14,231
- 77,288 - - -
12,482 (56,818) 18,798 18,120 18,790
23,501 21,903 20,579 21,811 22,609
- 79 9,090 - -
(11,019) (78,800) (10,871) (3,691} (3,819)
(4,637) (6,005) (5,796) (1,623) (1,843)
(6,382) (72,795) (5,075) (2,068) (1,976)
10,790 17,059 21,100 10,478 26,224
- - - - (17.209)
$ 4408 $ (55,736) $ 16,025 $ 8410 $ 7.039
£ ©7) $ (811 $ (0.58) $ (0.23) $ (021
1.20 1.90 241 116 279
. . . - (1.83)
$ 049 $ (6.21) 5 183 $ 093 $ 075
9,017 8,981 8,737 9,012 9416
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Fiscal Year Ended (1)

Feb. 3, Jan. 28, Jan. 29, Jan. 31, Feb. 1,
2007 2006 2008 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands, except per share dats)
Operating and Financial Data:
Number of locations {(end of year)........covvvvcnrrrrennee. 758 738 702 671 711
Percentage increase (decrease) in sales.......ccoevncvennne. 7.3% 9.8% 2.2% 2.2% (2.6) %
Percentage increase in comparable
store Sales {8)..vvvvierinrirenrierseennns 82% 0.7% 2. 7% 2.3% 0.1%
Average sales per location (9) $ 1,018 $ 986 $ 94 $ 915 $ 8m
EBITDA (5) (10) cievvieerririeenresvensrsereerernsssnsssesssesaens 27,619 (42,106) 33,310 32,429 33,021
Most directly comparable GAAP measures:
Net InCOME (L0SS)...cvvvverirererareenrniarienessarersaressasssesessancens $ 4,408 $ (55,736) $ 16,025 $ 8410 $ 7,039
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating
ACHVILES (1 1) sressns e $ (43,241) $ 27,309 $ 27,041 $ 41,183 $ 45,060
Capital expenditures ... $ 11,834 $ 11,869 $ 12,667 $ 12,934 $ 12,489
Cash flows provided by (used in):
Operating activities (11) ..o $ (43.241) $ 27,309 $ 27041 $ 41,183 $ 45,060
INVESting ActiVItIES ..ooiirmeeeceii et esssaes (18,094) (40,659) (12,667) (12,934) (15,750)
Financing activities 35,559 (22,902) (41,233) (6,278) (9,348)
Balance Sheet Data-End of Period:
Working capital ......cccocovrrerieeicscenesensene e $259.473 $ 252,356 $234.210 $239,134 $ 208,990
TOLAL BSSLLS ..veveireerineeriinerieranteesesrsssssssesestesassanesecnnesnans 531,354 521,482 560,908 595,022 580,485
Short-term debt, including current portion of
long-term debt 45,876 - - - -
Long-term debt ..o 200,000 200,000 200,000 225,000 225,000
Total stocKholders™ equUIty .......cocereeerierirsaernareresresnens 122,229 116,285 169,181 152,896 149,036

(1) Each of the fiscal years for which information is presented includes 52 weeks except 2006, which includes 53 weeks.

{2) As aresult of the consolidation of certain of our host store groups and the loss of certain host store license agreements in
2006 and 2003, and in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 144, “Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS No. 144”), the results of operations of the stores closed during
2006 and 2003 have been segregated from continuing operations and reflected as discontinued operations for financial
statement purposes for all periods presented. Refer to Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information regarding discontinued operations in 2006.

(3) We utilize the last-in, first-out (“LIFO™) method of accounting for inventories. If we had vatued inventories using the first-
in, first-out inventory valuation method, the gross margin would have increased as follows: $7.2 million, $2.6 million, $2.1
million, $4.5 million and $2.2 million for 2006, 2005, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. During the third quarter of 2004,
we changed our method of determining price indices used in the valuation of LIFO inventories.

(4) Included in Credit associated with the closure of Sonab, our former European licensed jewelry department subsidiary, for
2004 and 2002 is a $0.4 million and $1.4 million credit, respectively, which represents a revision of our estimate of closure
expenses to reflect our remaining liability associated with the closure of Sonab.

{5) During the second quarter of 2005, Federated announced its intention to divest, beginning in 2006, certain stores in which
we operated the fine jewelry departments. Based on this business indicator, we used our SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets™ model to evaluate the carrying value of goodwill as of July 30, 2005. As a result, we determined
that goodwill was impaired and an impairment of $77.3 million, on a pre-tax basis, was recorded during 2005. Refer to Note
14 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information regarding the impairment of goodwill.

{6) Other expense for 2005 includes approximately $0.1 million associated with a loss on foreign exchange related to a refund
of foreign taxes. Other expense for 2004 includes pre-tax charges of approximately $9.1 million, including $6.7 miltion for
redemption premiums paid on the Old Senior Debentures and the 8-3/8% Senior Notes, due May 1, 2008, having an
aggregate principal amount of $150.0 million (the “Old Senior Notes™), $2.1 million to write-off deferred financing costs
related to the refinancing of the Old Senior Debentures and the Old Senior Notes and $0.3 miliion for other expenses. Refer
to Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additiona! information regarding the debt refinancing.

(7} In accordance with the provisions of the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (*FASB”) Emerging Issues Task Force
(“EITF”) Issue No. 02-16, “Accounting by a Customer {Including a Reseller) for Cash Consideration Received from a
Vendor™ (“EITF 02-16™), we recorded a cumulative effect of accounting change as of February 3, 2002, the date of
adoption, that decreased net income for 2002 by $17.2 million, net of tax of $11.7 million. The application of EITF 02-16
changed our accounting treatrnent for the recognition of vendor allowances. Refer to Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional information regarding EITF 02-16.
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(8) Comparable store sales are calculated by comparing sales from locations open for the same months in the comparable
periods. These figures have not been restated to exclude the discontinued operations. The percentage increase in comparable
store sales for 2006, excluding discontinued operations, was 2.1%.

(9) Average sales per location is determined by dividing sales by the average of the number of locations open at the beginning
and at the end of cach period.

(10) Our definition of EBITDA is earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. Management uses EBITDA as
one of several factors in evaluating our operating performance as compared to prior years and our financial plan. We also
use a variation of EBITDA to determine incentive compensation payments. We believe EBITDA provides useful
information for determining our ability to meet future debt service requirements. EBITDA is also widely used by us and
others in our industry to evaluate and price potential acquisitions and it is commonly used by certain investors and analysts
to analyze and compare companies on the basis of operating performance and to determine a company's ability to service
and/or incur debt.

EBITDA should not be construed as a substitute for income from operations, net income or cash flows from operating
activities (all as determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principtes (*GAAP™)) for the purpose of
analyzing our operating performance, financial position and cash flows, as EBITDA is not defined by generally accepted
accounting principles. EBITDA has limitations as an analytical tool, and you should not consider it in isolation, or as a
substitute for the analysis of our results as reported under GAAP. Some of these limitations include:

* EBITDA does not reflect our cash expenditures, or future requirements for capital expenditures, or contractual
commitments;

i »  Although depreciation and amortization are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated and amortized will
likely require replacement in the future, and EBITDA does not reflect any cash requirements for such
replacements;

s  EBITDA does not reflect changes in, or cash requirements for, our working capital needs;

s  EBITDA does not reflect the significant interest expense, or the cash requirements necessary, to service interest or
principal payments on our debt; and

e  Other companies in our industry may calculate EBITDA differently than we do, limiting its usefuiness as a
comparative measure.

Because of these limitations, EBITDA should not be considered as a measure of discretionary cash available to us to invest
in the growth of our business. We compensate for these limitations by relying primarily on our GAAP results and using
EBITDA only supplementally. See the Statements of Cash Flows included in our consolidated financial statements.

Because we consider EBITDA useful as an operating measure, a recongciliation of EBITDA to Net income (loss) follows for

the periods indicated:
Fiscal Year Ended
Feb. 3, Jan. 28, Jan, 29, Jan. 31, Feb. 1,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands)
‘ EBITDA .. $ 27,619 $(42,106) $ 33,310 $ 32,429 $ 33,021
Depreciation and amortization... - (15,137) {14,712 {14,512 (14,309) (14,231)
| Interest expense, net .. (23,501) {21,903) {20,579) (21,811) {22,609)
Other expense .. e - 79 (9,090) - -
Benefit for income mxcs 4,637 6,005 5,796 1,623 1,843
Discontinued operations ... o 10,790 17,059 21,100 10,478 26,224
Cumulative effect of accountmg change - - - - (17,209)
' Net income (1055)........ccvrerererererereneeserereenes $ 4408 $ (55,736) $ 16,025 $ 8410 $ 7,039
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Because we also consider EBITDA useful as a liquidity measure, a reconciliation of EBITDA to our net cash provided by

(used in) operating activities follows for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Year Ended
Feb. 3, Jan. 28, Jan. 29, Jan. 31, Feb. 1,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands)
EBITDA .....coemvvrrerenrianan $ 27619 $ (42,106) 3 33310 $ 32429 § 33,021
Impairment of goodwill......... - 77,288 - - .
Discontinued operations, cxcludmg wnto-down
of goodwill and deprccw.non expense... 14,050 21,472 23,907 28,643 29,559
Interest expense, net.. (23,501) (21,903) (20,579) 21.811) (22,609
Other expense ............. - (79) . . -
Benefit for income taxes.............. 4,637 6,005 5,796 1,623 1,843
Loss on disposal of fixed assets......... 6,072 182 902 - -
Amortization of deferred financing costs 1,319 1,185 1,125 1,033 1,246
Amortization of restricted stock compensanon
and restricted stock units . 1419 1,216 1,358 53t 304
Credit associated with the closure of Sonah - - (364) - (1435
Deferred income tax provision .. . (1,409) (5.457) 12,337 6,784 A
Other ... (265) 106 1,180 77 258
Changcs m asscts and llab:lmcs net of eﬁ'ccts
from purchase of Congress in 2006
and Carlyle in 2005;
(Increase) decrease in accounts and other
receivables... 4,810 (23,057 1,769 (7,501) (7.40T)
(Increase) decrcas: in merchandlsc
inventories.. eerierian (33,06%) 1,989 (5,641) (9,404) 24,348
{Increase) decreas: in prepald cxpcnscs and
other... 37 {262) (342) 642 (871
Increase (dccreasc) in aa;ounts payablc and
accrued liabilities... (45,010} 10,730 (27,717 8,137 (17,194
Net cash provided by (used m) opcratmg actlvmcs $ (43241 $ 27,309 $ 27,041 $ 41,183 § 45,060

(11) Included in 2006 as a use of cash, is the increase in inventory as a result of the termination and retirement of $49.9 million

under the Gold Consignment Agreement.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations

The following Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations ("MD&A") is organized as follows:

e Executive Overview — This section provides a general description of our business and a brief
discussion of the opportunities, risks and uncertainties that we focus on in the operation of our
business.

e Results of Operations — This section provides an analysis of the significant line items on the
consolidated statements of operations.

o Liquidity and Capital Resources — This section provides an analysis of liquidity, cash flows,
sources and uses of cash, contractual obligations and financial position.

o Seasonality — This section describes the effects of seasonality on our business.

e Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates — This section discusses those accounting policies
that are considered important to our financial condition and results of operations, and require us
to exercise subjective or complex judgments in their application. In addition, all of our significant
accounting policies, including critical accounting policies, are summarized in Note 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

o Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements — This section provides cautionary
information about forward-looking statements and description of certain risks and uncertainties
that could cause actual results to differ materially from our historical results or current
expectations or projections.

This MD&A has been updated for the purpose of restating our financial statements for stores which
have been treated as discontinued operations during 2006.

In May 2005, Finlay Jewelry completed the acquisition of Carlyle. The purchase price was
approximately $29.0 million plus transaction fees and the assumption of $17.1 million of debt. The
transaction was financed with additional borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement. Carlyle’s
results of operations are included in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations since the
date of acquisition.

In November 2006, Finlay Jewelry completed the acquisition of Congress, a privately-owned regional
chain of five jewelry stores located in southwest Florida, with annual sales of approximately $23.6
million in 2006. The purchase price was $6.0 million plus transaction fees and the assumption of $10.0
million of debt. The transaction was financed with additional borrowings under the Revolving Credit
Agreement. Congress’ results of operations are included in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Operations since the date of acquisition.
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Executive Overview
Our Business

We are one of the leading retailers of fine jewelry in the United States and primarily operate licensed
fine jewelry departments in major department stores where we sell a broad selection of moderately priced
Jjewelry, with an average sales price of approximately $248 per item. We also operate stand-alone jewelry
stores which sell luxury priced jewelry, with an average sales price of approximately $1,400 per item. We
have two operating segments — department store based fine jewelry departments and stand-alone jewelry
stores. As of February 3, 2007, we operated a total of 758 locations, including 720 department store based
fine jewelry departments in eleven host store groups, in 40 states and the District of Columbia, as well as
33 Carlyle specialty jewelry stores in nine states, located principally in the southeastern United States and
five Congress specialty jewelry stores in southwest Florida.

Our primary focus is to offer desirable and competitively priced products, a breadth of merchandise
assortments and to provide superior customer service. OQur ability to quickly identify emerging trends and
maintain strong relationships with vendors has enabled us to present better assortments in our showcases.
With respect to our department store based fine jewelry departments, we believe that we are an important
contributor to each of our host store groups and we continue to seek opportunities to penetrate the
department store segment. By outsourcing their fine jewelry departments to us, host store groups gain our
expertise in merchandising, selling and marketing jewelry and customer service. Additionally, by
avoiding high working capital investments typically required of the traditional retail jewelry business,
host stores improve their return on investment and increase their profitability. As a licensee, we benefit
from the host stores’ reputation, customer traffic, credit services and established customer base. We also
avoid the substantial capital investment in fixed assets typical of a stand-alone retail format. At the end of
2006, approximately 30% of our merchandise was held on consignment, which reduces our inventory
exposure to changing fashion trends. These factors have generally led our new departments to achieve
profitability within the first twelve months of operation.

Our stand-alone jewelry stores offer compelling shopping environments for the high-end luxury
consumer and focus on watches, gold, designer jewelry, diamonds and precious gemstones,
complemented by an assortment of giftware. Our stand-alone jewelry stores each strive to provide their
customers with a premier shopping experience by utilizing knowledgeable, professional and well-trained
sales associates, marketing programs designed to promote customer awareness of their merchandise
assortments and by extending credit to their customers through their credit card programs which are
managed by a third-party.

We measure ourselves against key financial measures that we believe provide a well-balanced
perspective regarding our overall financial success. Those benchmarks are as follows, together with how
they are computed:

e Diluted earnings per share (“EPS™} (net income divided by weighted average shares outstanding
and share equivalents included to the extent they are dilutive) which is an indicator of the returns
generated for our shareholders;

¢ Comparable store sales growth computed as the percentage change in sales for locations open for
the same months during the comparable periods. Comparable store sales are measured against our
host store groups as well as other jewelry retailers;

¢ Total net sales growth (current year total net sales minus prior year total net sales divided by prior
year total net sales equals percentage change) which indicates, among other things, the success of
our selection of new store locations and the effectiveness of our merchandising strategies; and

e Operating margin rate {(income from operations divided by net sales) which is an indicator of our
success in leveraging our fixed costs and managing our variable costs. Key components of
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income from operations which management focuses on include monitoring gross margin levels as
well as continued emphasis on leveraging our SG&A.

2006 Highlights

During 2006, we achieved a 2.1% growth in comparable store sales. Over the past decade, through the
successful execution of our marketing and merchandising strategy, we have experienced comparable store
sales increases (in nine out of ten years) and we have consistently outperformed our host store groups
with respect to these increases. We have an experienced management team, a well-trained and highly
motivated sales force, an expert jewelry merchandising team, unique vendor relationships and an
established customer base. Our merchandising and inventory control systems and point-of-sale systems
for our locations provide us with a foundation for solid productivity. Total sales were $761.8 million in
2006 compared to $709.7 million in 2005, an increase of 7.3%. Total sales for 2006 included $108.2
million of sales generated by our stand-alone jewelry stores compared to $69.5 million in 2005 (which
includes sales from the date of acquisition of Carlyle in May 2005 and of Congress in November 2006).
Gross margin increased by $11.0 million in 2006 compared to 2005, and, as a percentage of sales, gross
margin decreased by 1.9% from 49.0% to 47.1% primarily due to the increase in the LIFO provision as a
result of increases in our internal price indices, as well as the increased price of gold and as a result of the
discontinued business, lower vendor concessions. Although SG&A increased by $18.6 million, as a
percentage of sales, SG&A decreased 0.5% from 44.0% to 43.5%, due to lower advertising and license
and lease fees as well as corporate office cost savings.

During 2006, we continued to effectively manage our inventories and implement appropriate expense
controls. We ended 2006 with $2.4 million of cash and borrowings under the Revolving Credit
Agreement of $45.9 million, compared to $28.2 million of cash at the end of 2005. This decrease in cash
and increase in borrowings was attributable to the approximately $16.0 million impact of the Congress
acquisition including debt assumed, as well as the approximately $49.9 million impact as a result of the
retirement of the Gold Consignment Agreement.

In December 2006, Finlay Jewelry’s Revolving Credit Agreement was amended to, among other
things, extend the maturity date to January 2011, allow for a facilities increase of up to $75.0 million in
the aggregate, eliminate the yearly outstanding balance reduction requirement, eliminate all of the
financial covenants except for the requirement to maintain a certain fixed charge ratio at certain times,
and allow us to engage in business acquisitions of a certain size without obtaining prior approval of the
lenders. The Revolving Credit Agreement continues to contain customary covenants relating to, among
others, capital expenditures, management compensation and the payment of dividends. Refer to Note 5 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Maximum outstanding borrowings during 2006 peaked at
$175.5 million, at which point the available borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement were an
additional $37.4 million.

Effective as of November 29, 2006, Finlay Jewelry entered into an agreement to terminate and retire
its obligation under the Gold Consignment Agreement, which was an off-balance sheet arrangement. In
accordance with the termination agreement, Finlay Jewelry paid approximately $49.9 million to purchase
the outstanding gold. The purchased gold is reflected as inventory on our Consolidated Balance Sheets
from the date of purchase. Payment of the $49.9 million gold purchase price was financed through
additional borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement,

Opportunities

We believe that current trends in jewelry retailing provide a significant opportunity for our growth.
Consumers spent approximately $63.0 billion on jewelry (including both fine jewelry and costume
jewelry) in the United States in calendar year 2006, an increase of approximately $22.0 billion over 1996,
according to the United States Department of Commerce. In the department store and specialty jewelry
store sectors in which we operate, consumers spent an estimated $12.3 billion on fine jewelry in 2005.
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Our management believes that demographic factors such as the maturing U.S. population and an
increase in the number of working women, have resulted in greater disposable income, thus contributing
to the growth of the fine jewelry retailing industry. Our management also believes that jewelry
consumers today increasingly percelve fine jewelry as a fashlon accessory, resulting in purchases which
augment our gift and special occasion sales.

In November 2005, Finlay Jewelry signed new agreements with Federated for the Macy’s Midwest
and Macy’s North divisions and amended the existing Macy’s Northwest and Macy’s South agreements,
effective at the beginning of 2006. The agreements expire on January 31, 2009, and cover approximately
317 departments in total. In addition to extending the agreements for three years, all non-compete
provisions from the previous May contracts that required Finlay Jewelry to obtain May’s permission
before opening a new department or store within a certain radius of a May store were eliminated. We
believe that the elimination of this non-compete provision provides Finlay Jewelry with significantly
greater opportunity to expand its business and continue to diversify beyond the traditional department
store sector. The agreement has no impact on the Bloomingdale’s division whose license agreement,
covering 32 departments, currently runs through January 30, 2010.

Additional growth opportunities exist with respect to opening departments within existing host stores
that do not currently operate jewelry departments. For example, over the past three years, we have added
30 departments in Dillard’s. During 2006, we opened 15 departments within Dillard’s and we plan to add
three departments in 2007. Moreover, we opened seven departments with Federated during 2006,
including two Bloomingdale’s stores. Further, we opened two new Carlyle stores in 2006 and we project
opening one new Carlyle store in 2007. Through opening new Bloomingdale’s departments, as well as

new stand-alone stores, we will have a larger portion of our business dedicated to the high-end luxury
sector.

An important initiative and focus of management is developing opportunities for our growth. We
consider it a high priority to identify new businesses that offer growth, financial viability and
manageability and will have a positive impact on shareholder value.

We will continue to seek to identify complementary businesses to leverage our core competencies in the
Jewelry industry and plan to continue to pursue the following key initiatives to further increase sales and
earnings:

¢ Increase comparable store sales;

» Identify and acquire new businesses which diversify our existing businesses and provide
additional growth opportunities;

® Add locations within our existing department store based fine jewelry and stand-alone jewelry
store businesses;

s Add new host store relationships;

+ Capitalize on developing fashion trends and emerging merchandise categories;
¢ Expand our most productive departments;

¢ Continue to improve operating leverage;

s Continue to raise customer service standards; and

¢ De-leverage the balance sheet.
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See “Business-General-Growth Strategy” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations™.

Risks and Uncertainties
The risks and challenges facing our business include:
e Dependence on or loss of certain host store relationships; and

s Host store consolidation.

As of February 3, 2007, we operated a total of 349 departments in five of Federated’s eight divisions,
which excludes 194 departments either divested or phased into the Macy’s East or Macy’s West divisions
during the first half of 2006. In 2006, we generated sales of approximately $105.9 million from these 194
departments. In 2005, we recorded charges of approximately $3.8 million related to the accelerated
depreciation of fixed assets and severance related to these departments. During 2006, we recorded charges
of $4.1 million related to the accelerated depreciation of fixed assets and severance for our field
operations with respect to these departments.

During 2006, approximately 57.0% of our sales were generated by departments operated in store
groups owned by Federated (excluding the Federated departments that closed in 2006 and Lord &
Taylor). A decision by Federated or certain of our other host store groups to terminate our existing
relationships, to assume the operation of departments themselves, or to close a significant number of
stores would have a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition.

In May 2006, the Company announced that Belk would not renew Finlay Jewelry’s license agreement
due to Belk’s acquisition of a privately-held company that currently licenses fine jewelry departments in
certain of the Belk stores. The termination of the license agreement, effective at the end of 2006, resulted
in the closure of 75 departments. In 2006, we generated sales of approximately $51.9 million from the
Belk departments. During 2006, we recorded charges of approximately $0.3 million related to the
accelerated depreciation of fixed assets and severance related to our field operations with respect to these
departments.

Further, as a result of Belk’s acquisition of Parisian from Saks in October 2006, the Parisian
departments will close in July 2007. In 2006, we generated sales of approximately $22.9 million from our
33 Parisian departments. During 2006, we recorded charges of approximately $0.2 million related to the
accelerated depreciation of fixed assets with respect to these departments.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth operating results as a percentage of sales for the periods indicated. The
discussion that follows should be read in conjunction with the following table:

Fiscal Year Ended
Feb. 3, Jan. 28, Jan, 29,
2007 2006 2005
Statement of Operatlons Data:
Sales,.. 100% 100% 100%
Cost of salm 529 51.0 49.9
Gross margm - ettt ettt 47.1 49.0 50.1
Selling, general and admm;stranve expenses ..... 43.5 4.0 45.0
Credit associated with the closure of Sonab ... - - -
Depreciation and amortization .................... 2.0 21 22
Impairment of goodwill (1)......... - 10.9 -
Income (loss) from operations ......... 1.6 (8.0) 29
Interest expense, net.. 30 31 32
Other expense (2).... - - 1.4
Loss from contmumg opcmtmns bcforc
ICOMIE LXES vvvvoreveressessrererosssersssssns (1.4) (11.1) (n
Benefit for income taxes eetatvrre e et enearrsaaa et nae b e et et e ranntans (0.6) (0.8) 0.9)
Loss from continuing operations......... ...... (0.8) (10.3) 0.8
Discontinued operations, net of tax (3) ........cceevu. wererrr e s nnenes 1.4 24 3.3
Net INCOME (I088) ...ceemerrreeririeeeerrraeeeeerrersieersasseneras e sressta s abesensstensssaarans 0.6% (7.9Y% 2.5%

(1) See Note 5 to “Selected Consolidated Financial Data”.
(2) See Note 6 to “Selected Consolidated Financial Data”.
(3) See Note 2 10 “Selected Consolidated Financial Data”.

2006 Compared with 2005

Sales. Sales increased $52.1 million, or 7.3%, in 2006 compared to 2005. Sales include $653.6
million from the department store based fine jewelry departments which represented a 2.1% increase
compared to the $640.2 million in sales for 2005. Sales also include $108.2 million generated by our
stand-alone jewelry stores in 2006 compared to $69.5 million in 2005 (which includes sales from the date
of acquisition of Carlyle in May 2005 and of Congress in November 2006). Comparable store sales

increased 2.1%.

During 2006, we opened 26 Finlay departments within existing host store groups and two Carlyle
stores as well as five stores as a result of the Congress acquisition. Additionally, in 2006, we closed 283
Finlay departments and one Carlyle store. The openings were comprised of the following:

Number of

Store Group Locations
DINALE’S oo 15
CONEIESS SIOTES.......cvvvvvranriecceerres 5
Carlyle stores 2
Other . 4
TOtAL ......ocveveiecrneeceretrereens 33

The closings were comprised of the following:

Number of
Store Group Locations Reason

Federated.........occeecverrniarnseeeesens 164 Stores were divested or phased into the Macy’s East or Macy's West
divisions as a result of the Federated/May merger and are included in
discontinued operations.

Belk...ooooeee e 75 Department closings as a result of Belk's decision not to renew our license
agreement and are included in discontinued operations.

Carlyle SOTES ....ovvvvcrevereiieenvreares 1 Management's decision to close an unprofitable location.

OUhET ... seanes 14 Department closings within existing host store groups,

Total...ocr it 284
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Our major merchandise categories include diamonds, gold, gemstones, watches and designer jewelry.
With respect to Finlay’s licensed department business, designer sales increased $9.9 million, or 24.9%, in
2006 compared to 2005, due primarily to increased consumer demand.

Gross margin. Gross margin increased by $11.0 million in 2006 compared to 2005. As a percentage
of sales, gross margin decreased by 1.9% from 49.0% to 47.1%. The components of this net decrease in
gross margin are as follows:

Component Yo Reason
Merchandise cost of sales................ (1.4)% Increase in merchandise cost of sales is due to the increased price of gold, lower
vendor concessions and the mix of sales with higher sales in the diamond, designer
and clearance categories, which have lower margins than other categories.

LIFQ ... renessicsnsisans (0.6} Increase in the LIFO provision is due to increases in our internal price indices.
Other.........cccoinmeriiennns 0.1 Decrease in various other components of cost of sales.
Total decrease.........ocennnne. 1.9%

Selling, general and administrative expenses. The components of SG&A include payroll expense,
license fees, rent expense, net advertising expenditures and other field and administrative expenses.
SG&A increased $18.6 million, or 5.9%. SG&A dollars have increased as 2006 includes a full year of
Carlyle’s SG&A. Additionally certain expenses for the department store based fine jewelry departments
increase with higher sales, such as rent and sales commissions. As a percentage of sales, SG&A decreased
by 0.5% from 44.0% to 43.5%. The components of this decrease in SG&A are as follows:

Component Yo Reason
Net advertising expenditures........... 0.3% Decrease is primarily due to lower gross advertising expenditures.
License and lease fees...........cconne 04 Decrease is primarily due to the significantly lower rent structure of our stand-alone stores
as a percentage of sales comparedto the department store based fine jewelry business.
Payroll eXpense........ccooeiemiivernnnns {0.3) Increase in payroil expense is due to lower than expected sales in the fourth quarter of
2006 and therefore an unfavorable leveraging of field payroll.
OMher...oooev e 0.1 Decrease is primarily due to corporate office cost savings, including staff reductions, as a

result of expense reduction initiatives.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization increased by $0.4 million primarily
due to additional depreciation and amortization for capital expenditures for the most recent twelve
months, as well as accelerated depreciation costs associated with the Parisian stores, offset by the effect of
certain assets becoming fully depreciated. '

Impairment of goodwill. During the quarter ended July 30, 2005, Federated announced its intention
to divest certain stores for which we operated the fine jewelry departments. Based upon this business
indicator, we utilized our SFAS No. 142 model to evaluate the carrying value of goodwill as of July 30,
2005. As a result, we determined that goodwill was impaired and an impairment of $77.3 million, on a
pre-tax basis, was recorded during 2005.

Interest expense, net. Interest expense increased by $1.6 million primarily due to an increase in the
weighted average interest rate (8.2% for the period in 2006 compared to 7.7% for the comparable period
in 2005). Average borrowings decreased to $269.2 million for the 2006 period compared to $279.4
million for the 2005 period.

Other expense. Other expense for the 2005 period includes approximately $79,000 associated with a
loss on foreign exchange related to a refund of foreign taxes.

Benefit for income taxes. The income tax benefit for both the 2006 and 2005 periods reflects
effective tax rates of 42.1% and 106.9% (before reflecting the impairment of goodwill), respectively. The
2005 period reflects a benefit of approximately $0.2 million related to a refund of foreign taxes and
includes a benefit of approximately $4.4 million associated with the impairment of goodwill.
Additionally, the 2006 and 2005 periods reflect benefits of approximately $50,000 and $425,000,
respectively, associated with the reversal of tax accruals no longer required.
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Discontinued operations. Discontinued operations for the current year includes the results of
operations for the 194 Federated stores closed during the first half of 2006 compared to the year ended
January 28, 2006, as well as the results of operations of the Belk departments closed in January 2007.
Sales related to these departments totaled $157.8 million for the year ended February 3, 2007 compared to
$280.4 million in 2005. Gross margin, as a percentage of sales, related to the discontinued departments
decreased 3.1% from 50.6% for 2005 to 47.5% for 2006. The gross margin percentage was negatively
impacted as a result of markdowns in these departments in an effort to reduce inventory levels. The net
income from discontinued operations for 2006 was $10.8 million compared to net income from
discontinued operations of $17.1 million during the comparable period in 2005.

Net income (loss). Net income of $4.4 million for the 2006 period compares to a net loss of $55.7
million in the prior period as a result of the factors discussed above.

2005 Compared with 2004

Sales. Sales increased $63.5 million, or 9.8%, in 2005 compared to 2004. Comparable store sales for
the department store based fine jewelry departments increased 0.7%. Sales include $640.2 million in sales
from the Finlay departments, which represented a 0.9% decrease as a result of the net effect and timing of
new department openings and closings, compared to the $646.3 million in sales reported in 2004, and
$69.5 million in sales generated by our stand-alone jewelry stores.

Our major merchandise categories include diamonds, other precious and semi-precious stones, gold,
watches and designer jewelry. With respect to Finlay’s licensed department business, diamond sales
increased $3.2 million, or 1.9%, in 2005 compared to 2004 due primarily to the increase in consumer
demand for diamond fashion assortments, including categories such as solitaire and bridal jewelry,
diamond stud earring assortments and three-stone jewelry. Designer jewelry sales increased $2.1 million,
or 5.6%, in 2005 compared to 2004 due primarily to increased consumer demand for designer jewelry in
our Bloomingdale’s stores.

During 2005, we opened 62 locations, including 28 Finlay departments within existing host store
groups and 34 stores as a result of the Carlyle acquisition in May 2005. Additionally, during 2005, we
closed 15 locations, including 13 Finlay departments and two Carlyle stores. The openings were
comprised of the following:

Number of
Store Group Locations
Carlyle Stores ........cocvvvmecrrrrcrincennee 34
Belk's i 8
Dillard’s .....ooviveverrrrirensrrne e 4
Federated.............ccoeoceiievrierarn 8
Other ..o 8
Total.....ccociinrnn e 62
The closings were comprised of the following:
Number of
Store Group Locations Reason
Carlyle Stores........oovconivneicnonns 2 Management’s decision to close unprofitable locations.
Lord & Taylor.....ccccoeeveececnrrnrnneen 5 May closed these less profitable locations.
Oher......coc s ereries e 8 Department closings within existing store groups.
Total oo 15

Gross margin. Gross margin increased by $24.0 million in 2005 compared to 2004. As a percentage
of sales, gross margin decreased by 1.1% from 50.1% to 49.0%. A portion of the decrease is associated
with the addition of Carlyle as its margins are typically lower than the gross margin related to the Finlay
departments due to Carlyle’s strong emphasis on the watch category. The gross margin percentage was
negatively impacted in the fourth quarter of 2005 as a result of deep markdowns in the Federated stores
that closed in 2006 in an effort to reduce inventory levels as well as the increased price of gold.
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Selling, general and administrative expenses. The components of SG&A include payroll expense,
license fees, rent expense, net advertising expenditures and other field and administrative expenses.
SG&A increased $21.8 million, or 7.5%. As a percentage of sales, SG&A decreased by 1.0% from 45.0%
to 44.0%. The components of this net decrease in SG&A are as follows:

Component Y% Reason
Net advertising expenditures..... 0.5% Decrease is primarily due to lower gross advertising expenditures and
increased vendor support.
License and lease fees ............... 1.0 Decrease is primarily due to Carlyle’s significantly lower rent structure as a
percentage of sales compared to Finlay’s licensed department business.
Other expenses ........ccoccooeeeeeenee (0.5) Increase is due to Carlyle’s higher field and administrative expenses as a

percentage of sales as well as Finlay’s lower than expected same store sales
negatively impacting the leveraging of these expenses.

Total ..o 1.0%

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization increased by $0.2 million primarily as
a result of capital expenditures for the twelve months ended January 28, 2006, offset by the effect of
certain assets becoming fully depreciated.

Impairment of goodwill. During the quarter ended July 30, 2005, Federated announced its intention
to divest certain stores in which we operated the fine jewelry departments, beginning in 2006. Based upon
this business indicator, we utilized our SFAS No. 142 model to evaluate the carrying value of goodwill as
of July 30, 2005. As a result, we determined that goodwill was impaired and an impairment of $77.3
million, on a pre-tax basis, was recorded during 2005.

Interest expense, net. Interest expense increased by $1.3 million primarily due to an increase in
average borrowings ($279.4 million for the period in 2005 compared to $258.3 million in 2004) as a
result of additional borrowings to finance the acquisition of Carlyle in May 2005 and to fund Carlyle’s
working capital requirements offset by the refinancing of the Old Senior Debentures and the Old Senior
Notes during 2004. The weighted average interest rate was approximately 7.7% for 2005 compared to
7.6% for 2004.

Other expense. Other expense for 2005 includes approximately $79,000 associated with a loss on
foreign exchange related to a refund of foreign taxes. Other expense for 2004 includes $6.7 million for
redemption premiums paid on the Old Senior Debentures and the Old Senior Notes, $2.1 million to write-
off deferred financing costs related to the refinancing of the Old Senior Debentures and the Old Senior
Notes and $0.3 million for other expenses.

Discontinued operations. Discontinued operations for 2005 includes the results of operations for the
194 Federated stores closed during the first half of 2006 as well as the results of operations of the Belk
departments closed in January 2007, Sales related to these departments totaled $280.4 million for the year
ended January 28, 2006 compared to $277.3 million in 2004. Gross margin, as a percentage of sales,
related to the discontinued departments decreased 1.4% from 52.0% for 2004 to 50.6% for 2005. The net
income from discontinued operations for 2005 was $17.1 million compared to net income from
discontinued operations of $21.1 million during the comparable period in 2004,

Benefit for income taxes. The income tax benefit for the 2005 and 2004 periods reflects effective
tax rates of 106.9% (before reflecting the impairment of goodwill) and 53.3%, respectively. During 2005
and 2004, respectively, a benefit of approximately $0.4 million and $1.0 million were recorded associated
with the reversal of tax accruals no longer required, primarily a result of the closing of open tax years.
Further, the 2005 and 2004 periods reflect a net recovery of foreign taxes of approximately $0.2 million
and $0.6 million, respectively. Additionally, during 2005, a benefit of approximately $4.4 million was
recorded associated with the impairment of goodwill.

Net income (loss). Net loss of $55.7 million for the 2005 period compares to net income of $16.0
million in the prior period as a result of the factors discussed above.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Information about our financial position is presented in the following table:

February 3, January 28,
2007 2006
(dollars in thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents................... $ 2415 $ 28191
Working capital .................. 259,473 252,356
Short-term debt.................... 45,876 -
Long-term debt................... 200,000 200,000
Stockholdets’ equity .........ccovoviimnennne 122,229 116,285

Our primary capital requirements are funding working capital for new locations and growth of
existing locations, as well as debt service obligations and license fees to host store groups, rent payments
for the stand-alone jewelry stores,- funding potential acquisitions, and, to a lesser extent, capital
expenditures for opening new locations, renovating existing locations and information technology
investments. For 2006 and 2005, capital expenditures totaled $11.8 million and $11.9 million,
respectively, exclusive of fixed assets acquired. Total capital expenditures for 2007 are estimated to be
approximately $11.0 million to $12.0 million. Although capital expenditures are limited by the terms of
the Revolving Credit Agreement, to date, this limitation has not precluded us from satisfying our capital
expenditure requirements.

We currently expect to fund capital expenditure requirements as well as liquidity needs from a
combination of cash, internally generated funds and borrowings under our Revolving Credit Agreement.
We believe that our internally generated liquidity through cash flows from operations, together with
access to external capital resources, will be sufficient to satisfy existing commitments and plans and will
provide adequate financing flexibility.

Cash flows provided by (used in) operating, investing and financing activities for the fiscal years
ended February 3, 2007, January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005 were as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended

February 3, Januoary 28, January 29,
2007 2006 2005
(dollars in thousands)
Operating ACHVILIES... ..o veeer e rrree s smesrssmsssansins $ (43,.241) $ 27309 $ 27,041
Investing Activities............c... . . (18,094) (40,659} {12,667
Financing ACtVITIES.........ococervemvvrervnrsirmnsnsenns 35,559 {22,902) {41,233)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents...................... $ (25,776) $ {36,252) $(26,859)

Our current priorities for the use of cash or borrowings, as a result of borrowings available under the
Revolving Credit Agreement, are:

¢ Investment in inventory and for working capital;

s Strategic acquisitions;

s Capital expenditures for new locations, expansions and remodeling of existing locations; and

e Investments in technology.

Operating Activities

The primary source of our liquidity is cash flows from operating activities. The key component of
operating cash flow is merchandise sales. Operating cash outflows include payments to vendors for
inventory, services and supplies, payments for employee payroll, license fees, rent and payments of

interest and taxes. Net cash flows used in operations were $43.2 million in 2006. Accounts receivable
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decreased to $26.3 million from $39.0 million primarily due to the impact of payments collected under
the deferred billing program that we had last year with May, whereby we receive settlement for certain
sales over a twelve month period. The net impact of the termination and retirement of the Gold
Consignment Agreement on our Consolidated Balance Sheet was an increase to owned inventory of
approximately $99.0 million, a reduction to other receivables of $49.1 million for the advances made to
the gold vendors for the cost of the non-gold portion of the gold consignment merchandise and an
increase in the borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility of $49.9 million, which was used to pay
the obligation to the gold consignor. The Gold Consignment Agreement was previously an off-balance
sheet arrangement. Additionally, accounts payable decreased to $85.1 million from $111.5 million as a
result of lower receipts and lower sales of consignment merchandise in the fourth quarter of 2006 as
compared to 2005.

Our principal operations involving licensed fine jewelry departments substantially preclude customer
receivables as our license agreements typically require host stores to remit sales proceeds for each month
(without regard to whether such sales were cash, store credit or national credit card) to us approximately
three weeks after the end of such month. Additionally, at the end of 2006, approximately 30% of our
merchandise was held on consignment. Our working capital balance was $259.5 million at February 3,
2007, an increase of $7.1 million from January 28, 2006.

The seasonality of our business causes working capital requirements, and therefore, borrowings under
the Revolving Credit Agreement, to reach their highest level in the months of October, November and
December in anticipation of the year-end holiday season. Accordingly, we experience seasonal cash needs
as inventory levels peak. Additionally, substantially all of our license agreements provide for accelerated
payments during the months of November and December, which require the host store groups to remit to
us 75% of the estimated months' sales prior to or shortly following the end of that month. These proceeds
result in a significant increase in our cash, which is used to reduce our borrowings under the Revolving
Credit Agreement. Inventory levels increased by $98.7 million as compared to January 28, 2006,
primarily as a result of the conversion of the majority of Finlay Jewelry’s gold consignment inventory to
owned inventory due to the retirement of the Gold Consignment Agreement as well as the acquisition of
Congress, whose inventory levels were $16.5 million as of February 3, 2007.

Investing Activities

For 2006, net cash used in investing activities totaled $18.1 million and consisted of the acquisition of
Congress in November 2006, which accounted for $6.3 million of cash invested as well as payments for
capital expenditures. For 2005 and 2004, net cash used in investing activities totaled $40.7 million and
$12.7 million, respectively. Capital expenditures in 2006, 2005 and 2004 related primarily to expenditures
for opening new locations and renovating existing locations. Included in 2005 was the use of cash of
$28.8 million associated with the acquisition of Carlyle.

Financing Activities

Proceeds from, and principal repayments on, the Revolving Credit Facility have been our primary
financing activities. Net cash from financing activities was $35.6 million in 2006 consisting of the
outstanding borrowings of $45.9 million under the Revolving Credit Facility offset by the paydown of
Congress’ revolving credit facility of $10.0 million. Net cash used in financing activities was $22.9
million in 2005, consisting principally of the paydown of Carlyle’s revolving credit facility.

The Revolving Credit Agreement provides us with a line of credit of up to $225.0 million to finance
working capital needs. In December 2006, the Revolving Credit Agreement was amended to, among other
things, extend the maturity date to January 2011, allow for a facilities increase of up to $75.0 million in
the aggregate, eliminate the yearly outstanding balance reduction requirement, eliminate all of the
financial covenants except for the requirement to maintain a certain fixed charge ratio at certain times,
and allow us to engage in business acquisitions of a certain size without obtaining prior approval of the
lenders. Amounts outstanding under the Revolving Credit Agreement bear interest at a rate equal to, at
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our option, (i) the prime rate plus a margin ranging from zero to 0.25% or (ii) the adjusted Eurodollar rate
plus a margin ranging from 1.25% to 2.0%, in each case depending on availability under our facility. The
weighted average interest rate was 7.7% and 5.9% for 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement at February 3, 2007 were $45.9 miltion. The
average amounts outstanding under the Revolving Credit Agreement during 2006 and 2005 were $69.2
million and $79.4 million, respectively. The maximum amount outstanding during 2006 was $175.5
million, at which point the available borrowings were an additional $37.4 million. We intend to increase
the size of the facility in 2007 as a result of the conversion of the gold merchandise to owned inventory,
resulting in a larger collateral base. At February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, we had letters of credit
outstanding totaling $6.1 million and $10.9 million, respectively, which guarantee various trade activities.

In May 2005, Finlay Jewelry completed the acquisition of Carlyle. The purchase price was
approximately $29.0 million plus transaction fees, and was financed with additional borrowings under the
Revolving Credit Agreement. In connection with the acquisition, Carlyle’s revolving credit facility
totaling $17.1 million was terminated and paid in full at the closing. Since the date of the acquisition,
Carlyle’s cash requirements have been, and will continue to be, funded under the Revolving Credit
Agreement.

In November 2006, Finlay Jewelry completed the acquisition of Congress. At the time of the stock
purchase, Congress was a privately-owned regional chain of five jewelry stores located in southwest
Florida, with a focus on the luxury market. The purchase price was $6.0 million plus transaction fees, and
was financed with additional borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement. Congress’ revolving
credit facility totaling $10.0 million was terminated and paid in full at the closing. Since the date of
acquisition, Congress’ cash requirements have been, and will continue to be, funded under the Revolving
Credit Agreement. Congress’ annual sales for 2006 were approximately $23.6 million.

A significant amount of our operating cash flow will be used to pay interest with respect to the Senior
Notes and amounts due under the Revolving Credit Agreement. As of February 3, 2007, our outstanding
borrowings were $245.9 million, which included a $200.0 million balance under the Senior Notes and
$45.9 million balance under the Revolving Credit Agreement.

The agreements covering the Revolving Credit Agreement and the Senior Notes each require that
Finlay Jewelry comply with certain covenants. Finlay Jewelry was in compliance with its covenants at
February 3, 2007. Because compliance is based, in part, on our management’s estimates and actual results
can differ from those estimates, there can be no assurance that Finlay Jewelry will be in compliance with
the covenants in the future or that the lenders will waive or amend any of the covenants should Finlay
Jewelry be in violation thereof. However, we do believe the assumptions used are appropriate.

The Revolving Credit Agreement contains customary covenants, including limitations on, or relating
to, capital expenditures, liens, indebtedness, investments, mergers, acquisitions, affiliate transactions,
management compensation and the payment of dividends and other restricted payments. The indenture
related to the Senior Notes contains restrictions relating to, among other things, the payment of dividends,
redemptions or repurchases of capital stock, the incurrence of additional indebtedness, the making of
certain investments, the creation of certain liens, the sale of certain assets, entering into transactions with
affiliates, engaging in mergers and consolidations and the transfer of all or substantially all assets, Refer
to Note 5 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We believe that, based upon current operations, anticipated growth and continued availability under
the Revolving Credit Agreement, Finlay Jewelry will, for the foreseeable future, be able to meet its debt
service and anticipated working capital obligations and to make distributions sufficient to permit us to pay
certain expenses as they come due. No assurances, however, can be given that Finlay Jewelry’s current
level of operating results will continue or improve or that Finlay Jewelry’s income from operations will
continue to be sufficient to permit Finlay Jewelry to meet its debt service and other obligations. The
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amounts required to satisfy the aggregate of Finlay Jewelry’s interest expense totaled $23.0 million and
$23.3 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Our long-term needs for external financing will depend on our rate of growth, the level of internally
generated funds and the ability to continue obtaining substantial amounts of merchandise on
advantageous terms, including consignment arrangements with our vendors. At February 3, 2007 and
January 28, 2006, $204.0 million and $328.4 million, respectively, of consignment merchandise from
approximately 300 vendors was on hand. The decrease is primarily associated with the termination of the
gold consignment agreement and the conversion of this merchandise to owned inventory. For 2006, we
had an average balance of consignment merchandise of $296.5 million as compared to an average balance
of $354.5 million in 2005.

The following table summarizes our contractual and commercial obligations which may have an impact
on future liquidity and the availability of capital resources, as of February 3, 2007 (dollars in thousands):

Payments Due By Period
Less than More than
Contractual Qbligations Total 1 year 1-23 years 3 —5 years 5 years
Long-Term Debt Obligations:

Senior Notes (due 2012) (1)..coooveereecrercerceennnns $ 200,000 5 - 8 - 5 - $ 200,000
Interest payments on Senior Notes 92,125 16,750 33,500 33,500 8375
Operating lease obligations (2) ... 33,746 7.426 10,792 7,666 7.862
Revolving Credit Agreement (due 201 1) (3) ....... 45,876 45,876 - - -
Employment agreements - 5,916 3,504 2,412 - -
Contractual bonuses (4).... 862 - 862 - -
Letters of credit .........coverveemercmsenserccereenenne 6,121 587 250 - -

Total ....ccoevsvnerriirinns v 3 384,646 $ 79427 $ 47,816 $ 41,166 $ 216,237

(1) In June 2004, Finlay Jewelry issued $200.0 million of Senior Notes due 2012. Refer to Note 5 of Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

(2) Represents future minimum payments under noncancellable operating leases as of February 3, 2007.

(3) The above table excludes interest due under the Revolving Credit Agreement. The average interest rate during 2006 was
7.7%. The average amount outstanding during 2006 was $69.2 million and the outstanding balance as of April 13, 2007
was $103.6 million. Refer to Note 5 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

{(4) Represents a special bonus for four senior executives equal to 50% of the executives’ salary if employed by the Company
on the dates specified in the respective employment agreements.

The operating leases included in the above table do not include contingent rent based upon sales
volume, which amounted to approximately $110.9 million for 2006, or variable costs such as
maintenance, insurance and taxes. Our open purchase orders are cancelable without penalty and are
therefore not included in the above table. There were no commercial commitments outstanding as of
February 3, 2007 other than as disclosed in the table above, nor have we provided any third-party
financial guarantees as of and for the year ended February 3, 2007.

Effective as of November 29, 2006, Finlay Jewelry entered into an agreement to terminate and retire
its obligation under the Gold Consignment Agreement, which was an off-balance sheet arrangement. In
accordance with the termination agreement, Finlay Jewelry paid approximately $49.9 million to purchase
the outstanding gold. The purchased gold is reflected as inventory on our Consolidated Balance Sheets
from the date of purchase. Payment of the $49.9 million gold purchase price was financed through
additional borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement.

Finlay Jewelry considered many factors when evaluating whether to terminate the Gold Consignment
Agreement, including the volatility of gold prices in recent years and the belief that Finlay Jewelry can
better manage gross margins under an owned inventory program working directly with its vendors. In
addition, the termination simplifies Finlay Jewelry’s capital structure by eliminating an off-balance sheet
contractual obligation. With the retirement of its obligation, Finlay Jewelry converted the majority of its
gold consignment inventory to owned inventory on Finlay Jewelry’s Consolidated Balance Sheets and
eliminated the other receivables, representing cash advances to certain vendors for the cost of the non-
gold portion of the gold consignment merchandise.
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We have not created, and are not party to, any off-balance sheet entities for the purpose of raising
capital, incurring debt or operating our business. We do not have any arrangements or relationships with
entities that are not consolidated into the financial statements that are reasonably likely to materially
affect our liquidity or the availability of capital resources.

Other Activities Affecting Liquidity

In November 2004, we entered into an employment agreement with a senior executive. The
employment agreement has a term ending on January 31, 2009, unless earlier terminated in accordance
with the provisions of the employment agreement. The agreement provides an annual salary level of
approximately $1.0 million as well as cash incentive compensation based on meeting specific financial
goals.

In June 2005, we entered into employment agreements with three senior executives of Finlay Jewelry
and, in March 2006, we entered into an employment agreement with a fourth senior executive of Finlay
Jewelry. Each of the agreements has a term of three years, unless earlier terminated in accordance with
the provisions of the employment agreements. The agreements provide for minimum annual salary levels
totaling approximately $1.6 million, incentive compensation based on meeting specific financial goals
and a special bonus equal to 50% of each executives’ salary if, in the case of the June 2005 agreements,
the executive is employed by Finlay Jewelry on June 30, 2008, and, in the case of the March 2006
agreement, if the executive is employed by Finlay Jewelry on February 28, 2009.

The purchase agreement relating to Congress provides for additional purchase price consideration to
be paid to the former principals of Congress in 2009. The payment is contingent upon the achievement of
certain results of operations of the Congress stores for the 36 months following the acquisition as
compared to certain financial thresholds stated in the purchase agreement. No additional consideration has
been included in our disclosure of the purchase price as it is not yet determinable if any such payments
will be made.

Seasonality

Our business is highly seasonal, with a significant portion of our sales and income from operations
generated during the fourth quarter of each year, which includes the year-end holiday season. The fourth
quarter of 2006 and 2005 each accounted for an average of approximately 42.0% of our annual sales. We
have typically experienced net losses in the first three quarters of our fiscal year. During these periods,
working capital requirements have been funded by borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement.
Accordingly, the results for any of the first three quarters of any given fiscal year, taken individually or in
the aggregate, are not indicative of annual results. See Note 19 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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The following table summarizes the quarterly financial data for 2006 and 2005 (dollars in thousands,
except per share data). The 2006 and 2005 quarterly financial data has been restated to reflect discontinued
operations.

Fiscal Year Ended February 3, 2007

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter __Quarter (a)
Sales .. wviesrirsenreranersrarresasreses o9 149,343 $ 153,593 $ 140,059 $ 318,800
Gross margm 72,507 73,250 65,200 147,923
Selling, geneml and admlmstratwe cxpcnscs 74,019 72,165 69,128 115,949
Income (loss) from operations... . (5.216) (2,555) (7,702) 27,955
Income (loss) from continuing opcratlons (6,330) {4,944) (8,325) 13,217
Discontinued operahons net of tax (b) ....... 6,449 962 419 2,960
Net income (10ss) ... 119 (3,982) (7,906) 16,177
Basic net income (loss) per share (c):
Income (loss) from continuing operations ............... $ (0.70) $ (055 $  (0.92) $ 146
Discontinued operations (b)..............ccceeen.. 0.71 0.11 0.04 0.33
Basic net income (loss) per share....... $ o0l $ (049 $ (0.38) $ L9
Diluted net income (10ss) per share (c):
Income (loss) from continuing operations ............... $ (0.70) $ (0.55) § (0.92) $ 14
Discontinued operations (b).........cocccieeverusnismeerseeenes 0.71 0.11 0.04 0.32
Diluted net income (loss) per shafe...............ovesveeenns $ 0.01 $ (044) $ (0.88) $ 173

Fiscal Year Ended January 28, 2006

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter (d) Quarter (d) Quarter (d)

Sales .. e ssnrrsssnntesressnsnessnemsannnesnes 8 131,466 $ 142,446 $ 133,135 $ 302,084
Gross margm e 65,094 70,746 64,954 147,082
Selling, gcncral and admlmsmmve expenses 66,038 70,155 67,825 108,676
Income (loss) from operations (e)... . (4,398) (80,170) (6,709) 34,459
Income (loss) from continuing opcranons (e) (5,506) (77,833) (7,562) 18,1066
Discontinued operations, net of tax (b}.... 2,692 3,040 688 10,639
Net income (1088) () e ssareeees (2,814) (74,793) (6,874) 28,745
Basic net income (loss) per share (c) (f
Income (loss) from continuing operations ................. $ (08D 3 (8.67) (034 3 202
Discontinued operations (b)...........ccocvveuee 0.30 0.34 0.07 1.18
Basic net income (10ss) per share..............o.c.oeceevecenne $ (0.31) $ (8331 3 (07 3 3.20
Diluted net income (loss) per share {c) {f):
Income (loss} from continuing opcratlons () JO—— $ (8D $ 867 $ (089 3 1.96
Discontinued operations (b).... 0.30 0.34 0.07 1.15
Diluted net income (loss) per share $ (0.31) $ (833 £ 07D £ 311

(a) The fourth quarter of 2006 reflects the results of operations of Congress since the date of acquisition in November 2006.

(b) Discontinued operations includes the after-tax operations of the 194 departments that wete either divested or phased into
the Macy’s East or Macy’s West divisions during 2006 as well as the Belk department closings.

(¢) Net income (loss) per share for each quarter is computed as if each quarter were a discrete period. As such, the total of
the four quarters net income (loss) per share does not necessarily equal the net income (loss) per share for the year.

(d) The second, third and fourth quarters of 2005 reflect the results of operations of Carlyle since the date of acquisition in
mid-May 2005.

(¢) The income (loss) from operations and the income (loss) from continuing operations include a charge of approximately
$77.3 million, on a pre-tax basis, related to the impairment of goodwill in the second quarter of 2005,

(f) Net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share includes a charge of approximately $72.9 million, net of tax, related to
the impairment of goodwill during the second quarter of 2005.
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Inflation
The effect of inflation on our results of operations has not been material in the periods discussed.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States requires the appropriate application of certain accounting policies, many of which
require us to make estimates and assumptions about future events and their impact on amounts reported in
our financial statements and related notes. We believe the application of our accounting policies, and the
estimates inherently required therein, are reasonable. These accounting policies and estimates are
periodically re-evaluated, as appropriate, and adjustments are made when facts and circumstances dictate
a change. However, since future events and their impact cannot be determined with certainty, actual
results may differ from our estimates, and such differences could be material to the consolidated financial
statements. Historically, we have found our application of accounting policies to be appropriate, and
actual results have not differed materially from those determined using necessary estimates. A summary
of our significant accounting policies and a description of accounting policies that we believe are most
critical may be found in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Merchandise Inventories

We value our inventories at the lower of cost or market. The cost is determined by the LIFO method
utilizing an internally generated index. We determine the LIFO cost on an interim basis by estimating
annual inflation trends, annual purchases and ending inventory levels for the fiscal year. Actual annual
inflation rates and inventory balances as of the end of any fiscal year may differ from interim estimates,
and, as such, estimates are adjusted in the fourth quarter of each year. Factors related to inventories, such
as future consumer demand and the economy’s impact on consumer discretionary spending, inventory
aging, ability to return merchandise to vendors, merchandise condition and anticipated markdowns, are
analyzed to determine estimated net realizable values. An adjustment is recorded to reduce the LIFO cost
of inventories, if required, to their estimated net realizable values. Any significant unanticipated changes
in the factors above could have a significant impact on the value of the inventories and our reported
operating results. Adjustments to earnings resulting from changes in historical loss trends have been
insignificant for 2006 and 2005. Further, we do not anticipate any significant change in LIFO that would
cause a significant change in our eamnings.

We estimate inventory shrinkage for the period from the last inventory date to the end of the reporting
period on a store-by-store basis. Our inventory shortage estimate can be affected by changes in
merchandise mix and changes in actual shortage trends. The shrinkage rate from the most recent physical
inventory, in combination with historical experience, is the basis for estimating shrinkage. As of February
3, 2007, our shrink reserve totaled $0.2 million, compared to $1.2 million as of January 28, 2006.
Additionally, during 2006 and 2005, inventory shrinkage amounted to approximately 0.5% and 0.4%,
respectively, of sales.

Vendor Allowances

We receive allowances from our vendors through a variety of programs and arrangements, including
cooperative advertising. Vendor allowances are recognized as a reduction of cost of sales upon the sale of
merchandise or SG&A when the purpose for which the vendor funds were intended to be used has been

fulfilled. Accordingly, a reduction in vendor allowances received would increase our cost of sales and/or
SG&A.

Vendor allowances have been accounted for in accordance with EITF 02-16. Vendor allowances
provided as a reimbursement of specific, incremental and identifiable costs incurred to promote a
vendor’s products are recorded as an SG&A reduction when the cost is incurred. All other vendor
allowances are initially deferred with the deferred amounts recognized as a reduction in cost of sales
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when the related product is sold. In 2006, 2005 and 2004, $10.1 million, $11.1 million and $12.6 million,
respectively, of vendor allowances has been reflected as a reduction to cost of sales.

As of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, deferred vendor allowances totaled (i) $9.4 million and
$11.1 million, respectively, for owned merchandise, which allowances are included as an offset to
merchandise inveritories on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, and (ii) $5.2 million and $7.5 million,
respectively, for merchandise received on consignment, which allowances are included as deferred
income on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Long-Lived Assets

Finlay’s judgment regarding the existence of impairment indicators is based on market and
operational performance. We assess the impairment of long-lived assets, primarily fixed assets, whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Factors we
consider important which could trigger an impairment review include the following:

e Significant changes in the manner of our use of assets or the strategy for our overall business;
* Significant negative industry or economic trends; or
e Store closings.

When we determine that the carrying value of long-lived assets may not be recoverable based upon the
existence of one or more of the above indicators of impairment, we recognize an impairment loss at the
time the undiscounted estimated future net cash flows expected to be generated by an asset (or group of
assets) is less than its carrying value. We measure impairment losses as the amount by which the asset’s
carrying value exceeds its fair value. To the extent future cash flows are less than anticipated, additional
impairment charges may result. There have been no adjustments to earnings resulting from the
impairment of long-lived assets for 2006. We also review the estimated useful lives of the assets and
reduce such lives if necessary. During 2006, we recorded charges of approximately $2.2 million related to
the accelerated depreciation of fixed assets for the Federated and Belk departments that closed in 2006
and for the Parisian departments that will close in 2007,

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue upon the sale of merchandise, either owned or consigned, to our customers, net
of anticipated returns and net of sales taxes collected. The provision for sales returns is based on historical
evidence of our return rate. As of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, our allowance for sales returns
totaled $1.9 million and $1.5 million, respectively. Adjustments to earnings resulting from revisions to
estimates on our sales return provision have been insignificant for 2006 and 2005. Layaway deposits are
not recognized as sales until fully paid for by the customer and the customer claims the merchandise.

Self-insurance Reserves

We are self-insured for medical and workers’ compensation claims up to certain maximum liability
amounts. Although the amounts accrued are determined based on an analysis of historical trends of losses,
settlements, litigation costs and other factors, the amounts that we will ultimately disburse could differ
materially from the accrued amounts. Self-insurance reserves aggregated $7.9 million and $7.1 million at
February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, respectively.

Income Taxes

In accordance with SFAS No. 109 “Accounting for Income Taxes,” income taxes must be accounted
for by the asset/liability method. The income tax effects of all revenues, expenses, gains, losses and other
events that create differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their amounts for financial
reporting are required to be recognized. Inherent in the measurement of these tax effects are certain
judgments and interpretations of existing tax law and other published guidance as applied to the
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Company’s operations. Our effective tax rate considers management’s judgment of expected tax liabilities
in the various taxing jurisdictions within which it is subject to tax. At any given time, multiple tax years
are open to audit by various taxing authorities. The recorded amounts of income tax are subject to
adjustment upon audit, changes in interpretation and changes in judgment utilized in determining
estimates.

Accounting for Acquisitions

In May 2005, Finlay Jewelry completed the acquisition of Carlyle, and in November 2006, Finlay
Jewelry completed the acquisition of Congress. These acquisitions have been accounted for under the
purchase method of accounting in accordance with SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations”. As such,
we have undertaken an analysis of the fair value of identified tangible and intangible assets and liabilities,
and determined the excess of fair value of net assets acquired over cost. We utilized estimates to
determine the fair value of inventory and certain acquisition costs.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the FASB issued Financial Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes — an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (“FIN 48~). FIN 48 prescribes a
comprehensive model for how companies should recognize, measure, present and disclose in their
financial statements uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return. Under FIN 48,
tax positions must be recognized in the financial statements when it is more likely than not that the
position will be sustained upon examination by the tax authorities. Such tax position must initially and
subsequently be recognized if it is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement with
the tax authority assuming full knowledge of the position and all relevant facts. FIN 48 also expands
disclosure requirements to include an annual tabular rollforward of unrecognized tax benefits. The
provisions of this interpretation are required to be adopted for fiscal periods beginning after December 15,
2006. The Company will be required to apply the provisions of FIN 48 to all tax positions upon initial
adoption with any cumulative effect adjustment to be recognized as an adjustment to retained earnings.
The Company is currently in the process of evaluating the impact of FIN 48.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (*SFAS No. 157).
SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands
disclosure of fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements
that require or permit fair value measurements and, accordingly, does not require any new fair value
measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We are
currently in the process of assessing the impact the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have on our
consolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities — Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115” (“SFAS No. 159”). This
statement permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair
value. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We are currently in
the process of assessing the impact the adoption of SFAS No. 159 will have on our consolidated financial
statements.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No.
108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current
Year Financial Statements” (“SAB No. 108”). SAB No. 108 provides interpretive guidance on how the
effects of prior-year uncorrected misstatements should be considered when quantifying misstatements in
the current year financial statements. SAB No. 108 requires registrants to quantify misstatements using
both an income statement (“rollover”) and balance sheet (“iron curtain”) approach and to evaluate
whether either approach results in a misstatement that, when all relevant quantitative and qualitative
factors are considered, is material. If prior year errors that had been previously considered immaterial are
now considered material, based on either approach not previously applied, no restatement is required so
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long as management properly applied its previous approach and all relevant facts and circumstances were
considered. If prior years are not restated, a cumulative effect adjustment is recorded in opening retained
earnings as of the beginning of the fiscal year of adoption. SAB No. 108 is effective for fiscal years
ending on or after November 15, 2006. The implementation of SAB No. 108 did not have any impact on
our results of operations or equity.

In June 2006, the FASB ratified the consensus of EITF Issue No. 06-3, “How Taxes Collected from
Customers and Remitted to Governmentai Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement
(That Is, Gross versus Net Presentation)” (“EITF Issue No. 06-3”). EITF Issue No. 06-3 provides that
gross or net presentation is an accounting policy decision that is dependent on the type of tax, and that
similar taxes are to be presented in a consistent manner. The provisions of EITF Issue No. 06-3 will be
effective as of the beginning of 2007, with early application permitted. Qur current accounting policy is to
present taxes within the scope of EITF Issue No. 06-3 on a net basis. Our adoption of EITF Issue No. 06-
3 will not result in a change in our accounting policy and, accordingly, will not have any effect on our
results of operations.

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Form 10-K includes forward-looking statements. All statements other than statements of
historical information provided herein are forward-looking statements and may contain information about
financial results, economic conditions, trends and known uncertainties. You can identify these forward-
looking statements by the use of words like "strategy," "expect,” "plan," "believe,” "will," "estimate,"
"intend," "project,” "goals," "target," "anticipating,” "hope" and other words of similar meaning. You can
also identify them by the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. The forward-
looking statements contained herein are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual
results, performances or achievements to differ materially from those reflected in, or implied by, the
forward-looking statements. Factors that might cause such a difference include, but are not limited to,
those discussed under "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.” Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially include, but are not
limited to:

e Our dependence on, or loss of, certain host store relationships, particularly with respect 1o
Federated, due to the concentration of sales generated by such host store groups;

¢ The impact of significant store closures by our host store groups;

e The seasonality of the retail jewelry business;

¢ The impact of changes in the popularity of malls and our host stores and mall traffic levels;

e  Our ability to identify, finance and integrate any future acquisitions into our existing business;
o  Our ability to continue to obtain substantial amounts of merchandise on consignment;

e Attacks or threats of attacks by terrorists or war which may negatively impact the economy
and/or the financial markets and reduce discretionary spending;

¢ The impact of fluctuations in gold and diamond prices;
s Competition in the retail jewelry business and fluctuations in our quarterly results;
o Our ability to collect net sales proceeds from our host stores and the impact of any host store

bankruptcy;
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o The availability to us of alternate sources of merchandise supply in the case of an abrupt loss of
any significant supplier;

e Our ability to identify and rapidly respond to fashion trends as well as our ability to maintain
flexible return privileges on owned merchandise;

e Our ability to increase comparable store sales, expand our business or increase the number of
departments we operate;

e  Our dependence on key officers;

e Our high degree of leverage and the availability to us of financing and credit on favorable terms;
¢  Qur compliance with applicable contractual covenants;

» Changes in regulatory requirements which are applicable to our business;

e The impact of future claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business; and

s Low or negative growth in the economy or in the financial markets which reduce discretionary
spending on goods perceived to be luxury items.

Readers are cautioned not to unduly rely on these forward-looking statements, which reflect
management's analysis, judgment, belief or expectation only as of the date hereof. We undertake no
obligation to publicly revise these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances that arise
after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. In addition to the disclosure
contained herein, readers should carefully review any disclosure of risks and uncertainties contained in
other documents we file or have filed from time to time with the Commission.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk through the interest rate on our borrowings under the Revolving Credit
Agreement, which has a variable interest rate. Based on the average amounts outstanding under the
Revolving Credit Agreement for 2006, a 100 basis point increase in interest rates would have resulted in
an increase in interest expense of approximately $0.7 million in 2006. In secking to minimize the risks
from interest rate fluctuations, we manage exposures through our regular operating and financing
activities. In addition, the majority of our borrowings are under fixed rate arrangements, as described in
Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Commodity Risk
We principally address commodity risk through retail price points. Our commodity risk exposure to

diamond, gold and other merchandise categories relates to market price fluctuations and we currently do
not engage in any hedging activities.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

We have had no disagreements with our independent registered public accounting firms regarding
accounting or financial disclosure matters.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management’s report on internal control over financial reporting is set forth on page F-2 of this
report and is incorporated herein by reference. Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting has been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP and Cherry, Bekaert
& Holland L.L.P., independent registered public accounting firms, as stated in their reports set forth on
pages F-3 and F-5, respectively, of this report.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with the participation of its Chief Executive Officer (“CEO™) and
Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”), carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of disclosure controls and
procedures pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-15 as of the end of the period covered by this report.
Based upon that evaluation, the CEO and CFO concluded that the design and operation of these
disclosure controls and procedures are effective in ensuring that material financial and non-financial
information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act are
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Commission’s
rules and forms.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting
The Company’s management, with the participation of the Company’s CEO and CFO, also conducted

an evaluation of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Exchange Act Rule
13a-15(f), to determine whether any changes occurred during the quarter ended February 3, 2007 that
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have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting. Based on that evaluation, there was no such change during the quarter ended February
3, 2007.

We excluded from our assessment any changes in internal control over financial reporting within our
Congress subsidiary, which was acquired in November 2006, and whose financial statements reflect total
assets and net sales constituting 4.7% and 0.9%, respectively, of the related consolidated financial
statement amounts as of and for the year ended February 3, 2007.

A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not
absolute, assurance that the objectives of the contro! system are met. Further, the design of a control
system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be
considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all controls systems, no evaluation
of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the
Company have been detected. The Company conducts periodic evaluations of its controls to enhance,
where necessary, its procedures and controls. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective
control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART I

Certain information incorporated herein by reference to our Proxy Statement described below is also
contained in the Finlay Jewelry Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 3, 2007.

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

In addition to the information set forth below regarding the Company’s executive officers and Codes
of Ethics, the information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the sections captioned
“Election of Directors,” “Corporate Governance, Board of Directors and Committees of the Board” and
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in our Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.

Executive Officers
.
Set forth below is certain information with respect to each of the current executive officers of the
Company and Finlay Jewelry.

Name Age Position
Arthur E, Reiner .......ccceeeicievvinns 66 Chairman of the Board, President and Chief

Executive Officer of the Company, Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of Finlay Jewelry and
Director

Joseph M, Melvin.........cccceneenee. 56 Executive Vice President and Chief Operating
Officer of the Company and President and Chief
Operating Officer of Finlay Jewelry

Leslie A. Philip.....coeccouecrrecnnnennee. 60 Executive Vice President and Chief Merchandising
Officer of the Company and Finlay Jewelry

Edward J. Stein.........ccoeevvnennens 62 Senior Vice President and Director of Stores of
Finlay Jewelry

Joyce Manning Magrini............... 51 Executive Vice President — Administration of Finlay
Jewelry

Bruce E. Zurlnick ............uuueen...... 55 Senior Vice President, Treasurer and Chief Financial

Officer of the Company and Finlay Jewelry

The business experience, principal occupations and employment of each of the executive officers of
the Company and Finlay Jewelry, together with their periods of service as executive officers of the
Company and Finlay Jewelry, are set forth below.

Arthur E. Reiner became Chairman of the Company effective February 1, 1999 and, from January
1995 to such date, served as Vice Chairman of the Company. Mr. Reiner has also served as President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company since January 30, 1996 and as Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer of Finlay Jewelry since January 3, 1995. Prior to joining Finlay, Mr. Reiner had spent
over 30 years with the Macy’s organization. From February 1992 to October 1994, Mr. Reiner was
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Macy’s East, a subsidiary of Macy’s. From 1988 to 1992, Mr.
Reiner was Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Macy’s Northeast, which was combined with
Macy’s Atlanta division to form Macy’s East in 1992. Mr. Reiner is also a director of New York &
Company, Inc.

Joseph M. Melvin was appointed as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of the
Company and President and Chief Operating Officer of Finlay Jewelry on May 1, 1997. From September
1975 to March 1997, Mr. Melvin served in various positions with May, including, from 1990 to March
1997, as Chairman and Chief Operating Officer of Filene’s (a division of May).
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Leslie A. Philip has been Executive Vice President and Chief Merchandising Officer of the Company
and Finlay Jewelry since May 1997. From May 1995 to May 1997, Ms. Philip was Executive Vice
President-Merchandising and Sales Promotion of Finlay Jewelry. From 1993 to May 1995, Ms. Philip
was Senior Vice President--Advertising and Sales Promotion of Macy’s, and from 1988 to 1993, Ms,
Philip was Senior Vice President—-Merchandise--Fine Jewelry at Macy’s. Ms. Philip held various other
positions at Macy’s from 1970 to 1988.

Edward J. Stein has been Senior Vice President and Director of Stores of Finlay Jewelry since July
1995. From December 1988 to June 1995, Mr. Stein was Vice President — Regional Supervisor of Finlay
Jewelry, and occupied similar positions with Finlay’s predecessors from 1983 to December 1988. Mr.
Stein held various other positions at Finlay from 1965 to 1983.

Joyce Manning Magrini has been Executive Vice President - Administration of Finlay Jewelry since
June 2005. From March 1999 to June 2005, Ms. Magrini was Senior Vice President of Human Resources
of Finlay Jewelry and from January 1995 to February 1999, Ms. Magrini was Vice President of Human
Resources. Ms. Magrini held various human resources and customer service positions at Macy’s from
June 1978 through December 1994.

Bruce E. Zurlnick has been Senior Vice President, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company and Finlay Jewelry since January 2000. From June 1990 to December 1999, he was Treasurer
of the Company and Vice President and Treasurer of Finlay Jewelry. From December 1978 through May
1990, Mr. Zurlnick held various finance and accounting positions with Finlay’s predecessors.

Codes of Ethics

We have adopted Codes of Ethics that apply to all of our directors and employees including, without
limitation, our CEQ, our CFO and all of our employees performing financial or accounting functions. Our
Codes of Ethics are posted on our website, www.finlayenterprises.com under the heading “Governance”
and are listed as exhibits to this Form 10-K. We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirement under Item
5.05 of Form 8-K regarding any amendments to, or waivers from, provisions of our Codes of Ethics by
posting such information on our website at the location specified above. However, the Company may
elect to disclose any such amendment or waiver in a report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission either
in addition to or in lieu of the website disclosure. We will provide to any person without charge, upon
request addressed to the Corporate Secretary at Finlay Enterprises, Inc., 529 Fifth Avenue, New York,
N.Y. 10017, a copy of the Codes of Ethics.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the sections captioned
“Executive Compensation” and “Director Compensation” in our Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the sections captioned “Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Equity Compensation Plan
Information™ in our Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the sections captioned “Certain
Transactions” and “Corporate Governance, Board of Directors and Committees of the Board” in our
Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
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Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the section captioned
“Principal Accountant Fees and Services” in our Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Documents filed as part of this report:

(1) Financial Statements.

See Financial Statements Index included in Item 8 of Part II of this Form 10-K.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules.

Schedule I — Condensed Financial Information of Registrant

Note: Schedules other than those referred to above have been omitted as inapplicable or not
required under the instructions contained in Regulation S-X or the information is included
elsewhere in the financial statements or the notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits.

(Exhibit Number referenced to Item 601 of Regulation S-K).

Item
Number

1.1

2.1

3.1

3.2(a)

3.2(b)

4.1

4.2

Description

Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 27, 2004, among the Company, Credit Suisse First
Boston LLC, J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. and SG Americas Securities, LLC (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 1.1 filed as part of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ended May 1, 2004 filed by the Company on June 10, 2004).

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated May 19, 2005, by and among Finlay Fine Jewelry
Corporation, FFJ Acquisition Corp., Carlyle & Co. Jewelers, certain stockholders of
Carlyle & Co. Jewelers and Russell L. Cohen (as stockholders’ agent) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.1 filed as part of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the
Company on May 25, 2005).

Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1
filed as part of the Annual Report on Form i0-K for the period ended January 28, 1995
filed by the Company on April 12, 1995).

Amended and Restated By-laws of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
3.2 filed as part of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended February 1,
2003 filed by the Company on May 1, 2003).

Second Amendment, dated as of September 10, 2003, to the Amended and Restated By-
Laws of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 filed as part of the
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended November 1, 2003 filed by the
Company on December 10, 2003).

Article Fourth of the Certificate of Incorporation and Articles IT and VI of the Bylaws.

Specimen Common Stock certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Form S-
1 Registration Statement, Registration No. 33-88938 filed by the Company on
January 31, 1995).




4.3(a)

4.3(b)

44

4.5(a)

4.5(b)

4.5(c)

4.5(d)

4.5(¢)

4.6

47

10.1*

10.2(2)*

Amended and Restated Stockholders® Agreement dated as of March 6, 1995 among the
Company, David B. Cornstein, Arthur E. Reiner and certain other security holders
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 filed as part of the Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the period ended January 28, 1995 filed by the Company on April 12, 1995).

Omnibus Amendment to Registration Rights and Stockholders’ Agreements dated as of
October 15, 1997 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 filed as part of the
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended November 1, 1997 filed by the
Company on December 16, 1997).

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of May 26, 1993 among the Company, David B.
Cornstein, and certain other security holders (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7
filed as part of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on June 10, 1993).

Indenture dated as of June 3, 2004 between Finlay Jewelry and HSBC Bank USA, as
Trustee, relating to Finlay Jewelry’s 8-3/8% Senior Notes due June 1, 2012 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.1 filed as part of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ended May 1, 2004 filed by the Company on June 10, 2004).

Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 19, 2005 among Carlyle & Co. Jewelers, Finlay
Jewelry and HSBC Bank USA, as Trustee, together with Subsidiary Guarantee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 filed as part of the Current Report on Form 8-
K filed by the Company on May 25, 2005).

Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 19, 2005 among J.E. Caldwell Co., Finlay
Jewelry and HSBC Bank USA, as Trustee, together with Subsidiary Guarantee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 filed as part of the Current Report on Form 8-
K filed by the Company on May 25, 2005).

Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 19, 2005 among Carlyle & Co. of Montgomery,
Finlay Jewelry and HSBC Bank USA, as Trustee, together with Subsidiary Guarantee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 filed as part of the Current Report on Form §-
K filed by the Company on May 25, 2005).

Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 19, 2005 among Park Promenade, Inc., Finlay
Jewelry and HSBC Bank USA, as Trustee, together with Subsidiary Guarantee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 filed as part of the Current Report on Form 8-
K filed by the Company on May 25, 2005).

Form of Finlay Jewelry’s 8-3/8% Senior Notes due June 1, 2012.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2004, between Finlay Jewelry and
Credit Suisse First Boston LLC, J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. and SG Americas Securities,
LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 filed as part of the Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the period ended May 1, 2004 filed by the Company on June 10, 2004).

Executive Medical Benefits Plan of Finlay Jewelry and the Company (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 of Form S-1 Registration Statement, Registration No. 33-59434
filed by the Company on March 11, 1993).

Employment Agreement, dated as of January 30, 2005, among the Company, Finlay
Jewelry and Arthur E. Reiner (including the forms of restricted stock agreements annexed
thereto) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 filed as part of the Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the period ended October 30, 2004 filed by the Company on December
9,2004).
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10.2(b)*

10.2(c)*

10.2(d)*

10.2(e)*

10.2(f)*

10.3

10.4(2)*

10.4(b)*

10.4(c)*

10.4(d)*

10.5(a)*

10.5(b)*

10.5(c)*

Employment Agreement dated as of June 16, 2005 between Joseph M. Melvin and Finlay

Jewelry (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 filed as part of the Current Report on
Form 8-K filed by the Company on June 22, 2005).

Employment Agreement dated as of June 16, 2005 between Leslie A. Philip and Finlay
Merchandising & Buying, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 filed as part of
the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on June 22, 2005).

Employment Agreement dated as of June 16, 2005 between Joyce Manning Magrini and
Finlay Jewelry (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 filed as part of the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on June 22, 2005).

Employment Agreement dated as of February 28, 2006 between Bruce E. Zurlnick and
Finlay Jewelry (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 filed as part of the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on March 8, 2006).

Employment Agreement dated as of February 28, 2006 between Edward J. Stein and
Finlay Jewelry (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 filed as part of the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on March 8, 2006).

Tax Allocation Agreement dated as of November 1, 1992 between the Company and
Finlay Jewelry (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 19.5 filed as part of the Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended May 1, 1993 filed by the Company on June
30, 1993).

Long Term Incentive Plan of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 19.6
filed as part of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended May 1, 1993
filed by the Company on June 30, 1993).

Amendment No. 1 to the Company’s Long Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.14(b) of the Form S-1 Registration Statement, Registration No.
33-88938 filed by the Company on January 31, 1995).

Amendment to the Company’s Long Term Incentive Plan, effective September 28, 2001
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11(c) filed as part of the Annual Report on Form
10-K for the period ended February 2, 2002 filed by the Company on April 29, 2002).

Form of Agreement and Certificate of Option Pursuant to the Long Term Incentive Plan
of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 filed as part of the Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended July 31, 1993 filed by the Company on
September 14, 1993).

1997 Long Term Incentive Plan, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12
filed as part of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended February 2, 2002
filed by the Company on April 29, 2002).

Amendment to the Company’s 1997 Long Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 filed as part of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the
Company on September 10, 2004).

Amendment to the Company’s 1997 Long Term Incentive Plan, effective May 8, 2006

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 filed as part of the Current Report on Form 8-
K filed by the Company on June 26, 2006).
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10.5(d)y*

10.6(a)*

10.6(b)*

10.6(c)*

10.6(d)*

10.7(a)*

10.7(b)*

10.8(a)

10.8(b)

10.8(c)

Amendment, dated February 27, 2007, to the Company’s 1997 Long Term Incentive
Plan.

The Company’s Executive Deferred Compensation and Stock Purchase Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 filed as part of Amendment No. | to the
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A for the period ended August 2, 2003 filed by the
Company on September 19, 2003).

Amendment No. 1, dated June 19, 2003, to the Company’s Executive Deferred
Compensation and Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 filed
as part of Amendment No. | to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A for the period
ended August 2, 2003 filed by the Company on September 19, 2003).

Amendment, dated February 27, 2007, to the Company's Executive Deferred
Compensation and Stock Purchase Plan.

Form of Deferral Agreement under the Company’s Executive Deferred Compensation
and Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 filed as part of the
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended November 1, 2003 filed by the
Company on December 10, 2003).

The Company’s Director Deferred Compensation and Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 filed as part of Amendment No. 1 to the Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q/A for the period ended August 2, 2003 filed by the Company on September
19, 2003).

Form of Deferral Agreement under the Company’s Director Deferred Compensation and
Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 filed as part of the
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended November 1, 2003 filed by the
Company on December 10, 2003).

Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of May 19, 2005 among Finlay
Jewelry, Carlyle & Co. Jewelers, the Company, General Electric Capital Corporation
(“G.E. Capital”), individually and in its capacity as administrative agent, Bank of
America, N.A,, individually and as documentation agent, and certain other lenders and
financial institutions parties thereto (the “Third Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement™) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 filed as part of the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on May 25, 2005).

Joinder Agreement dated as of May 19, 2005 for the benefit of G.E. Capital, as
administrative agent, in connection with (i) that certain Amended and Restated Guaranty
dated as of January 22, 2003 among the guarantors party thereto and G.E. Capital, (ii)
that certain Amended and Restated Security Agreement dated as of January 22, 2003
among the grantors party thereto and G.E. Capital and (iii) that certain Amended and
Restated Pledge Agreement dated as of January 22, 2003 among the pledgors party
thereto and G.E. Capital (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 filed as part of the
Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on May 25, 2005).

Amendment No. 1, dated April 7, 2006, to the Third Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement, among Finlay Jewelry, Carlyle & Co. Jewelers, the Company and G.E.
Capital, individually and in its capacity as administrative agent, Bank of America, N.A.,
individually and as documentation agent, and certain other banks and institutions
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 filed as part of the Current Report on Form §-
K filed by the Company on April 13, 2006).
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10.8(d)

10.8(¢)

10.9

10.10(a)

10.10(b)

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

Amendment No. 2, dated April 24, 2006, to the Third Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement, among Finlay Jewelry, Carlyle & Co. Jewelers, the Company and G.E.
Capital, individually and in its capacity as administrative agent, Bank of America, N.A.,
individually and as documentation agent, and certain other banks and institutions
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10(d) filed as part of the Annual Report on Form
10-K for the period ended January 28, 2006 filed by the Company on April 26, 2006).

Amendment No. 4, dated December 27, 2006, to the Third Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement, among Finlay Jewelry, Carlyle & Co. Jewelers, the Company and G.E.
Capital, individually and in its capacity as administrative agent, and certain other lenders
and financial institutions party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10(e) filed
as part of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on January 4, 2007).

Amended and Restated Guaranty, dated as of January 22, 2003, by Finlay Jewelry, Inc.
(“FI1”), Finlay Merchandising & Buying, Inc. (“Finlay Merchandising & Buying™) and
eFinlay, Inc. (“eFinlay”) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 filed as part of the
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended February 1, 2003 filed by the
Company on May 1, 2003).

Amended and Restated Security Agreement dated as of January 22, 2003, by and among
Finlay Jewelry, FJI, Finlay Merchandising & Buying, eFinlay and G.E. Capital,
individually and as agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 filed as part of the
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended February 1, 2003 filed by the
Company on May 1, 2003).

Amendment to Amended and Restated Security Agreement, dated as of May 19, 2005, by
and among Finlay Jewelry, FJI, Finlay Merchandising & Buying, eFinlay, Carlyle & Co.
Jewelers, Carlyle and Co. of Montgomery, Park Promenade, Inc. and J.E. Caldwell Co.,
and G.E. Capital, individually and as agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2
filed as part of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on May 25, 2005).

Amended and Restated Pledge Agreement dated as of January 22, 2003, by and among
Finlay Jewelry, FJI, Finlay Merchandising & Buying, eFinlay and G.E. Capital, as agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 filed as part of the Annual Report on Form
10-K for the period ended February 1, 2003 filed by the Company on May 1, 2003).

Amended and Restated Trademark Security Agreement dated as of January 22, 2003 by
Finlay Jewelry, FJl, Finlay Merchandising & Buying, eFinlay and in favor of G.E.
Capital, as agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 filed as part of the Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the period ended February 1, 2003 filed by the Company on
May 1, 2003).

Amended and Restated Patent Security Agreement dated as of January 22, 2003 by
Finlay Jewelry, FJI, Finlay Merchandising & Buying and eFinlay in favor of G.E.
Capital, as agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 filed as part of the Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the period ended February 1, 2003 filed by the Company on
May 1, 2003).

Amended and Restated Copyright Security Agreement dated as of January 22, 2003 by
Finlay Jewelry, FJi, Finlay Merchandising & Buying and eFinlay in favor of G.E.
Capital, as agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 filed as part of the Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the period ended February 1, 2003 filed by the Company on
May 1, 2003).




10.15

10.16

10.17*

10.18*

10.19*

10.20*

10.21*

10.22*

11.1

14.1

14.2

18.1

21.1

23.1

23.2

Second Amended and Restated Open-End Mortgage Deed and Security Agreement from
Finlay Jewelry to G.E. Capital, dated February 20, 2003, effective as of January 22, 2003
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 filed as part of the Annual Report on Form
10-K for the period ended February 1, 2003 filed by the Company on May 1, 2003).

Form of Officer’s and Director’s Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.4 filed as part of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
April 29, 1995 filed by the Company on June 3, 1995).

Restricted Stock Agreement, dated as of August 14, 2003, between the Company and
Arthur E. Reiner (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 filed as part of the Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended November 1, 2003 filed by the Company on
December 10, 2003).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement entered into by the Company in connection with
October 2003 restricted stock awards under the Company’s 1997 Long Term Incentive
Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 filed as part of the Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the period ended November 1, 2003 filed by the Company on December
10, 2003).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement entered into by the Company in connection with
restricted stock awards under the Company’s 1997 Long Term Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 filed as part of the Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the period ended May 1, 2004 filed by the Company on June 10, 2004).

The Company’s 2004 Cash Bonus Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 filed as
part of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on September 10, 2004).

Description of Director and Named Executive Officer Compensation.

Finlay Executive Severance Pay Plan, effective February 28, 2006.

Statement re: computation of earnings per share (not required because the relevant
computation can be clearly determined from material contained in the financial
statements).

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, dated December 2005 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 14.1 filed as part of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended
January 28, 2006 filed by the Company on April 26, 2006).

Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers.

Preferability letter from Deloitte & Touche LLP regarding change in inventory valuation
methodology (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 18 filed as part of the Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended Cctober 30, 2004 filed by the Company on
December 9, 2004).

Subsidiaries of the Company.

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
Consent of Cherry, Bekaert & Holland L.L.P., Independent Registered Public Accounting

Firm.
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311

31.2

32.1

322

*

(b
©

Certification of principal executive officer pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
Section 302.

Certification of principal financial officer pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
Section 302.

Certification of principal executive officer pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
Section 906.

Certification of principal financial officer pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
Section 906.

Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement,
Exhibits — See exhibit index included in Item 15(a)(3) of Part IV of this Form 10-K.

Financial Statement Schedules — See Item 15(a)(2) of Part I'V of this Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto
duly authorized.

Finlay Enterprises, Inc.
Date: April 19, 2007 By: /s/ ARTHUR E. REINER

Arthur E. Reiner
Chairman of the Board

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been
signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the
dates indicated:

Name Title Date
/s/ ARTHUR E. REINER Chairman of the Board, President, April 19, 2007
Arthur E. Reiner Chief Executive Officer and Director

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ BRUCE E. ZURLNICK Senior Vice President, Treasurer and April 19, 2007
Bruce E. Zurlnick Chief Financial Officer (Principal
Financial and Accounting Officer)

/sf DAVID B. CORNSTEIN Director April 19, 2007

David B. Cornstein
/s/ ROHIT M. DESAI Director April 19, 2007
Rohit M. Desai
/s/ ELLLEN R. LEVINE Director April 19, 2007

Ellen R. Levine

/s LOUIS LIPSCHITZ . Director April 19, 2007

Louis Lipschitz

/sy NORMAN S. MATTHEWS Director April 19, 2007

Norman S. Matthews

/sf CHARLES E. MCCARTHY Director April 19, 2007

Charles E. McCarthy

/st THOMAS M. MURNANE Director April 19, 2007

Thomas M, Murnane
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the
participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial
Officer (“CFQO”), we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting based on the framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation under the framework in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework, our management concluded that our internal control over
financial reporting was effective as of February 3, 2007.

We excluded from our assessment any changes in internal control over financial reporting within our
Congress subsidiary, which was acquired in November 2006, and whose financial statements reflect total
assets and net sales constituting 4.7% and 0.9%, respectively, of the related consolidated financial
statement amounts as of and for the year ended February 3, 2007.

Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
February 3, 2007 has been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP and by Cherry, Bekaert & Holland L.L.P.,
independent registered public accounting firms, as stated in their reports which are included herein. As
noted in their report, the audit of management’s assessment of intemal control over financial reporting by
Cherry, Bekaert & Holland, L.L.P. relates solely to Carlyle & Co. Jewelers, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Finlay Fine Jewelry Corporation.

/s/{ ARTHUR E. REINER
Arthur E. Reiner
President and Chief Executive Officer

/s BRUCE E. ZURLNICK
Bruce E. Zurlnick

Senior Vice President, Treasurer
and Chief Financial Officer




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors
of Finlay Enterprises, Inc.:

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Finlay Enterprises, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company™)
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. As described in Management’s Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting, management excluded from its assessment the internal control over financial
reporting at its L. Congress, Inc. subsidiary, which was acquired in November 2006 and whose financial
statements constitute $6,711,000 and $25,475,000 of net and total assets, respectively, $6,578,000 of net
sales, and $308,000 of income from continuing operations of the consolidated financial statement
amounts as of and for the year ended February 3, 2007. Accordingly, our audit did not include the
internal control over financial reporting at L. Congress, Inc. The Company's management is responsible
for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
management's assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit. We did not examine the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting of Carlyle & Co. Jewelers, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Finlay Fine Jewelry
Corporation, whose financial statements reflect total assets, net sales and income from continuing
operations constituting $75,634,000, $101,572,000 and $3,514,000, respectively, of the related
consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended February 3, 2007. The effectiveness
of Carlyle & Co. Jewelers’ internal control over financial reporting was audited by other auditors whose
report has been furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar as they relate to the effectiveness of Carlyle &
Co. Jewelers’ internal control over financial reporting, are based solely on the report of other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management's assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors provide a reasonabile basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision
of, the company's principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar
functions, and effected by the company's board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

F-3




Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of
the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, management's assessment that the
Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007, is fairly
stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Also in
our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the Company maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007, based on the
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for
the year ended February 3, 2007, of the Company and our report dated April 19, 2007 expressed an
unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule based on
our audit and the report of other auditors and includes an explanatory paragraph relating to the
Company’s adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment,
as revised, effective January 29, 2006, and the restatement of the accompanying fiscal 2005 and 2004
Statements of Operations for discontinued operations, in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

New York, New York
April 19, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors
of Carlyle & Co. Jewelers:

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Carlyle & Co. Jewelers (the “Company™) maintained
effective internal control over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007, based on criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management's assessment and an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management's assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of
the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management's assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of February 3, 2007, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of February 3, 2007, based on the
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.




We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the financial statements as of and for the year ended February 3, 2007, of the
Company and our report dated April 19, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial
statements based on our audit.

/sf CHERRY, BEKAERT & HOLLAND L.L.P.

Raleigh, North Carolina
April 19, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors
of Finlay Enterprises, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Finlay Enterprises, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the “Company™) as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, stockholders' equity and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended February 3, 2007. Our audits also included the financial statement
schedule listed in the Index at Item 15. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are
the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits. We did not audit the financial
statements of Carlyle & Co. Jewelers (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Finlay Fine Jewelry Corporation),
which statements reflect total assets constituting $75,634,000 and $62,323,000 of consolidated total assets
as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, respectively, and total net sales constituting $101,572,000
and $69,490,000 of consolidated total net sales for the years ended February 3, 2007 and January 28,
2006, respectively. Such financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Carlyle & Co. Jewelers,
is based solely on the report of such other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of other auditors, such consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Finlay Enterprises, Inc. and subsidiaries as
of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended February 3, 2007, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement
schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole,
present fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 2 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, (1) the Company adopted the
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), Shkare-Based Payment, on
January 29, 2006, and (2) the accompanying fiscal 2005 and 2004 Statements of Operations have been
restated for discontinued operations, in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of
February 3, 2007, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated April 19,
2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on management's assessment of the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control over financial reporting and an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audits and the report of other auditors.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

New York, New York
April 19, 2007



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors
Carlyle & Co. Jewelers
Greensboro, North Carolina

We have audited the balance sheets of Carlyle & Co. Jewelers, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Finlay Fine
Jewelry Corporation, {the “Company™), as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, and the related
statements of operations and retained earnings, and cash flows for the year ended February 3, 2007 and
the 37 week period ended January 28, 2006. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Carlyle & Co. Jewelers, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Finlay Fine Jewelry
Corporation, as of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for the year ended February 3, 2007 and the 37 week period ended January 28, 2006 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of Carlyle & Co. Jewelers’ internal control over financial
reporting as of February 3, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated
April 19, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sfCHERRY, BEKAERT & HOLLAND L.L.P.

Raleigh, North Carolina
April 19, 2007
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FINLAY ENTERPRISES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Year Ended
February 3, January 28, January 29,
2007 2006 2005
SALES.....ceecictiteiiete et $ 761,795 $ 709,731 $ 646,265
COSt OF BALES ..ottt s re e 402,915 361,855 322,432
GrOSS MATZIN ....veeerieeeeveveeriere et saeses e seasenesasaans 358,880 347,876 323,833
Selling, general and administrative eXpenses ............cceceevevenennne 331,261 312,694 290,887
Credit associated with the closure of Sonab .........ccccocevvnrnnnnnnen, - - (364)
Depreciation and amortization............ccceccecreorecnicrrerieenerscnenseanne 15,137 14,712 14,512
Impairment of goOdWill........cccoiiniiinininnninci s - 77,288 -
Income (loss) from operations........cccoceevevniecveneemicrnninscensieene 12,482 (56,818) 18,798
INErESt EXPENSE, NEL......ccccererevenrienrerrerereneirrressrrrrnrarreesssiesasiessas 23,501 21,903 20,579
Other eXpense ..ot - 79 9,090
Loss from continuing operations before
INCOIME LAXES ..cvovremrerrrrevnrnereeirseireseesessessressasnssessssssassassanans (11,019) (78,800) (10,871)
Benefit for inCome taxes........cccorveeverieeieenenienrininrsseesneseseessennes {4,637) (6,005) (5,796)
Loss from continuing operations ........c..c.ccoveveercnenccriccnoannas {6,382) (72,795) {5.075)
Discontinued operations, net of taX ...........cccccnveenvincncnicncene. 10,790 17,059 21,100
Net iNCOME (J0SS) ..veuvevenreeecrrrriernrreeeeaseernrssersrasaesssssessssns $ 4,408 $ (55,736) $ 16,025
Net income (loss) per share applicable to common shares:
Basic net income (loss) per share:
Loss from continuing operations ..........ccecueeinnvriaeenennes $ (0.71) $ (8.11) $ (0.58)
Discontinued operations, net of tax .......c.cccccncniinisiicinncnas 1.20 1.90 241
Basic net income (loss) per share ...........ccocoovvevvrevereeenrenns $ 049 $  (6.21) $ 1.83
Diluted net income (loss) per share:
Loss from continuing Operations ............coveverinncesesscniincnnas $  (0.71) $ (8.1 $ (0.58)
Discontinued operations, net of taX ........coccovrvvcererecrernenniens 1.20 1.90 2.4]
Diluted income (loss) per Share ...........cocceceveeemeecieeeeerennns $ 049 $ (6.21) $ 1.83
Weighted average shares and share equivalents outstanding:
BASIC ..vooveeieieiciieiie e 9,016,730 8,980,621 8,737,272
DIIUEA ...t 9,016,730 8,980,621 8,737,272

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



FINLAY ENTERPRISES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

February 3, January 28,
2007 2006
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash eqQUIVALENLS ..........vvireesrarcrsrrrersrermesirrnrresrrrsriirisrsserrssrerrrseinesssaes $ 2415 $ 28,191
ACCOUNES TECEIVADBIE L..ooeeeee e e e e 26,271 39,034
OHhEr TeCRIVADIES ... v iveeecrrrrrvrirrrrsreresreeecrrrre v rerrre e seeresssman e enerrrerarsresseseessasnsssnares 2,314 43,203
MerchandisSe INVENLOTIES. ........cccuvsverrreerirsiriieiieisrs it e eeseneassresorssssassssossasssnesnnas 430,479 331,757
Prepaid expenses and other ... 4,356 4,232
TOA] CUITENE ASSELS uvvveverriririisrersresrersrresstrisrrssressrsinesinrerrsssransrsesrarsessressrnossnesnnes 465,835 446,417
Fixed assets; '
Building, equipment, fixtures and leaschold improvements...........cocoovrveverernrvernna 98,229 116,267
Less — accumulated depreciation and amontization .........coeeceeeveeereereevessecereeessenns 43,236 55,903
FIXEA ASSELS, NEL.1eccvveerreririiireeerreerrsssresinreiressnssssesserssassrassssersssosnessnessserssersserssssrass 54,993 60,364
Deferred charges and other assets, Net .........ccccvicmiinicninennn e 13,517 14,701
GOOAWILL ..ot rrass st asaesa s st e s e s e s a e rabaresersaseresaresnsarsssasssassearansasnts 3,009 -
TOUAL BSSELS.cvveverrararsrsrersrseresssersrserermeresarerersserereresmsessessntes sesarasmsressnsesesesensnsnsssssees $ 537,354 $ 521,482
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
Current liabilities:
SHOTT-tErmN DOITOWINES .......cvemrererirrererccrnrerereresernsnssasasssrsssssssssrsaseasasassarssisseseresssnecs $ 45876 5 -
Accounts payable — trade ... 85,053 111,452
Accrued liabilities:
Accrued salaries and Benefits........cccoicevvereereerieerieessesisss s esseeens 16,940 17,139
Accrued miSCllANEOUS TAXES ... .ooiuieeeiieririiemiiesst s eitss e sbessirtesabrssies s sabsssrtnsasssees 7,226 7,869
ACCTUCH INMEETESE ....evvveveeieeeseree v brreeseeeeereeessssastssesstensneeseassinbnbesensitesenbssnsamanbean 2,874 3,031
DEfEITEd INMCOIME ... eiiiiererereesitiirrrerereetresseesaressrastossessnnesrnssrararsessessressressressnserannn 5,206 7,543
Deferred iNCOME tAXES ......oiiiivicererreresiessresseissesseeserraereresssmesresssaesressarassessasssnees 13,322 12,426
L0 1 =1 O U SOOI RSO 16,394 13,831
Income taxes PAYADIE .......ccceviiir i e s 13,471 20,770
Total curTent HADIlITIES. .....oivevrrrerermrrrsrrrers e erereseesesemsany e seceeanessssba s sasesensseassas 206,362 194,061
Long-teTm debt .....c.cv i eresesae e e b s s 200,000 200,000
DEfErTed IMCOME LAXES ..vvevrerriereenrercereeemreeeeereseesessesneeeermereeeamereesreeseebtatnsstesbestesmbessssas 7,827 10,171
Other Non-Current HabIlItIES.. ... cvvrveeeererrrrrrrereress oo ee s s sese e e e eemesneee e eee e s e ss s emeees 936 965
TOLA] HABIIHIES ..o issiceiiti sttt sis s ssss s sabessssses s ssnesssssessassbosnsssasassraninsas 415,125 405,197
Commitments and contingencies (Note 18)
Stockholders’ equity:
Common Stock, par value $.01 per share; authorized 25,000,000 shares;
issued 11,348,017 and 11,214,614 shares, at February 3, 2007 and
January 28, 2006, respectively........ccvvvniiiiiiin e 113 112
Additional paid-in CapItal ............cccoiicieiiiinii s ssnae 92,999 92,505
RetAINEd CAIMUNES ...evvveeeeeveerirerrerreeesesnsee et ene b s st saem st bbb b e b 56,704 52,296
Unamortized restricted stock cOmMPpensation ..........o oot - (1,593)
Accumulated other comprehensive iNCOME........coveerreereeeemeeeeere e eenns - 364
Less treasury stock, of 2,227,366 and 2,207,904 shares, at February 3, 2007
and January 28, 2006, respectively, at COSt.......comnrerriierecrcrcerntec e {27,587) (27,399)
Total StOCKhOIETS’ EQUILY ....oeeeeieee et se s s st ssnasasessanes 122,229 116,285
Total liabilities and stockholders’ eqUItY .........cocevireeieneeinnrsce s e $ 537,354 $ 521,482

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated balance sheets.
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FINLAY ENTERPRISES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(in thousands, except share data)

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)y
Unamortized
Commeoen Stock Additional Restricted Total
Nomber Paid-in Retained Stock Treasury Stockholders* Comprehensive
of Shares Amount Capital Earmings Compensation Stock Equity Income (Loss)
Balance, January 31, 2004 ............. 9,017,921 $ 108 $ 82,808 $ 92,007 $ (1,490) $ (20,537 $ 152,89
Net iNCOME ..occecrvvrereesririserraranes - - - 16,025 - - 16,025 $ 16,025
Change in fair vatue of gold
forward contracts, net of tax..... - - - - 27 - 7 _ @
Comprehensive income.............. $ 15,998
Exercise of stock options
and related tax benefit............. 364,201 4 4,964 - - - 4068
Issuance of restricted stock and
restricted stock units................. - - 2,276 - (1,453) - 823
Amortization of restricted stock
compensation and restricted
stock units - - - - 1,358 - 1,358
Purchase of reasury stock .......... (392,745) - - - - (6,862) (6,862)
Balance, January 29, 2005 ............. 8,989,377 112 90,048 108,032 (1,612) (27,399) 169,181
NEt 1085 ..ovvviereceinieeeeee e - - - (55,736) - - (55,736} $ (55,736)
Change in fair value of gold
forward contracts, net of tax..... - - - - 476 - 476 476
Comprehensive loss .................... $ !55,260!
Exercise of stock options
and related tax benefit.............. 17,333 - 209 - - - 209
Issuance of restricted stock and
restricted stock units................ - - 2,248 - (1,309) - 939
Amortization of restricted stock
compensation and restricted
SEOCK UNILS 1vevverveiiraneseererrnnans - - - - 1,216 - 1,216
Balance, January 28, 2006 ... 9,006,710 112 92,505 52,296 (1,229) (27,399) 116,285
Net INCOME..v.vvnnineereerrncarsronsssens - - - 4,408 - - 4,408 $ 4408
Change in fair value of gold
forward contracts, net of tax ... - - - - {364) - (364) (364)
Comprehensive income............. $ 4,044
Issuance of common stock.......... 132,403 1 - - - - 1
Reversal of unamortized
restricted stock compensation.. - - {1,593) - 1,593 - -
Exercise of stock options and
related tax benefit........cceni, 1,000 - 8 - - - 8
Stock OpHions exXpense .......vw.eun. - - 95 - - - 95
Issuance of restricted stock
and restricted stock units ....... - - 565 - - - 565
Amortization of restricted stock
compensation and restricted
SLOCK UNILS..ovvrvceressesrrarerananans - - 1,419 - - - 1,419
Purchase of treasury stock
(NOLE 6) et (19,462) - - - - (188) {188)
Balance, February 3, 2007 ......... 9,120,651 £ 113 $ 92,999 $ 56,704 $ - $ (27,587) §$122,229
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FINLAY ENTERPRISES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year Ended
February 3, January 28, January 29,
2007 2006 2005

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Nt IRCOME (JOSS).eerarrerarrrnrreresreserinrmiiesssisssssomassbeassinseeseseseessrareasssrsnssssasssrasssssnssssssnsss $ 4,408 $(55,736) $ 16,025
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided '
by (used in) operating activities:

Impairment of BOOAWIlL.........c..circrcricrins s s s ens 77,288

Depreciation and amortization............cocccevnmenriisnseonenas 18,397 19,125 17,319
Loss on disposal of fixed aSSets......cccrerviersrverrenssrarvereans 6,072 182 902
Amortization of deferred financing costs 1,319 1,185 1,125
Amortization of restricted stock compensation and restricted stock units ........c.o....... 1,419 1,216 1,358
Loss on extinguishment 0f debL............cccriiinimiii e nes - - 9,090
Credit associated with the closure of SOnab ......ooieieiiee e - - (364)
Deferred income tax provision (1,409) (5,457 12,337
L0 i (T 20 1 = U O OSSR (265) 106 1,180
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects from purchase
of Congress in 2006 and Carlyle in 2005 (Notes 15 and 16):
{Increase) decrease in accounts and other receivables ... s insnennans 4,810 (23,057) 1,769
{Increase) decrease in merchandise inventories........ooiienccaine (33,069) 1,989 (5,641)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other...........cocovrveriern, 87 (262) (342)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (45,010) 10,730 (27,717
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES .......... (43,241) 27,309 27,041
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of equipment, fixtures and leasehold improvements...........ccoceccvveevnneiienens (11,834) (11,869 {12,667)
Acquisition of Congress, net of cash acquired........cvcivininn e (6,26()) - -
Acquisition of Carlyle, net of cash acquired ..o e - (28,790) -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES........cccoovmvrnireneeninnsiennes (18,094) {40,659) {12,667)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from revolving credit facility.........cocoenimvriimscnmrcsne s eenenne 794,138 733,314 590,311
Principal repayments on revolving credit facility ..o (748,262) (733,314) (590,311)
Payment of Congress debt assumed upon acquisition (10,031) - -
Payment of Carlyle debt assumed upon acquisition ... - (17,137) -
Proceeds from iSSUANCe OF SENTOL NOLES...crvarerrererrarrrrararrrrsesiereorerressressssnraesesssnssassens - - 200,000
Purchase and redemption of Old Senior Debentures and Old Senior Notes................. - - (231,971)
Capitalized fINANCIIE COBLS 1.voviinierivemeriieieessioseermsesirmseses s seesseneessess sesessssasessessesssnsssrsas (700) 311 (5,088)
Bank OVETATAIL.......cciivuerireetinrecretennsrerns e seersec et ses et esemssase st sasacsensatsmssarereassesasasees 594 (5,600) (1,248)
Purchase of treasury stock (188) - (6,862)
Stock Options eXErCised ........c..ooiecivcrrereere e e e 8 146 3,936
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES ............ 35,559 {22,902) (41,233)
DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS .......ccccoviccininincrennnene (25,776) (36,252) (26,859)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR.......cccccovomriineeiineennens 28,191 64,443 91,302
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR ... necsniss e $ 2415 $ 28,191 $ 64,443
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
INEETESt PAIL....uiieciiremiienirisiinarisncer e sesssessesteseemss s serese s nne s sneassassesenssesemessansessane $ 23,033 $ 23,213 $ 23,695
Income taxes paid (FefUNAEd) ........ccveiviierniiiiinies it etee e s ete e enems e $ 11,121 $ 7,159 § (5982)
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH ACTIVITIES:
Tax benefit from exercise 0f StOCK OPONS ...cvvirieerirernerir et e esnansenne 5 - 3 63 $ 1,028
Restricted stock units issuance costs accrued not yet paid.......oooveveeoeceveenevverenn £ 514 § 546 $ 636
Accrual for purchases of fiXed 8SSets.......cvrvvcrennicsrensi s s $ 3436 $ 2,548 $ 1990
Reclassification of other receivables to merchandise inventories...........occooveeueeeec... $ 49,068 s - $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FINLAY ENTERPRISES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1--ORGANIZATION OF THE COMPANY

Finlay Enterprises, Inc. (the “Company”, the “Registrant”, “we”, “us” and “our”), a Delaware
corporation, conducts business through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Finlay Fine Jewelry Corporation and
its wholly-owned subsidiaries (“Finlay Jewelry™). References to “Finlay” mean collectively, the Company
and Finlay Jewelry. We are a retailer of fine jewelry products and primarily operate licensed fine jewelry
departments in department stores throughout the United States. All references herein to licensed
departments refer to fine jewelry departments operated purswant to license agreements with host
department stores.

In May 2005, Finlay Jewelry completed the acquisition of Carlyle & Co. Jewelers (“Carlyle™).
Carlyle currently operates 33 specialty jewelry stores in nine states located primarily in the southeastern
United States under the Carlyle & Co., J.E. Caldwell & Co. and Park Promenade trade names. Carlyle’s
results of operations are included in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations since the
date of acquisition.

In November 2006, Finlay Jewelry completed the acquisition of L. Congress, Inc. (“Congress™).
Congress currently operates five specialty jewelry stores in southwest Florida. Congress’ results of
operations are included in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations since the date of
acquisition.

As a result of the store closings in 2006 associated with the Federated Department Stores, Inc.
(“Federated™) and The May Department Stores Company (“May™) merger, the resuits of operations for the
194 departments that were either divested or phased into the Macy’s East or Macy’s West divisions have
been segregated from those of continuing operations, net of tax, and classified as discontinued operations
for all periods presented. Additionally, as a result of the decision by Belk, Inc. (*Belk™) not to renew
Finlay Jewelry’s license agreement, the results of operations of the 75 Belk departments that closed in
January 2007 have been segregated from those of continuing operations, net of tax, and classified as
discontinued operations for all periods presented. Unless otherwise indicated, the following discussion
relates to our continuing operations. See Note 13 for additional information regarding discontinued
operations.

In December 2006, Finlay Jewelry’s revolving credit agreement with General Electric Capital
Corporation (“G.E. Capital”) and certain other lenders was amended and restated (the “Revolving Credit
Agreement”). The Revolving Credit Agreement, which matures in January 2011, provides Finlay Jewelry
with a senior secured revolving line of credit up to $225.0 million (the “Revolving Credit Facility™). In
addition, we intend to increase the size of the Revolving Credit Facility in 2007 as a result of the
conversion of the gold merchandise to owned inventory (refer to Note 3), resulting in a larger collateral
base.

NOTE 2-SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Consolidation: The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the
Company and our wholly-owned subsidiary, Finlay Jewelry. Intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Significant estimates in these Consolidated Financial Statements include
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FINLAY ENTERPRISES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2-SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

merchandise inventories, vendor allowances, useful lives of finite-lived assets, accounting for acquisitions,
self-insurance reserves, income taxes and other accruals. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Fiscal Year: Our fiscal year ends on the Saturday closest to January 31. References to 2007, 2006,
2005 and 2004 relate to the fiscal year ending on February 2, 2008, and the fiscal years ended on February
3, 2007, January 28, 2006, and January 29, 2005, respectively. Each of the fiscal years includes 52 weeks,
except 2006, which includes 53 weeks.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: We consider cash on hand and deposits in money market funds as cash
and cash equivalents.

Merchandise Inventories: Consolidated inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market
determined by the last-in, first-out (“LIFO”) method using internally developed indices. Inventory is
reduced for estimated obsolescence or unmarketable inventory equal to the difference between the cost of
inventory and the estimated market value based upon assumptions about future demand and market
conditions.

During the majority of 2006, and from time to time in past years, we have entered into forward
contracts based upon the anticipated sales of consigned gold merchandise. These contracts aided our
efforts in hedging against the risk of gold price fluctuations, as the cost of gold for our consigned gold
merchandise was not fixed until the merchandise was sold. For the years ended February 3, 2007, January
28, 2006 and January 29, 2005, the gain/loss on open forward contracts was not material. At February 3,
2007, we had no open positions in gold forward contracts. At January 28, 2006, we had two open positions
in gold forward contracts totaling 10,000 fine troy ounces to purchase gold for $5.1 million. The fair value
of gold under such contracts was $5.7 million at January 28, 2006.

Hedging: Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities”, as amended, establishes accounting and reporting standards for
derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for
hedging activities. Under SFAS No. 133, all derivatives, whether designated in hedging relationships or
not, are required to be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. SFAS No. 133 defines requirements for
designation and documentation of hedging relationships, as well as ongoing effectiveness assessments,
which must be met in order to qualify for hedge accounting. For a derivative that does not qualify as a
hedge, changes in fair value would be recorded in earnings immediately.

During 2006, and in past years, we had designated our existing derivative instruments, consisting of
gold forward contracts, as cash flow hedges. For derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges,
the effective portion of the change in the fair value of the derivative is recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income, a separate component of stockholders’ equity, and is reclassified into cost of sales
when the offsetting effects of the hedged transaction impact earnings. Changes in the fair value of the
derivative attributable to hedge ineffectiveness are recorded in earnings immediately. At February 3, 2007,
we had no open positions in gold forward contracts. At January 28, 2006, the fair value of the gold forward
contracts resulted in the recognition of an asset of $0.6 million. The amount recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income at January 28, 2006 of $0.4 million, net of tax, was reclassified into earnings
during 2006.

Stock Based Compensation: Effective January 29, 2006, we began recording compensation expense
associated with stock options and other forms of equity compensation in accordance with SFAS No. 123R,
“Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123R”), as interpreted by the Securities and Exchange Commission
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FINLAY ENTERPRISES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(the “Commission”) Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107. Prior to Janvary 29, 2006, we had accounted for
stock options according to the provisions of Accounting Principles Board (“APB™) Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees™, and related interpretations, under which no compensation
expense was recorded for awards granted without intrinsic value. We adopted the modified prospective
transition method provided for under SFAS No. 123R, and, consequently, have not retroactively adjusted
results from prior periods. Under this method, compensation cost recorded for stock options during 2006
included amortization of the remaining unvested portion of the stock option awards granted prior to
January 29, 2006, based on the estimated fair value. Moreover, in accordance with the provisions of SFAS
No. 123R, we reversed the balance in deferred compensation to additional paid-in-capital on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets upon adoption of SFAS No. 123R.

Depreciation and Amortization: Depreciation and amortization are computed by the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the fixed assets; generally, four years for displays, three to 15
years for fixtures, computers and equipment and 30 to 39 years for buildings. Leasehold improvements and
other fixed assets are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the expected term of the
license or lease agreements.

Software Development Costs: Software development costs have been accounted for in accordance
with Statement of Position (the “SOP”) No. 98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software
Developed or Obtained for Internal Use”. The SOP states that software development costs that are
incurred in the preliminary project stage are expensed as incurred. Once the specified criteria of the SOP
have been met, internal and external direct costs incurred in developing or obtaining computer software as
well as related interest costs are capitalized. Training and data conversion costs are expensed as incurred.
In addition, costs incurred for the routine operation and maintenance of management information systems
and software are expensed as incurred. Amortization is computed by the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the software ranging from three to seven years.

Included in Deferred charges and other assets, net in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets at
both February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, are capitalized software costs of $23.0 million and
accumulated amortization of $19.0 million and $15.8 million, respectively.

Net Income (Loss) per share: Net income (loss) per share has been computed in accordance with
SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share”. Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share were calculated using
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during each period, with options to purchase common
stock, par value $0.01 per share (“Common Stock™), restricted stock and restricted stock units, included in
diluted net income (loss) per share, using the treasury stock method, to the extent that such options,
restricted stock and restricted stock units were dilutive. As we had a loss from continuing operations for
2006, 2005 and 2004, the stock options, restricted stock and restricted stock units are not considered in the
calculation of diluted net loss per share due to their antidilutive effect. As a result, the weighted average
number of shares outstanding used for basic and diluted net loss per share calculations were the same.
Total stock options, restricted stock and restricted stock units outstanding were 1,451,481, 1,411,094 and
1,387,139 at February 3, 2007, January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005, respectively, with option prices
ranging from $7.05 to $24.31 per share.

Deferred Financing Costs: Deferred financing costs are amortized over the term of the related debt
agreements using the straight line method, which approximates the effective interest method. Net deferred
financing costs totaled $4.4 million at February 3, 2007 and $5.1 million at January 28, 2006, net of
accumulated amortization of $3.5 million and $2.6 million, respectively. The deferred financing costs are
reflected as a component of Deferred charges and other assets, net in the accompanying Consolidated
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FINLAY ENTERPRISES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2—-SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Balance Sheets. Amortization of deferred financing costs for 2006, 2005 and 2004 totaled $1.3 miilion,
$1.2 million and $1.1 million, respectively, and have been recorded as a component of Interest expense,
net in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. Refer to Note 5 for additional
information regarding deferred financing costs.

Revenue Recognition: We recognize revenue upon the sale of merchandise, either owned or
consigned, to our customers, net of anticipated returns and net of sales taxes collected. The provision for
sales returns is based on our historical return rate. Both Carlyle and Congress offer their customers a
layaway plan that allows them to set merchandise aside and pay for it over a period of time with no finance
charges. Receipts of layaway deposits are recorded as a liability on the balance sheet and are included in
other current liabilities, which totaled approximately $0.7 million and $0.6 million at February 3,
2007 and January 28, 2006, respectively. Layaway deposits are not recognized as sales until fully paid
for by the customer and the customer claims the merchandise.

Cost of Sales: Cost of sales includes the cost of merchandise sold, repair expense, shipping, shrinkage
and inventory losses. Store payroll, buying and occupancy costs such as license fees are reflected in

Selling, general and administrative expenses (“SG&A?”) in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

Advertising Costs: All costs associated with advertising are expensed in the month that the advertising
takes place. For 2006, 2005 and 2004, gross advertising expenses were $36.7 million, $45.3 million and
$45.4 million, respectively, and are included in SG&A in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

Vendor Allowances: We receive allowances from our vendors through a variety of programs and
arrangements, including cooperative advertising. Vendor allowances are recognized as a reduction of cost
of sales upon the sale of merchandise or SG&A when the purpose for which the vendor funds were
intended to be used has been fulfilled. Accordingly, a reduction in vendor allowances received would
increase our cost of sales and/or SG&A.

Vendor allowances have been accounted for in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”)
Issue No. 02-16, “Accounting by a Customer (Including a Reseller) for Cash Consideration Received from
a Vendor” (“EITF 02-16™). EITF 02-16 addresses the accounting treatment for vendor allowances and
provides that cash consideration received from a vendor should be presumed to be a reduction of the prices
of the vendors’ product and should therefore be shown as a reduction in the purchase price of the
merchandise. Further, these allowances should be recognized as a reduction in cost of sales when the
related product is sold. To the extent that the cash consideration represents a reimbursement of a specific,
incremental and identifiable cost, then those vendor allowances should be used to offset such costs.

As of February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, deferred vendor allowances totaled (1) $9.4 million and
$11.1 million, respectively, for owned merchandise, which allowances are included as an offset to
Merchandise inventories on our Consolidated Balance Sheets, and (ii) $5.2 million and $7.5 million,
respectively, for merchandise received on consignment, which allowances are included as Deferred income
on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Store Opening Costs: The cost of opening new locations are expensed as incurred.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: Cash, accounts receivable, short-term borrowings, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities are reflected in the Consolidated Financial Statements at fair value due to
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FINLAY ENTERPRISES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

the short-term maturity of these instruments. The fair value of our debt is disclosed in Note 5. The fair
value of our consigned inventory is disclosed in Note 3.

Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets: SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, addresses financial accounting and reporting for the
impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. This Statement extends the reporting requirements to include
reporting separately as discontinued operations, components of an entity that have either been disposed of
or classified as held-for-sale. Refer to Note 13 for additional information regarding discontinued
operations.

Discontinued Operations: We account for closing stores as discontinued operations when the
operations and cash flows of a store being disposed of are eliminated from on-going operations and we do
not have any significant continuing involvement in its operations. In reaching the determination as to
whether the cash flows of a store will be eliminated from ongoing operations, we consider whether it is
likely that customers will migrate to similar stores in the same geographic market and our consideration
includes an evaluation of the proximity to the disposed store.

Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities: We record liabilities for costs
associated with exit or disposal activities when the liabilities are incurred.

Goodwill: As of January 29, 2005, we had $77.3 million of goodwill. During 2005, an impairment of
goodwill was recorded and the entire balance was eliminated. Refer to Note 14. As a result of the Congress
acquisition in 2006, goodwill of $3.0 million was recorded in the stand-alone jewelry store segment. As
the goodwill has an indefinite life, we will perform an assessment of goodwill impairment each year or as
impairment indicators arise in accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”.

Intangible Assets: As a result of the Carlyle and Congress acquisitions, tradenames and other
intangible assets were recorded and are included in Deferred charges and other assets, net in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. Indefinite lived intangible assets, consisting of tradenames,
are tested for impairment each year or as impairment indicators arise in accordance with SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. The other intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis
over their useful lives and the weighted average amortization period is 6.3 years. The amortization over the
next five years is approximately $0.1 million per year. Following is a summary of our intangible assets
{dollars in thousands):

Trade-

names Other Total
Balance at January 29, 2005.......c.c.covnrnree. 5 -  J 5 -
Intangible assets acquired........c.ccoeninienan. 580 207 787
AMOTHZAON .....coreeeeceemteee e cninee - (15) (15)
Balance at January 28, 2006 580 192 772
Intangible assets acquired.... 1,700 600 2,300
Amortization .......coceveeeeenne - - (55 (55)
Balance at February 3, 2007 $ 2,280 $ 737 $ 3,017

Seasonality: A significant portion of our revenues are generated in the fourth quarter due to the
seasonality of the retail industry. As such, results for interim periods are not indicative of annual results.
Refer to Note 19 for unaudited quarterly financial data.

New Accounting Pronouncements: In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”™) issued Financial Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 prescribes a comprehensive model for how
companies should recognize, measure, present, and disclose in their financial statements uncertain tax
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2—SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuned)

positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return. Under FIN 48, tax positions must be recognized in
the financial statements when it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon
examination by the tax authorities. Such tax position must be initially and subsequently recognized if it is
greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the tax authority assuming full
knowledge of the position and all relevant facts. FIN 48 also expands disclosure requirements to include an
annual tabular rollforward of unrecognized tax benefits. The provisions of this interpretation are required
to be adopted for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company will be required to
apply the provisions of FIN 48 to all tax positions upon initial adoption with any cumulative effect
adjustment to be recognized as an adjustment to retained earnings. The Company is currently in the
process of evaluating the impact of FIN 48.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS No. 1577).
SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure
of fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or
permit fair value measurements and, accordingly, does not require any new fair value measurements.
SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We are currently in the
process of assessing the impact the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have on our consolidated financial
statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities — Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115” (“SFAS No. 159”). This
statement permtits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair
value. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We are currently in
the process of assessing the impact the adoption of SFAS No. 159 will have on our consolidated financial
statements.

In September 2006, the Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, “Considering the
Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial
Statements”™ (“SAB No. 108™). SAB No. 108 provides interpretive guidance on how the effects of prior-
year uncorrected misstatements should be considered when quantifying misstatements in the current year
financial statements. SAB No. 108 requires registrants to quantify misstatements using both an income
statement (“rollover”) and balance sheet (“iron curtain™) approach and to evaluate whether either approach
results in a misstatement that, when all relevant quantitative and qualitative factors are considered, is
material. If prior year errors that had been previously considered immaterial are now considered material,
based on either approach not previously applied, no restatement is required so long as management
properly applied its previous approach and all relevant facts and circumstances were considered. If prior
years are not restated, a cumulative effect adjustment is recorded in opening retained earnings as of the
beginning of the fiscal year of adoption. SAB No. 108 is effective for fiscal years ending on or after
November 15, 2006. The implementation of SAB No. 108 did not have any impact on our results of
operations or equity.

In June 2006, the FASB ratified the consensus of EITF Issue No. 06-3, “How Taxes Collected from
Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement (That
Is, Gross versus Net Presentation)” (“EITF Issue No. 06-3"). EITF Issue No. 06-3 provides that gross or
net presentation is an accounting policy decision that is dependent on the type of tax, and that similar taxes
are to be presented in a consistent manner. The provisions of EITF Issue No. 06-3 will be effective as of
the beginning of 2007, with early application permitted. Our current accounting policy is to present taxes
within the scope of EITF issue No. 06-3 on a net basis. Our adoption of EITF Issue No. 06-3 will not
result in a change in our accounting policy and, accordingly, will not have any effect on our results of
operations.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3--MERCHANDISE INVENTORIES

Merchandise inventories consisted of the following:

February 3, January 28,
2007 ‘ 2006
(in thousands)
Jewelry goods — rings, watches and other fine jewelry (first-in, first-out (“FIFO™) basis) (a)......... $ 458920 $ 353,009
Less: Excess of FIFO cost over LIFO inventory VAIUE...............cueveeevieeecreeereeenerseeee s sessrasnes 28,441 21,252
$ 430,479 $ 331757

(a) Merchandise inventories include $83.4 million and $54.4 million, respectively, for 2006 and 2005 of inventory related to
our stand-alone jewelry stores, Additionally, the 2006 balance reflects the conversion of the majority of our gold
consignment inventory to owned inventory, which at February 3, 2007 totaled approximately $95.1 million.

We determine our LIFO inventory value by utilizing internally developed indices. During 2006 and
2005, we recorded LIFO charges totaling $7.2 million and $2.6 million, respectively.

Approximately $204.0 million and $328.4 million at February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006,
respectively, of merchandise received on consignment is not included in Merchandise inventories or
Accounts payable-trade in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets and these amounts approximate
the fair value of this merchandise. The decrease in consignment inventory is primarily associated with the
termination of the gold consignment agreement and the conversion of this merchandise to owned
mventory.

Effective as of November 29, 2006, Finlay Jewelry entered into an agreement to terminate and retire
its obligation under the amended and restated gold consignment agreement (the “Gold Consignment
Agreement”). The Gold Consignment Agreement enabled Finlay Jewelry to receive consignment
merchandise by providing gold, or otherwise making payment, to certain vendors. In accordance with the
termination agreement, we paid approximately $49.9 million to purchase the outstanding gold. The
payment of the gold was financed through additional borrowings under the Revolving Credit
Agreement.

We considered many factors when evaluating whether to terminate the Gold Consignment Agreement,
including the volatility of gold prices in recent years and our belief that we can better manage our gross
margins under an owned inventory program working directly with our vendors. In addition, the termination
simplifies our capital structure by eliminating an off-balance sheet contractual obligation. With the
retirement of the obligation, we converted the majority of our gold consignment inventory of
approximately $99.0 million to owned inventory on our Consolidated Balance Sheets which included the
elimination of our other receivables, representing cash advances to certain vendors for the cost of the non-
gold portion of the gold consignment merchandise.

NOTE 4--FIXED ASSETS
Fixed assets consists of the following:
February 3, January 28,
2007 2006
(in thousandy)
Land and building ........ccocovvimevimmiec v e $ 10,027 $ 10,024
FAXIUTES .ottt et ceeaseaeas s eeastsm st beam s nne e nnan 59,702 77,705
DHSPLAYS ....oiieriiricci e et es bbbt sa bt nasres 6,487 8,273
Computers and eqUIPMENL.............oevreirieemivrisrnesrieseress s 16,567 18,102
Leasehold imMpProvements ..............ccovrererenrerrecvvrenseeseseresenee 5411 2,163
AUOMODBILES...........ooeeeecee et ettt 35 -
. 08,229 116,267
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization .................. (43,236) (55,903)
INELfiXed 855815 .....cvcvvicrerr e saser s s sseies $ 54,993 $ 60364

Depreciation expense was $12.0 million, $11.5 million and $11.2 million for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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NOTE 5--SHORT AND LONG-TERM DEBT

In December 2006, Finlay Jewelry’s Revolving Credit Agreement was amended and restated. The
Revolving Credit Agreement, which matures in January 2011, provides Finlay Jewelry with a senior
secured revolving line of credit up to $225.0 million. The Revolving Credit Facility is limited by a
borrowing base computed primarily on the value of the Company’s inventory and accounts receivables.
Finlay Jewelry is permitted to use up to $30 million of the Revolving Credit Facility for the issuance of
letters of credit issued for the account of Finlay Jewelry.

Amounts outstanding under the Revolving Credit Agreement bear interest at a rate equal to, at our
option, (i) the Index Rate (as defined) plus a margin ranging from zero to 0.25% or (ii) adjusted Eurodollar
rate plus a margin ranging from 1.25% to 2.0%, in each case depending on availability under our facility,
“Index Rate” is defined as the higher of (i) the prime rate and (ii) the Federal Funds Rate plus 50 basis
points per annum. A letter of credit fee which could range from 1.25% to 2.0%, per annum, depending on
availability under our facility, of the face amount of letters of credit guaranteed under the Revolving Credit
Agreement is payable monthly in arrears. An unused facility fee on the average unused daily balance of
the Revolving Credit Facility is payable monthly in arrears equal to 0.25% per annum. Upon the
occurrence {and during the continuance) of an event of default under the Revolving Credit Agreement,
interest would accrue at a rate which is 2% in excess of the rate otherwise applicable, and the
outstanding balance would be payable upon demand.

The Revolving Credit Agreement is secured by a first priority perfected security interest in all of
Finlay Jewelry’s (and any subsidiary’s) present and future tangible and intangible assets. The Revolving
Credit Agreement contains customary covenants, including limitations on or relating to capital
expenditures, liens, indebtedness, investments, mergers, acquisitions, affiliate transactions, management
compensation and the payment of dividends and other restricted payments. The Revolving Credit
Agreement also contains a fixed charge coverage ratio requirement under certain circumstances. As of
February 3, 2007, we were in compliance with this financial covenant. We also expect to be in compliance
during 2007. Because compliance is based, in part, on our management’s estimates and actual results can
differ from those estimates, there can be no assurance that we will be in compliance with the covenants in
the future or that the lenders will waive or amend any of the covenants should we be in violation thereof.
We believe the assumptions used are appropriate.

At February 3, 2007, $45.9 million was outstanding under the Revolving Credit Agreement, at which
point the available borrowings were $167.4 million, after adjusting for letters of credit described below.
There were no amounts outstanding at January 28, 2006 under the Revolving Credit Agreement. The
maximum amounts outstanding under the Revolving Credit Agreement during 2006 and 2005 were $175.5
million and $158.2 million, respectively. The average amounts outstanding for the same periods were
$69.2 million, $79.4 million and $50.6 million, respectively. The weighted average interest rates were
7.7%, 5.9% and 4.0% for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

At February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, we had letters of credit outstanding totaling $6.1 million
and $10.9 million, respectively, which guarantee various trade activities. The contract amounts of the
letters of credit approximate their fair value.

Long-term debt consisted of the following:

February 3, January 28,
2007 2006
(in theusands)
Senior NOES (B) ... e s sans s 3 200,000 $ 200,000

{a) The fair value of the Senior Notes, determined based on market guotes, was approximately $190.5 million at
February 3, 2007.
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NOTE 5--SHORT AND LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

During 2004, Finlay Jewelry completed the sale of 8-3/8% Senior Notes, due June 1, 2012, having an
aggregate principal amount of $200.0 million (the “Senior Notes™) and called for the redemption of all of
the untendered 9% Senior Debentures, due May 1, 2008, having an aggregate principal amount of $75.0
million (the “Old Senior Debentures™) and Finlay Jewelry’s 8 3/8% Senior Notes, due May 1, 2008,
having an aggregate principal amount of $150.0 million (the “Old Senior Notes”), respectively, and those
securities were repurchased in July 2004. Interest on the Senior Notes is payable semi-annually on June 1
and December 1 of each year.

Finlay Jewelry incurred approximately $5.2 million in costs associated with the sale of the Senior
Notes, of which $5.0 million were deferred and are being amortized over the term of the Senior Notes. In
2004, we recorded pre-tax charges of approximately $9.1 million, including $6.7 million for redemption
premiums paid on the Old Senior Debentures and the Old Senior Notes, $2.1 million to write-off
deferred financing costs related to the refinancing of the Old Senior Debentures and the Old Senior Notes
and $0.3 million for other expenses. These costs are included in Other expense in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended January 29, 2005.

The Senior Notes are unsecured senior obligations and rank equally in right of payment with all of the
existing and future unsubordinated indebtedness of Finlay Jewelry and senior to any future indebtedness of
Finlay Jewelry that is expressly subordinated to the Senior Notes. The Senior Notes are effectively
subordinated to Finlay Jewelry’s secured indebtedness, including obligations under its Revolving Credit
Agreement, to the extent of the value of the assets securing such indebtedness, and effectively subordinated
to the indebtedness and other liabilities (including trade payables) of its subsidiaries. Finlay Jewelry may
redeem the Senior Notes, in whole or in part, at any time on or after June 1, 2008 at specified redemption
prices, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of the redemption. In addition, before June
1, 2007, Finlay Jewelry may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the Senior Notes
with the net proceeds of certain equity offerings at 108.375% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued
interest to the redemption date. Upon certain change of control events, each holder of the Senior Notes
may require Finlay Jewelry to purchase ali or a portion of such holder's Senior Notes at a purchase price
equal to 101% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the purchase date.

The indenture governing the Senior Notes contains restrictions relating to, among other things, the
payment of dividends, redemptions or repurchases of capital stock, the incurrence of additional indebtedness,
the making of certain investments, the creation of certain liens, the sale of certain assets, entering into
transactions with affiliates, engaging in mergers and consolidations and the transfer of all or substantially all
assets. Finlay Jewelry was in compliance with all of its covenants as of and for the year ended February 3,
2007.

The aggregate amounts of long-term debt payable in each of the five years in the period ending
January 31, 2012 are as follows:

{in thousands)

Interest expense for 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $23.5 million, $22.2 million and $20.8 million,
respectively. Interest income for the same periods was $23,000, $0.3 million and $0.2 million,
respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6--STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Our Long Term Incentive Plan (the “1993 Plan™) permits us to grant to our key employees, consultants
and certain other persons, and our directors the following: (i) stock options; (ii) stock appreciation
rights in tandem with stock options; (iii) limited stock appreciation rights in tandem with stock options;
(iv) restricted or nonrestricted stock awards subject to such terms and conditions as the Compensation
Committee shall determine; (v) performance units which are based upon attainment of performance goals
during a period of not less than two nor more than five years and which may be settled in cash or in
Common Stock, at the discretion of the Compensation Committee; or (vi) any combination of the
foregoing. Under the 1993 Plan, we may grant stock options which are either incentive stock options
within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), or
non-incentive stock options. As of February 3, 2007, an aggregate of 732,596 shares of our Common
Stock have been reserved for issuance pursuant to the 1993 Plan, of which 511,111 shares have been
issued to date in connection with exercises of options granted under the 1993 Plan and 155,719 shares are
reserved for issuance upon exercise of currently outstanding options. The remaining 65,766 shares of
Common Stock are available for future grants under the 1993 Plan. The exercise prices of such stock
options range from $7.23 per share to $16.50 per share.

In March 1997, our Board of Directors adopted the 1997 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “1997 Plan™),
which was approved by our stockholders in June 1997. The 1997 Plan, which is similar to the 1993 Plan,
provides for the grant of the same types of awards as are currently available under the 1993 Plan. An
aggregate of 2,125,000 shares of our Common Stock have been reserved for issuance pursuant to the 1997
Plan, of which 294,494 shares have been issued to date in connection with exercises of options granted
under the 1997 Plan, 860,615 shares are reserved for issuance upon exercise of currently outstanding
options and 683,999 shares are subject to purchases and awards of restricted stock and restricted stock
units. The remaining 285,892 shares of Common Stock are available for future grants under the 1997 Plan.
The exercise prices of such stock options range from $7.05 per share to $24.31 per share. According to the
terms of the 1997 Plan, it was due to expire on March 5, 2007. On February 27, 2007, the Company’s
Board of Directors approved an amendment to the 1997 Plan to extend the term of the plan beyond the
March 5, 2007 termination date. This amendment is subject to approval by the Company’s stockholders at
the Company’s 2007 Annual Meeting.

Our stock repurchase program expired on September 30, 2005 and has not been renewed. We
repurchased a total of 2,207,904 shares for $27.4 million under the stock repurchase program from
inception through September 30, 2005.

Additionally, during 2006, we repurchased a total of 19,462 shares for approximately $188,000
pursuant to our long-term incentive plan, to satisfy tax withholding obligations related to the issuance of
Common Stock to certain executives.

In February 2001, an executive officer of the Company was issued Common Stock, subject to
restrictions {“Restricted Stock™) in the amount of 100,000 shares, pursuant to a restricted stock agreement.
The Restricted Stock became fully vested on January 29, 2005. Compensation expense of approximately
$1.2 million has been amortized over four years and totaled approximately $0.3 million in 2004.

In August 2003, the executive officer referred to above was issued an additional 50,000 shares of
Restricted Stock, pursuant to a restricted stock agreement. Fifty percent of the Restricted Stock became
fully vested on January 31, 2005. Compensation expense of approximately $0.4 million has been
amortized over the vesting period and totaled approximately $0.3 million in 2004. The remaining 50% of
the Restricted Stock becomes fully vested on June 30, 2007 and has been accounted for as a component of
stockholders’ equity. Compensation expense of approximately $0.4 million is being amortized over the
vesting period and totaled approximately $0.1 million in each of 2006, 2005 and 2004.
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NOTE 6--STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued)

In October 2003, certain executives of the Company were awarded a total of 31,250 shares of
Restricted Stock, pursuant to restricted stock agreements. The Restricted Stock becomes fully vested after
four years of continuous employment with the Company and is accounted for as a component of
stockholders’ equity with respect to unamortized restricted stock compensation. However, such shares are
not considered outstanding until they are fully vested. Compensation expense of approximately $0.5
million is being amortized over four years and totaled approximately $0.1 million in each of 2006, 2005
and 2004.

In April 2004, certain executives of the Company were awarded a total of 32,500 shares of Restricted
Stock, pursuant to restricted stock agreements. The Restricted Stock became fully vested in April 2006 and
in May 2006, 32,500 shares of Common Stock were issued to these executives. Compensation expense of
approximately $0.6 million has been amortized over two years and totaled $0.1 million, $0.3 million and
$0.2 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

In April 2005, certain executives of the Company were awarded a total of 48,300 shares of Restricted
Stock, pursuant to restricted stock agreements. The Restricted Stock becomes fully vested after three years
of continuous employment with the Company and is accounted for as a component of stockholders’ equity.
However, such shares are not considered outstanding until they are fully vested. Compensation expense
of approximately $0.6 million is being amortized over three years and totaled $0.2 million and $0.1
million in 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Commencing in February 2005 and continuing through January 2009, an executive officer of the
Company became entitled to receive stock incentive compensation based on the attainment of annual
financial objectives established by senior management and approved by the Board of Directors. Pursuant
to the executive’s employment contract, the maximum amount of stock incentive compensation payable in
any fiscal year is equal to the number of restricted shares of Common Stock having an aggregate value
nearest to $400,000 with the actual amount to be based on whether specified financial results are met for
each fiscal year, except that for 2006, the maximum aggregate value is $200,000. Compensation expense
related to this executive’s 2006 and 2005 stock incentive compensation totaled $0.2 million in each year.

Additionally, for each fiscal year during the employment term, the same executive officer discussed
above is eligible to receive Restricted Stock having an aggregate value nearest to $500,000, subject to the
terms of the employment agreement. This time-based Restricted Stock is accounted for as a component of
stockholders’ equity. In February 2006, 54,437 shares were issued to the executive officer and
compensation expense is being recognized ratably over the vesting period of two years and totaled $0.3
million in 2006. Additionally, in February 2007, 53,505 shares were issued to the executive officer and
compensation expense will be recognized ratably over the vesting period of one year.

NOTE 7 - STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Stock options outstanding under our stock incentive plans have been granted at prices which are equal
to the market value of our stock on the date of grant, generally vest over five years and expire no later than
ten years after the grant date.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, we presented all tax benefits resulting from the exercise of
stock options as operating cash flows on our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. SFAS No. 123R
requires that cash flows resulting from tax deductions in excess of the cumulative compensation cost
recognized for options exercised be classified as financing cash flows. During 2006 excess tax benefits
realized from the exercise of stock options were insignificant.
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NOTE 7 - STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

On January 23, 2006, the Company’s Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors approved
accelerating the vesting of all out-of-the-money, unvested stock options held by employees and
independent directors. An option was considered out-of-the-money if the stated option exercise price was
greater than the closing price of our Common Stock on the day before the Compensation Committee
approved the acceleration. Unvested out-of-the-money options to purchase approximately 35,400 shares
became exercisable as a result of the vesting acceleration. The vesting acceleration did not result in the
recognition of compensation expense for 2005.

During 2006, we recognized approximately $95,000 in share-based compensation expense, on a pre-
tax basis, or $0.01 diluted net loss per share. The grant date fair value was calculated using the Black-
Scholes option valuation model. No share-based compensation expense was recognized prior to
January 29, 2006. Had compensation expense for our share-based plans been determined consistent with
SFAS No. 123R during 2005 and 2004, our net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share would have
been restated to the following pro forma amounts (in thousands, except per share data):

January 28, January 29,
2006 2005

Reported net income (I085) .....ovcvurenriresie i siseserssennes $  (55736) $ 16,025
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense

determined under the fair value method, net of tax......o.vceieerccerinanas 566 841
Deduct; Stock-based employee compensation expense

inctuded in reported net income (loss), net of tax .......... et (706} (1,162)
Pro forma net MEOME {l0SS)..........ccorvormererssmimessessasressmeseramssmeeresneerenneenees 3 £39,876) $ 15,704
Basic and diluted ret income (loss) per share:
Reported net income (10s§) per Share...........coooerearsimsmmerieressoeens. 3 (6.21) $ 1.83
Pro forma net income (1055) PET ShAE ..o 3 {6.21) $ 1.80

There were no options granted during 2006. The fair value of options granted in 2005 and 2004 was
estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model based on the weighted average market price at the
grant date of $13.12 in 2005 and $18.60 in 2004 and the following weighted average assumptions for 2005
and 2004: risk free interest rate of 4.20%, and 3.78%, respectively, expected life of seven years for each
year, expected dividend rate of 0% for each year, expected forfeiture rate of 0% for each year and volatility
of 59.45% and 58.62%, respectively. The weighted average fair value of options granted in 2005 and 2004
was $4.64 and $6.30, respectively.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded
options which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models
require input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility. Because our
stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded shares and because changes
in subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, the actual value realized at the
time the options are exercised may differ from the estimated values computed above. '
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NOTE 7 - STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

The following table summarizes the changes in stock options outstanding during 2006:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Wid. Avg. Aggregate Aggregate
Number Remaining Wtd. Avg. Intrinsic Number Witd, Avg, Intrinsic
Outstanding Contractual Life Ex, Price Value (0005} Exercisable Ex. Price Value (000°s)™"

Balance at.lanuary 28, 2006 .. 1,068,634 320 $ 1211 S 563 1,029,634 $ 1230 $ 475
Exercised ... (1,000) - 825 2 (1,000 8.25 2
Vested (2)... - - - - 35,000 7.05

Forfeited ......... {51,300) - 12.44 - (51,300) 12.44 .
Balance at Fchruary 3 2007 1,016,334 2.24 $ 12,10 $ 618 1,016,334 $ 1210 S 618

(1) The aggregate intrinsic values in the table above are based on the closing price of our Common Stock as of the last

business day of the periods ended February 3, 2007 and January 28, 2006, which were $9.54 and $9.33, respectively.
{2) Stock options vested in 2006 had a fair value of $0.4 mittion.

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $0, $0.1 million and

$3.0 million, respectively. All outstanding stock options at February 3, 2007 have vested and therefore are
currently exercisable.

For 2006, 2005 and 2004, 54,437, 48,300 and 32,500 shares, respectively, of restricted stock were
awarded with a weighted average fair value of $9.19, $11.92 and $19.35, respectively. During 2006, total
amortization of restricted stock compensation was $0.7 million. As of February 3, 2007, there was $1.1

million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested restricted stock, which is expected to
be recognized over the next twelve months.

The following table summarizes the changes in restricted stock outstanding during 2006:

Wid. Avg.
Restricted Grant Date
__Stock™ _ Fair Value _
Nonvested balance at Ja.nuary 28, 2006... 137,050 $ 1506
Granted ... - 54,437 9.19
Vested... . (32,500) 19.35
Forfeited..... . {1,500) 12,78
Nonvested balancc m Fcbruary 200 157,487 § 1217

(1) Refer to Note 6 for additional information regarding restricted stock.

For 2006, 2005 and 2004, 136,006, 118,308 and 88,042 restricted stock units (“RSUs”), respectively,
were awarded with a weighted average fair value of $9.49, $12.40 and $18.69, respectively. Refer to Note
8 for additional information regarding RSUs. During 2006, total amortization of RSUs was $0.7 million.
As of February 3, 2007, there was $0.7 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to
nonvested RSUs, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.67 years.

The following table summarizes the changes in participant RSUs outstanding during 2006:

Wtd, Avg.

Participant Grant Date

RSUs Fair Value
Batance at January 28, 2006............. 108,365 s 1509
Granted ... 68,003 9.49
Shares lssued - (22,240) 12.94
Balance at Febma.ry 3 200 ............. 154,128 $ 1293
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NOTE 7 - STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

The following table summarizes the changes in matching RSUs outstanding during 2006:

Nonvested Matching RSUs Vested Matching RSUs
Wid, Avg. Wid. Avg.
Number Grant Date Number Grant Date
Outstanding Fair Value Outstanding Fair Value
Balance at January 28, 2006....................... 93,144 $ 1470 15,221 $ 1752
Granted. ..o e 68,003 9.49 - -
VEStEd ... e (16,132) 11.59 16,132 11.59
ShAares iSsUEq.........coevvererniirineriareseisssssarsines - - (1,632) 15.33
Forfeited......c..cooeeeeeie e cecvrve e vaeaneee (11,318) 10.35 - -
Balance at February 3, 2007 ........c.oocvoocviinae 133,697 $ 1279 29,721 $ 1442

NOTE 8—-EXECUTIVE AND DIRECTOR DEFERRED COMPENSATION AND STOCK
PURCHASE PLANS

in April 2003, the Board of Directors adopted the Executive Deferred Compensation and Stock
Purchase Plan and the Director Deferred Compensation and Stock Purchase Plan, which was approved by
our stockholders on June 19, 2003 (the “RSU Plans™). Under the RSU Plans, key executives and non-
employee directors, as directed by our Compensation Committee, are eligible to acquire RSUs. An RSU is
a unit of measurement equivalent to one share of common stock, but with none of the attendant rights of a
stockholder of a share of Common Stock. Two types of RSUs are awarded under the RSU Plans: (i)
participant RSUs, where a plan participant may elect to defer, in the case of an executive employee, a
portion of his or her actual or target bonus, and in the case of a non-employee director, his or her retainer
fees and Committee chairmanship fees, and receive RSUs in lieu thereof and (ii) matching RSUs, where
we will credit a participant’s plan account with one matching RSU for each participant RSU that a
participant elects to purchase. While participant RSUs are fully vested at all times, matching RSUs are
subject to vesting and forfeiture as set forth in the RSU Plans. At the time of distribution under the RSU
Plans, RSUs are converted into actual shares of Common Stock. As of February 3, 2007, 352,736 RSUs,
have been awarded under the RSU Plans, of which 23,872 shares have been issued and 11,318 shares have
been forfeited, As of January 28, 2006, 216,730 RSUs have been awarded under the RSU Plans.
Amortization totaled approximately $0.7 million and $0.5 million for 2006 and 2005, respectively.

NOTE 9—-PROFIT SHARING PLAN

We maintain a defined contribution profit-sharing plan to provide retirement benefits for all personnel.
Effective with the 2006 plan year, this plan provides for company matching contributions of $0.50 for each
$1.00 of employee contribution, up to 5% of the employee’s salary, as limited by the Code, which begin to
vest upon the completion of two years of employment and accrues at the rate of 20% per year. Prior
to 2006, this plan provided for company matching contributions of $0.25 for each $1.00 of employee
contribution, up to 5% of the employee’s salary, as limited by the Code. Additionally, the plan provided
the option to contribute 2% of the employees’ earnings annually, as limited by the Code. Company
contributions totaled $2.1 million, $2.2 million and $2.3 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

In addition, Carlyle maintains a separate employee tax savings plan under Section 401(k) of the Code,
which provides for matching contributions of 25% of employee contributions, up to 5% of each
participating employee’s earnings. Matching contributions for both 2006 and 2005 totaled approximately
$0.1 million. Carlyle may make additional contributions to the plan, however, no additional contributions
were made during 2006 and 2005.
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NOTE 10-INCOME TAXES

For income tax reporting purposes, we have an October 31 year end. We file a consolidated Federal
income tax return with our wholly-owned subsidiary, Finlay Jewelry and its wholly owned subsidiaries.

Deferred income taxes at year end reflect the impact of temporary differences between amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial and tax reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities at year end are as follows:

February 3, Janusry 28,
2007 2006
{in thousands)
Deferred Tax Assets
Uniform inventory CapRaliZation. ... .......covririiriinsrsiecssirrrsrsarsersms s sssssssssssassssessuoeresasesssssresnesereses $ 31678 $ 3879
Expenses not currently deductible .. 3,753 3,226
NEt OPETAIE JOSSES = CUITEML .......c.coovvercrereiecretrisiieees s s seers e esr b sesrs s raes e sm s s st s ers s sneassaarins 503 503
7.934 7,608
ValUBHON BIIOWAIICE ..........cocvvreereiereesiansce e setnie s reersesans s s sess s bant st stntasenesassemssanm esss s sarssssennsssansesas - -
Total current........ccoovvceeeeane 7,934 7,608
Net operating losses - non-current.. 1,772 2,284
Tax deductible goodwill ............... 2,215 2,601
Total non-current ettt bbb sa et e ten s srenare 3,987 4,885
Total defermed LAX SSELS ..o.ic e rere e eetet e cee s teees s emar s st st s seae s bnt e e b abecr s s s s enssrranaa 11,921 12,493
Deferred Tax Liabiltties
LIFQ inventory vAIUALON. .........ccocormmieeoms e essisssssssssssnss s rmss s e sr et ben e e s s esnns e rents 21,256 20,034
TOUAL CUITENIL .. ...ttt senrse s eaes e s anr et ere s eat s e ass e an s b emser s b rr et seantasesmnssenansas 21,256 20,034
Depreciation and amortiZRHON. ..ot coee e e seases s st srar e eeerenaen 11,814 15,056
Total non-current .................. 11,814 15,056
Total defermed tax liabilitics................. 33,070 35,090
Net deferred income tax lbIlIGES ... $ 21,149 $ 22,597
Net current deferred income BX HADIES .........cccvvccetirere i st aerersannaene § 1332 $ 12,426
Net non-gurrent deferred income tax liabilities...., 7,827 10,171
Net deferred income taX HABIIIIES ...........co.o.o i r e e baee $ 21,149 $ 22,597

The components of the benefit for income taxes are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended
February 3, January 28, Janoary 29,

2007 2006 2005
Current taxes — Federal...........corvvivvriineiniesrerseseesieens 3 (2,069 $ (486) $(14219)
Current taxes — State and local . (1,159 92 (3,3149)
Current taxes — Foreign............. - (154) (600)
Deferred taxes - Federal........... (1,113) (4,073) 9,746
Deferred taxes — State and local ... {296) {1,384) 2,591
Benefit for iNCOME tAXES. .......ccocveverienrrriaereeeneer s $ {4,637 $ (6,005) $ (5,796)

A reconciliation of the income tax benefit computed by applying the federal statutory rate to Loss from
continuing operations before income taxes to the Benefit for income taxes on the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Operations is as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended
February 3, January 28, January 29,

2007 2006 2008
Federal statutory provision...........cciiiesecvveenveseevees $ (3,856) $ (27.580) $ (3,805)
Impairment of goodwill..... - - 23,258 -
Foreign tax refiund ................coooo. - . (1,800)
Redetermination of foreign tax credits........... - (154) 1,200
State and local taxes, net of federal benefit....... {946} (1,227 (836)
Reversal of tax accruals no longer required...... (50) (425) {1,025}
OBEL. ...covoms et 215 123 470
Benefit for mcome tXeS........cocvemivssie e $ (8,637} $ (6,005 $ (5,796)
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NOTE 10-INCOME TAXES (continued)

During 2006 and 2005, a benefit of approximately $50,000 and $425,000, respectively, was recorded
associated with the reversal of tax accruals no longer required, primarily as the result of the
closing of open tax years. The 2005 period reflects a benefit of approximately $4.4 million associated with
the impairment of goodwill.

As a result of the acquisition of Carlyle, we acquired net operating loss carryforwards that are subject
to an annual limitation of $1.3 million. At October 31, 2006, we had available net operating loss
carryforwards for federal income tax reporting purposes of approximately $5.7 million that expire from
2021 through 2025.

A number of years may elapse before a particular matter, for which we have established an accrual, is
audited and finally resolved. While it is often difficult to predict the final outcome or the timing of
resolution of any particular tax matter, we believe that our accruals reflect the probable outcome of tax
contingencies. The favorable or unfavorable settlement of any particular issue will be recognized as a
decrease or an increase to our income tax expense in the year of resolution. Our tax accruals are presented
in the balance sheet with income and other taxes.

NOTE 11--LICENSE AGREEMENTS WITH DEPARTMENT STORES AND LEASE
AGREEMENTS

We conduct the majority of our operations as licensed departments in department stores. All of the
department store licenses provide that, except under limited circumstances, the title to certain of our fixed
assets transfers upon termination of the licenses, and that we will receive reimbursement for the
undepreciated value of such fixed assets from the host store upon such transfer. The value of such fixed
assets are recorded at the inception of the license arrangement as well as upon department renovations, and
are reflected in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Our operating leases consist primarily of office space rentals and the Carlyle and Congress retail store
locations, which leases expire on various dates through 2016. The department store license agreements
provide for the payment of fees based on sales (i.e., contingent fees in the table below). Additionally,
certain of the Carlyle and Congress leases require payment of contingent rent based on a percentage of
store sales in excess of a specified threshold. License fees and lease expense, included in Selling, general
and administrative expenses, are as follows (in thousands}:

Fiscal Year Ended
February 3, January 28, January 29,
2007 2006 2005
Minimum fees..........coevcreinmnrrervcssccsieininen. $ 1,791 $ 5758 $ 2,028
Contingent fees .........ceovviimvrmei e 110,929 108,480 108,699
TOMAL e e $ 118,720 $114238 $110,727

Future minimum payments under noncancellable operating leases having initial or remaining
noncancellable lease terms in excess of one year are as follows as of February 3, 2007:

(in thousands)
2007 ..ot beare bt e e bbb e $ 7426
2008 ... e e e e b s 6,334
2000 ... omeeereetersencs et et e e e R e 4,141
ZOTY it vb s rren e st bRt 3,525
TRETATIET.....c.veeevseemse v iareme e et ere s senn it s e bbb sn s rabenssessepeanes 7,862
Total minimum payments required........ccooooviivineniannernns $ 33,746
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NOTE 12—-CONSOLIDATION OF HOST STORE GROUPS AND OTHER

In August 2005, Federated announced that it had completed a merger with May. In September 2005,
Federated announced its integration plans including a divisional realignment and divestiture of certain
stores. As of February 3, 2007, we operated a total of 349 departments in five of Federated’s eight
divisions, as follows:

Macy’s South ...t 140
Macy’s Midwest ................ 84
Macy’s North ... 56
Macy’s Northwest ............. 37
Bloomingdale’s ................. 32
Total...ciniiriieceieiceeens 349

During the first half of 2006, 194 stores have either been divested or phased into the Macy’s East or
Macy’s West divisions and have been classified as discontinued operations in accordance with SFAS No.
144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS No. 144”). See Note 13
for additional information regarding discontinued operations. During 2006 and 2005, we recorded charges
associated with accelerated depreciation of fixed assets and severance related to our field operations
totaling approximately $4.1 million and $3.8 million, respectively, related to these departments. These
costs are included in discontinued operations in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

In May 2006, the Company announced that Belk would not renew Finlay Jewelry’s license agreement
due to Belk’s acquisition of a privately-held company that licensed fine jeweiry departments in certain of
the Belk stores. The termination of the license agreement, effective at the end of 2006, resulted in the
closure of 75 departments. In 2006, we generated sales of approximately $51.9 million from the Belk
departments. During 2006, we recorded charges of approximately $0.3 million related to the accelerated
depreciation of fixed assets and severance related to our field operations. These costs are included in
discontinued operations in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Further, as a result of Belk’s acquisition of Parisian from Saks in October 2006, the Parisian
departments will close in July 2007. In 2006, we generated sales of approximately $22.9 million from our
33 Parisian departments. During 2006, we recorded charges of approximately $0.2 million related to the
accelerated depreciation of fixed assets. These costs are included in continuing operations in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and will be reclassified to discontinued operations
when the departments close.

Following is a summary of the activity in the accrual established for severance charges for both our
field operations and corporate office that have been recorded within our department store based fine
jewelry department segment (in thousands):

Severance and
Termination

Benefits
Balance at January 29, 2005.......... s 168
Charges........ 1,233
Payments......cco.eeee..n. (143)
Balance at January 28, 1,258
Charges™, ............... 3458
Payments........oomenieninennnn (4.131)
Balance at February 3, 2007.......cooccviecieneeenencenns § 585

(1) Includes $2.5 million of charges recorded in discontinued operations and $0.9 million of charges recorded in selling, general
and administrative expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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NOTE 13 - DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

As a result of the store closings associated with the Federated/May merger as well as the Belk store
closings, the results of operations of the departments closed during 2006 have been segregated from those
of continuing operations, net of tax, and classified as discontinued operations for all periods presented. All
of these departments, operated in our department store based fine jewelry department segment.

A summary of the statement of operations information relating to the discontinued operations is as
follows (in thousands):

February 3, January 28, January 29,
2007 2006 2005
SIS ..o rsnsrsr s s s sresessaennsesnenseceecees 3 157,786 $ 280,403 $ 277,341
Income before income taxes (1) (2).......... 18,008 28,420 35,219
Discontinued operations, net of tax (3).............. 10,790 17,059 21,100

(1) Includes an allocation of $0.7 million, $1.3 million and $0.9 million of interest expense related to the Revolving Credit
Agreement for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

(2) The results of operations of the closed departments excludes allocations of general and administrative expenses and
interest expense related to the Senior Notes.

(3) Included in discontinued operations, net of tax, for 2006 and 2005 are charges totaling $4.4 million and $3.8 million,
respectively, associated with accelerated depreciation of fixed assets and severance.

NOTE 14 - GOODWILL IMPAIRMENT

SFAS No. 142 requires an impairment-only approach to accounting for goodwill. During the quarter
ended July 30, 2005, Federated announced their intention to divest, beginning in 2006, certain stores in
which we operate the fine jewelry departments. Based upon this business indicator, we utilized our SFAS
No. 142 model to evaluate the carrying value of the goodwill recorded on our department store based fine
jewelry departments segment as of July 30, 2005.

The goodwill impairment analysis took into consideration our results for the first half of the year and
estimates for the balance of the year and beyond, as well as Federated’s announcement to divest certain
stores. We performed our impairment analysis in accordance with SFAS No. 142, the provisions of which
require, similar to the recognition of goodwill in a business combination, an allocation of the fair value to
all of our assets and liabilities (excluding Carlyle) (including any unrecognized intangible assets) as if the
Company had been acquired in a business combination and the fair value of the Company was the price
paid to acquire the Company. As a result of this analysis, an impairment of goodwill of $77.3 million, on
a pre-tax basis, was recorded as a component of income (loss) from continuing operations in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations for 2005, which eliminated all of the goodwill that
was on our balance sheet at that time.

NOTE 15—-CARLYLE & CO. JEWELERS ACQUISITION

In May 2005, Finlay Jewelry completed the acquisition of Carlyle. The purchase price was
approximately $29.0 million, plus transaction fees of approximately $1.7 million, and was financed with
additional borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement. The acquisition was undertaken to
complement and diversify our existing business and provides the opportunity to increase our presence in
the luxury jewelry market. In connection with the purchase, Carlyle’s revolving credit facility totaling
$17.1 million was terminated and paid in full at the closing. Since the date of the acquisition, Carlyle’s
cash requirements have been, and will continue to be, funded under the Revolving Credit Agreement.

The Carlyle acquisition has been accounted for as a purchase, and, accordingly, the operating results of
Carlyle have been included in our consolidated financial statements since the date of acquisition. Our
January 28, 2006 Consolidated Balance Sheet reflects the Carlyle acquisition using a purchase price
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FINLAY ENTERPRISES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 15—~CARLYLE & CO. JEWELERS ACQUISITION (continued)

allocation. The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets and liabilities at the date of
acquisition (doliars in thousands):

CaSh e s $ 1,695
Merchandise inventories ......coooeeeieeiieeenne 55,157
Prepaid expenses and other current assets..... 2,308
Property and equipment ........ococviveniinesisonns 1,751
OLhEr ASSELS ..covecrerearere e sienas e seansies 7,284
Liabilities assumed...........ccouvvermmirernesniniesssenns 37,710
Net 258818 ACQUITED . ..oveceeeeeeriieisrereseeeeee $ 30,485

The following consolidated pro forma information presents our sales and net loss as if the Carlyle
acquisition had taken place at the beginning of the respective periods presented:

Fiscal Year Ended
January 28, January 29,
2006 2005
(in thousands)
SBIES.....coovirersaerenerersreennaesersmrrnsseessesseresnst s rensesemeneeneennee 3 133,181 $ 131,302
Loss from continuing operations (8)............ewvveremincesinens (80,027 (7,742)
NELLOSS (B) ..ooonri et ms st renn (73,605) (3,322)
Basic and Diluted net loss per share (8).............occceeerevreane. (8.20) {0.38)

(a) The loss from continuing operations for 2005 includes a charge of approximately $77.3 million, on a pre-tax basis,
related to the impairment of goodwill. The net loss and net loss per share for 2005 includes a charge of approximately
$72.9 million, net of tax, related 1o the impairment of goodwill.

Pro forma adjustments have been made to reflect depreciation and amortization using the asset values
recognized after applying purchase accounting adjustments and interest expense on borrowings used to
finance the acquisition. This pro forma information is presented for informational purposes only and is
not necessarily indicative of actual results had the acquisition been effected at the beginning of the
respective periods presented. It also is not necessarily indicative of future results, and does not reflect
potential synergies, integration costs or other such costs or savings.

NOTE 16 - CONGRESS ACQUISITION

In November 2006, Finlay Jewelry completed the acquisition of Congress. The purchase price was
approximately $6.0 million plus transaction fees of approximately $0.4 million, and was financed with
additional borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement. The acquisition was undertaken to
complement and diversify our existing business and provides us the opportunity to increase our presence in
the luxury jewelry market. In connection with the purchase, Congress’ revolving credit facility and
outstanding debt totaling $10.0 million, was terminated and paid in full at the closing. Since the date of the
acquisition, Congress’ cash requirements have been, and will continue to be, funded under the Revolving
Credit Agreement.

The purchase agreement relating to Congress provides for additional purchase price consideration to
be paid to the former principals of Congress in 2009. The payment is contingent upon the achievement of
certain results of operations of the Congress stores for the 36 months following the acquisition as
compared to certain financial thresholds stated in the purchase agreement. No additional consideration has
been included in cur disclosure of the purchase price as it is not yet determinable if any such payments will
be made.

The Congress acquisition has been accounted for as a purchase, and, accordingly, the operating
resuits of Congress have been included in our consolidated financial statements since the date of
acquisition. Our February 3, 2007 Consolidated Balance Sheet reflects the Congress acquisition using a
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 16 - CONGRESS ACQUISITION (continued)

purchase price allocation. The following table summatizes the fair value of the assets and liabilities at the
date of acquisition {dollars in thousands):

LT, OSSO TV $ 62
Merchandise inventories .......... e 16,574
Prepaid expenses and other

current assets 448
Property and equipmen 3,155
Goodwill 3,009
Other assets 2413
Liabilities assumed 16,259
Net assets acquired 36402

NOTE 17 - SEGMENT INFORMATION

Prior to the acquisition of Carlyle in May 2005, we operated in a single reportable segment, the
operation of department store based fine jewelry departments. In accordance with SFAS No. 131,
“Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information”, we currently have two reporting
segments-department store based fine jewelry departments and stand-alone jewelry stores (includes the
Carlyle and Congress operating segments which are aggregated into one reporting segment). The
accounting policies of the segments are generally the same as those described in Note 2. There are no
intercompany sales between the segments.

The following table provides segment level financial information for the years ended February 3, 2007
and January 28, 2006 (dollars in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended
February 3, 2007 January 28, 2006 January 29, 2005
Department Store Stand-alone Department Store Stand-alone Department Store
Based Fine Jewelry Jewelry Based Fine Jewelry Jewelry Based Fine Jewelry
Departments (b) Stores Total Departments (b) Stores Total Departments (b)
Sales ... iiiieierrr e s 653,645 § 108,150 $ 761,795 S 640,241 $ 69,490 $ 709,731 s 646,265
Depreciation and amortization............ 14,405 732 15,137 14,365 347 14,712 14,512
Income (loss) from operations (a)....... 4,275 8,207 12,482 (62,597} 5,779 (56,818) 18,798
21,677 1,824 23,501 21,040 863 21,903 20,579
(7,198) 2,561 (4,637) (1,972) 1,967 (6,005) (5,796}
436,245 101,106 537,354 459,159 62323 521,482 560,908
9,445 2,389 11,834 10,100 1,769 11,869 12,667

(a) The loss from operations for 2005 for Finlay includes a pre-tax charge of approximately $77.3 million related to the
impairment of goodwill. See Note 4.

(b) Included in Interest expense, net for 2006, 2005 and 2004 is $16.8 million, $16.8 million and $17.8 million, respectively,
related to the Senior Notes and alse, in 2004, the Old Senior Debentures and Old Senior Notes for the portion of the year
that these were outstanding. Refer to Note 5.




FINLAY ENTERPRISES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 17 - SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Additionally, our sales mix by merchandise category was as follows for, 2006, 2005 and 2004 (dollars
in thousands):
Fiscal Year Ended

February 3, 2007 January 28, 2006 Janugry 29, 2005
Department Store Based Stand-alone Department Store Based Stand-alone Department Store Based
Fine Jewelry Departments Jewelry Stores (1) Fine Jewelry Departments Jewelry Stores (1) Fine Jewelry Depariments
% of % of % of % of %% of
Sales Sales Sales Sales Sales Sales Sales Sales Sales Sales
Diamonds......... $ 173,304 26.5% $ 29,847 27.6% $ 173,802 27.1% $19.462 28.1% $ 170,614 26.4%
Gemstones......... 132,978 20.3 10,710 %9 132,073 20.6 5,159 7.5 137,654 213
Gold.....coevenee. 123,880 19.0 1,637 1.5 127,145 19.9 1,130 L6 138,301 214
Watches............. 92,090 14.1 43,185 399 89,475 14.0 26,290 3718 92,416 14.3
Designer........... 49,420 7.6 15,798 14.6 39,568 6.2 13,278 19.1 37,483 58
Other (3)............ 81,973 12.5 6973 6.5 78,178 12.2 4,171 59 69,797 10.8
Tota) Sales........ 5 653,645 100.0% $ 108,150 100.0% $ 640,241 100.0% $ 69,490 100.0% $ 646,265 100.0%

)] Sales for 2006 inciudes Congress since the date of acquisition in November 2006.

(2)  Sales for 2005 includes Carlyle since the date of acquisition in mid-May 2005.

(3)  Includes special promotional items, remounts, estate jewelry, pearls, beads, cubic zirconia, sterling silver and men’s jewelry,
as well as repair services and accommodation sales to our employees.

NOTE 18 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

From time to time, we are involved in litigation arising out of our operations in the normal course of
business. As of April 13, 2007, we are not a party to any legal proceedings that, individually or in the
aggregate, are reasonably expected to have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations,
financial condition or cash flows. However, the results of these matters cannot be predicted with certainty,
and an unfavorable resolution of one or more of these matters could have a material adverse effect on our
consolidated financial statements.

In November 2004, we entered into an employment agreement with a senior executive. The
employment agreement has a term ending on January 31, 2009, unless earlier terminated in accordance
with the provisions of the employment agreement. The agreement provides an annual salary level of
approximately $1.0 million as well as incentive compensation based on meeting specific financial goals.

In June 2005, we entered into employment agreements with three senior executives of Finlay Jewelry
and, in March 2006, we entered into an employment agreement with a fourth senior executive of Finlay
Jewelry. Each of the agreements has a term of three years, unless earlier terminated in accordance with the
provisions of the employment agreements. The agreements provide for annual salary levels totaling
approximately $1.6 million, incentive compensation based on meeting specific financial goals and a
special bonus equal to 50% of each executives’ salary if, in the case of the June 2005 agreements, the
executive is employed by Finlay Jewelry on June 30, 2008, and, in the case of the March 2006 agreement,
if the executive is employed by Finlay Jewelry on February 28, 2009.

The Senior Notes and the Revolving Credit Agreement currently restrict the amount of annual
distributions from Finlay Jewelry to us.

Our concentration of credit risk consists principally of accounts receivable. During 2006, store groups
owned by Federated accounted for approximately 57.0% of our sales (excluding the Federated departments
that closed in 2006 and Lord & Taylor, which was sold to NRDC Equity Partners LLC in late 2006). We
believe that the risk of insolvency associated with these receivables, other than those from Federated,
would not have a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations.
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NOTE 18 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

In 2006, approximately 43.0% of sales related to the department store based fine jewelry departments
were generated by merchandise obtained from their ten largest vendors and approximately 9.0% of sales
related to the Finlay departments were generated by merchandise obtained from their largest
vendor. Additionally, merchandise obtained from our stand-alone jewelry stores’ two largest vendors

generated approximately 44.0% of their sales.

We have not provided any third-party financial guarantees as of February 3, 2007 and January 28,

2006 and for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended February 3, 2007.

Refer to Note 16 for a discussion of the contingent purchase price relating to the Congress acquisition.

Refer to Note 5 for a discussion of letters of credit outstanding.

NOTE 19—QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following table summarizes the quarterly financial data for 2006 and 2005 (dollars in thousands,
except per share data). The 2006 and 2005 quarterly financial data has been restated to reflect discontinued

operations:
Fiscal Year Ended February 3, 2007
First Second Third Fourth (a)
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

SELES ..cevirneriversranr e seaserereosssasne s as e s ten s aes $ 149,343 $ 153,593 $ 140,059 318,800
Gross margin 72,507 73,250 65,200 147,923
Selling, general and administrative

EXPEIISES -eenrresrisasesnstiassstaresonsasasnaseassssatsissassransasassss 74,019 72,165 69,128 115,949
Income (loss) from Operations..........c.vcevcriesniresssencees (5,216) (2,555) (7,702) 27,955
Income (loss) from continuing operations................. (6,330) (4,544) (8,325) 13,217
Discontinued operations, net of tax {b)............ooeeeen 6,449 962 419 2,960
Net income (1058) .vvvrvvreeeeeemsisnissiresnienisssssiesisssnsenns 119 (3,982) (7,906) 16,177
Basic net income (loss) per share (c):
Income (loss) from continuing operations..........ccueeue $  (070) $ (0.55) $ (0.92) 1.46
Discontinued operations (b) .......ccivverireessmeissnicannns 0.71 0.11 0.04 0.33
Basic net income (loss) per share........cocovvereeecennne $ 0.01 $  (0.44) $ (0.88) 1.79
Diluted net income (loss) per share (c):
Income (loss) from continuing operations.................. § (070 $ (055 $ (092) 1.41
Discontinued operations (b) .............oeuvennieviriraieranns 0.71 0.11 0.04 0.32
Diluted net income (loss) per share.........vvveaincnnnne $ 001 $  (0.44) $ (0.88) 1.73
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FINLAY ENTERPRISES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fiscal Year Ended January 28, 2006

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter (d) Quarter (d) Quarter (d)
SAES ....ereiereerre s rs e sa b ensans $ 131,466 $ 142,446 $ 133,135 $ 302,684
Gross margin.........coovervvenn. et re st erenens 65,094 70,746 64,954 147,082
Selling, general and administrative expenses........... 66,038 70,155 67,825 108,676
Income (loss) from operations (€) .....cccocerercernnrisnernns (4,398) (80,170) (6,709) 34,459
Income (loss) from continuing operations (¢)............. (5,506) (77,833) {1,562) 18,106
Discontinued operations, net of tax (b) 2,692 3,040 688 10,639
Net income (1085} (£) vvrvreeer e rsensiae e sesnane (2,814) (74,793) (6,874) 28,745
Basic net income (loss) per share (c) (f):
Income (loss) from continuing operations...........ce... $ (0.61) $ @867 $ (084) s 2.02
Discontinued operations (b) .......cccceveeceerinnieneeronies 0.30 034 0.07 1.18
Basic net income (10ss) per share........c.oeceeeerrecseenes $ (03D $ (833 $ (0.7 $ 3.20
Diluted net income (loss) per share (c) (f):
Income (loss) from continuing operations.................. $ (061 $ (8.67) $ (0.84) b
Discontinued opetations (b) ......cocvveeevrercersvsrrenearrarernes 0.30 0.34 0.07 1.15
Diluted net income (loss) per share .........ocoocvvevniencnee $ (031 $  (833) $  (0.77) 3 3.11
(a) The fourth quarter of 2006 reflects the results of operations of Congress since the date of acquisition in November 2006.
{b) Discontinued operations includes the after-tax operations of the 194 doors that have either been divested or phased into the
Macy’s East or Macy’s West divisions as a result of the Federated/May merger as well as the Belk department closings.
{€) Net income (loss) per share for each quarter is computed as if each quarter were 2 discrete period. As such, the total of the
four quarters net income (loss) per share does not necessarily equal the net income (loss) per share for the year.
{d) The second, third and fourth quarters of 2005 reflect the results of operations of Carlyle since the date of acquisition in mid-
May 2005.
(e) The income (loss) from operations and the income (loss) from continuing operations includes a charge of approximately

U

$77.3 million on a pre-tax basis, related to the impairment of goodwill in the second quarter of 2005.
Net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share includes a charge of approximately $72.9 million, net of tax, related to the

impairment of goodwill during the second quarter of 2005,
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SCHEDULE 1

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

OF REGISTRANT
FINLAY ENTERPRISES, INC. - PARENT COMPANY
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands)
Year Ended
February 3, January 28, January 29,
2007 2006 2005
REVEIIE......oucrenvesieeseersiesssssessrasessestsssssssesassssmmssessesssssssasesansas $ - $ - $ -
Expenses:
Selling, general and administrative expenses............... - - -
Interest EXpense, NEt ..........vvverenmririsinsmsisnsssssnsissssnssans (1) {47 2,458
Other EXPENSE .....cvvirirernrireseisisunresisssisnssssesesnsssnans - - 3,128
Total EXPENSES ....covvvviveiiririrnriienreer s an 47 5,586
Equity in income (loss) of subsidiaries.........cc.coccovesnace. 4,400 {(55,765) 19,487
Income (loss) before inCome taXes......coveeeevrrininas 4,411 (55,718) 13,901
Provision (benefit) for income taxes .........coevcerevniienns 3 18 (2,124)
Net income (1088)....ccvverccreeriierenisninierernrisssssarssnnees $ 4,408 $ (55,736) $ 16,025
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SCHEDULE I (continued)

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
OF REGISTRANT

FINLAY ENTERPRISES, INC. - PARENT COMPANY
BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands)

February 3, January 28,
2007 2006
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ................c.cooceeer s $ 710 3 693
Due from affiliate .. ...ccccoeirviiiietces s stireecersreesseseneesessstsseessrassrsens 4989 3,096
TOtAl CUITENE ASSELS ..eveueeeresvsecrviersecreiieseresnnssssesmeesasesenerensresssssnns 5,699 3,789
Investment in SubSIdiary ..........ooieeniimessr s 116,605 112,204
TOtAl BSSEES..cvreuerreirrsrirecsiserrirseseseesaessereraasseasnsnesasas b sssessssaensens $ 122304 $ 105993
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Income tax payable, due to affiliate.........ccocorerrviecrricicerersinrncnierens 3 75 $ 72
Total HADILItIES .....vvvvereeeiiirc vt e sssscsacs s e sr e e e 75 72
Stockholders' equity:
COMMON STOCK .o veiiiiviieciti et sr st e e sae et rr st s s err et 113 112
Additional paid-in-capital .............coeceecverrninimnrerrernensseeerensresnens 92,999 92,505
Retained earmings........ocoveviocveereerereniesrerinsmrenresenneresesssssssssansesees 56,704 52,296
Unamortized restricted stock compensation ...........occeivreninerarns - (1,593)
Less tre@SUIY STOCK.......overeeririnrererrrrnreesseessrassessermesssasesssesevassnases (27,587) (27,399)
Total stockholders' equity .......c.cooeeeeeiiec e 122,229 115,921
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity.......coccoeevvveiicieeciniens $ 122304 $ 115,993
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SCHEDULE I (continued)

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
OF REGISTRANT

FINLAY ENTERPRISES, INC. - PARENT COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Years Ended
February 3, January 28, January 29,
2007 2006 2005

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net iNCOME {J0SS).... verererererimrererererrererissssssesssrarssrarasire e s sasasasrcasassssssssasanarass 5 4408 $(55,736) $ 16,025
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided
by (used in) operating activities:

Amortization of deferred financing COStS ....cvvvvriiininininnnn - - 67
Loss on extinguishment of debt.......coovvviiiinnnncsceeernecriens - - 3,128
Equity in (income) loss of subsidiaries ..........ccovreeernemniniiiininn (4,400) 55,765 {19,487)
Receipt/(payment) of dividends from affiliate..........covveeecinnnnnniniinnn - (3,000) 39,703
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in CUITENT ASSEES .......ovovirerriiasmssesersessssssnnsensecscnsnesssnns - - 20
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities.........oveimnniccicrerinnnscciniinnes 189 1,032 (1,005)
Increase (decrease) in due from affiliate.......coorrrrirrrinninnes - - 42,464
NET CASH PROVIDED BY(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES.. 197 (1,939) 80,915
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase and redemption of Old Senior Debentures............c.cocevrervavernsurneans - - (77.324)
Purchase of Teasury StOCK.......cvvrrecinimmrererermnrmsisiims s ssssessssasssensssssssanens (188) - (6,862)
Stock Options EXErCISEd ......ovmemiitiimrris sttt 8 146 3,936
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (180) 146 (80,250)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS... 17 (1,793) 665
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR........ccvnicieens 693 2,486 1,821
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR.......ccocvvmcnnnnnns $§ 710 $§ 693 $ 2,486
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest paid (TECEIVEA) .cvvuniveirinimiinmsineniinser st $ a3 @y $ 4,079
INCOME LAXES PAI c..vovverreccrrremre it ass s s st b e $ 55 3 30 $ 91
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SCHEDULE I (continued)

NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL
INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

FINLAY ENTERPRISES, INC. - PARENT COMPANY

ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles have been condensed or omitted. Accordingly,
these financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of
Finlay Enterprises, Inc. (the "Company") in its 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The investment in our subsidiary is carried on the equity basis, which represents amounts invested less
dividends received plus or minus our equity in the subsidiary’s income or loss to date. Significant
intercompany balances and activities have not been eliminated in this unconsolidated financial
information. '
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14 OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Exhibit 31.1
I, Arthur E. Reiner, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Finlay Enterprises, Inc.:

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows
of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I aré responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in
the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 19, 2007
/s/ Arthur E. Reiner

Arthur E. Reiner
Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14 OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
Exhibit 31.2

I, Bruce E. Zurlnick, certify that:
1.  have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Finlay Enterprises, Inc.:

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows
of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b} Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in
the case of an annual report) that has matenially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b} Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 19, 2007

/s/ Bruce E. Zurlnick

Bruce E. Zurlnick

Senior Vice President, Treasurer
and Chief Financial Officer




CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Exhibit 32.1

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Titie 18 of the
United States Code), the undersigned officer of Finlay Enterprises, Inc., (the “Company™) does hereby

certify with respect to the Annual Report of the Company on Form 10-K for the period ended February 3,
2007 (the “Report™) that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: April 19, 2007
/s/ Arthur E. Reiner
Arthur E. Reiner
Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 (Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code) and is not being filed as part of
the Report or as a separate disclosure document.




CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Exhibit 32.2

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the
United States Code), the undersigned officer of Finlay Enterprises, Inc., (the “Company™) does hereby
certify with respect to the Annual Report of the Company on Form 10-K for the period ended February 3,
2007 (the “Report™) that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: April 19, 2007
/s/ Bruce E. Zurlnick
Bruce E. Zurlnick
Senior Vice President, Treasurer
and Chief Financial Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 (Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code) and is not being filed as part of
the Report or as a separate disclosure document.




FINLAY ENTERPRISES, INC.

Stock Performance Graph

The following graph charts, on an annual basis, the cumulative rotal stockholders’ return over the period
from February 2, 2002 to February 3, 2007 with respect to the Company’s Common Stock as compared to the
NASDAQ Composite Index, the Dow Jones US General Retailers Index and the S&P Department Stores Index
for the same period. In previous years, the Nasdag Stock Market (U.S.) Index was utilized in this comparison
but this Index was discontinued in June 20{6. As such, the NASDAQ Composite Index, the most comparable

index, has been utilized instead. The Company has paid no dividends with respect to its Common Stock during
the period.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN®Y
AMONG FINLAY ENTERPRISES, INC., THE NASDAQ COMPOSITE INDEX,
THE DOW JONES US GENERAL RETAILERS INDEX AND THE
S&P DEPARTMENT STORES INDEX
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(1) $100 invested on 2/2/02 in stock or on 1/31/02 in index-including reinvestment of dividends.
Indexes calculated on month-end basis,

Cumulative Total Return ($)

Feb. 2, Feb. 1, Jan.31, Jan.29, Jan.28, Feb.3,
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Finlay Enterprises, Inc. 100.00  134.45 151.17 173.29 95.11 97.25
NASDAQ Composite 100.00 6788 10570 106.89 121.35 130.43
Dow Jones US General Retailers 100.00 71.63 97.45 105.18 110.06 119.64

$ & P Department Stores 100.00 67.25 9.7 110.20 124.98 177.92
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Corporate Information

Board of Directors
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Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer

David B. Cornstein
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Principal, Pinnacle Advisors Ltd.

Rohit M. Desai
Chairman and President
Desai Capital Management Incorporated

Ellen R. Levine
Editorial Director
Hearst Magazines

Louis Lipschitz
Business Advisor

Norman S. Matthews
Retail Consultant

Charles E. McCarthy

Founder, Prides Capital Partners, L.L.C.

Thomas M. Murnane
Business Advisor

Corporate Officers

Arthur E. Reiner
Chairman of the Board, Presiden:
and Chief Executive Officer

Joseph M. Melvin
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Leslie A. Philip
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Chief Merchandising Officer
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Chief Financial Officer
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Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel

Independent Registsred
Public Accounting Firm

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Two World Financial Center
New York, NY 10281

Counsel

Troutman Sanders LLP
The Chrysler Building
405 Lexington Avenue
New York, NY 10174

Transter Agent

HSBC Bank USA
452 Fifth Avenue
New York, NY 10018

Nasdagq® Symbol: FNLY

Shareholder Inquiries

Bruce E. Zurlnick

Senior Vice President, Treasurer
and Chief Financial Officer
(212) 808-2800

Finlay Enterprises, Inc.

529 Fifth Avenue

New York, NY 10017

A copy of the exhibits to the Company’s 2006
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission will be
made available to interested shareholders upon
written request, and is accessible on the corporate
website, www.finlayenterprises.com.

Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held
on June 19, 2007 at 9:30 a.m. at the Company’s
offices, 529 Fifth Avenue, New York, NY.
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